- -I.l

HKC

HAEER

B
e e

Ll

==

L

==

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BEER (ZER) BRAF
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(R EREREMR 2 BRAT)

Stock Code {385 : 190




Projects in CHINA
EREZHB

s
S—_

=

Heilongjiang
RBEET

Inner Mongolia
AEE
Shenyang

&

Beijing

A

Tianjin

RE

Hebei

JAdE

Henan

A

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

=t

Lo

i i 1‘

J

ol

Gansu
HEE

Shanghai
3

Zhejiang
T
Guangzhou
B
Shenzhen
el

Jiangmen
L

r{
"‘-._‘

=

e 1]

e g N



10

22

28

51

63

87

Contents
B &%

Corporate Information
AFER

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

Directors and Senior Management
EERGREERE

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance
Report

BRI -HERERRSE

Report of the Directors

ExgREE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEAMRE

Consolidated Income Statement
mEBER

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
HETHERRX

Consolidated Balance Sheet
HEEERER

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
HEEREER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

REPBERME

Principal Subsidiaries,

Associates and a Joint Venture
FTEMBELAR  BEARAR—BEEELT
Five-Year Financial Summary

TEMBERBE

Schedule of Principal Properties
FTEYPE-—EBEX




Corporate Information

DNEER

Directors
Non-executive Director
Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan (Chairman)

Executive Directors
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal Bankers

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Bank of Tianjin Co., Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Company Secretary
Mr. LAl Kam Kuen, Ricky

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

EE
HHITES
BEEREE(EE)

HITES

=W (TTEAEE)
REREE(BEEHMFEE)
ZEREE

®HEREE

BIFEHITESE
ERERLE
BTN A
EYIE R E

¥ BB
BAROKBEENESA

T EAREBLT
BT BRA
REBITRABRR A

FERRRITRMO AR AR
FEERIRITRDBR AR

BERTRPERAA
FRERARTRPDERAA
RFERITHERAA]
R TRRITRD AR AR
FLERITID AR A A

FEBERERRITIROBR AR

RERITERAA]

DNEWE
FESRAEST A



Corporate Information

NEEHR

Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road

Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2731 0000

Fax: (852) 2722 6266

Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Agent

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and

Transfer Agent in Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

E-mail Address
info@hkcholdings.com

Website
www.hkcholdings.com

Stock Code
190

TSR
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BRANSEERTEEXME

FENERDPER
BT 55 M R D — BN
B 5E ¢ (852) 2731 0000

55 : (852) 2722 6266

ROBFEILRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

ERROBEEEAE
EAPRBEABRARAT
&5 2/ AE R 1835

5
info@hkcholdings.com

494t

www.hkcholdings.com

g e
190

BRER(EBRERLDA —B—REEH



4

Chairman’s Statement
ETEHRESE

Shanghai Landmark Center
EBEERL

China’s property sector in 2016 showed
moderate improvement over 2015.

China’s property markets showed moderate recovery in 2016
as the government implemented a number of policies to boost
property sales such as lowering minimum down payments and
transaction taxes for home buyers, and reducing land supply
in areas where there was a supply glut. In addition, monetary
policy was relatively loose in 2016, resulting in lower interest
rates. As a result, house prices increased 12.6% in 2016.

However, the government is now concerned about what it
considers excessive rises in property prices, particularly for
tier 1 cities. Therefore, the government is mandating that tier
1 and some tier 2 cities with excessive price rises should
implement policies to rein in prices. In addition, the government
is emphasizing that for 2017, it will take a neutral stance on
monetary policy. Although these policies are negative, the
Group believes that the government is seeking to prevent
excessive price rises, and does not believe the government
wants to see a sharp drop in prices. Therefore, we do not
believe that restrictions will be excessive for 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

The Group records significant increase in
profits in 2016 due to higher sales, increase in
property prices, valuation gains, and the sale
of its Guilin toll road.

In 2016, the Group recorded a net profit of HK$589.5
million, compared to a HK$580.1 million loss in 2015. Profits
increased because of increased unit sales of properties in
Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang. In addition, the Group was
able to increase the sales price of units. As a result, revenues
increased 34% and gross margins on property sales increased
to 25% in 2016 compared to 19% in 2015. Profits were also
boosted by valuation gains from the Group’s two Shanghai
commercial properties and from the sales of the Group’s Guilin
toll road.

Sales in Tianjin have benefitted from strong positive sentiment.
Beijing prices have increased sharply given positive sentiment in
tier 1 cities, but given the proximity of Tianjin, prices in Tianjin
have also increased, although more moderately. Tianjin is also
benefitting from increased investment in the city as Xi Jinping,
since 2014, has mandated that the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region
should coordinate their development, creating a global city
cluster. Similarly, the Group’s Jiangmen residential sales have
been boosted given strong sales sentiment in the Pearl River
Delta, which encompasses both Shenzhen and Guangzhou,
where prices have also increased significantly.

Underlying earnings have steadily improved...

Excluding valuation gains and extraordinary items, underlying
pre-tax profit increased 153% to HK$366.7 million, primarily
because the Group increased sales of its residential properties.
As the following graph demonstrates, since 2008, after the
Group made the decision to convert from a construction
company to a property developer, underlying earnings (defined
as pre-tax profit minus all non-recurring gains/losses) have
steadily improved as the Group has executed on its sales plan.
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Chairman’s Statement
ETEHRESE
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...and should continue to improve over the
long term with the completion of the Shanghai
commercial properties.

In previous years, profits have been adversely affected because
a significant part of the Group’s capital has been tied up in
constructing its two Shanghai commercial properties, the
Landmark Center and Sinar Mas Plaza, and therefore have
not been generating any profit. However, the two commercial
properties were close to completion at the end of 2016.
These two properties are located in the North Bund and offer
outstanding, panoramic views of the Huangpu River, the Bund,
and Lujiazui. The Landmark Center is located just a few minutes
from the historical Bund District. As part of Sinar Mas Plaza, a
5-star W hotel operated by the Starwood Group will open in July.

While earnings from these two properties will likely be minimal
in 2017, as they are only in their first year of operation, profits
from these buildings should begin contributing to underlying
earnings in 2018 and beyond. Landmark Center has a net asset
value of HKS2.3 billion, or HKS4.4 per share and Sinar Mas
Plaza has a net asset value of HK$1.9 billion or HKS3.6 per
share.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

Expect sales momentum to continue as Group’s
properties are not affected by tightening
policies.

The Group expects to continue its property sales momentum
going into 2017. While the government is trying to control
prices in first tier cities, the Group's residential properties in
Tianjin, Shenyang, and Jiangmen, have not been adversely
affected. Tianjin is the only city that has been affected by
purchase restrictions, with the local government announcing in
October 2016 that people who do not have a Tianjin residence
permit will not be allowed to buy a second property in the
downtown area; and also mandating minimum down payments
of 40%. However, as of the first couple months of 2017, there
has been no adverse impact on the sales of the Group’s Tianjin
properties.

The Group is also moderately positive on the outlook for its
two Shanghai commercial properties. Increased office supply
in Shanghai may put some pressure on lease rates; however,
demand for office properties remains strong, and the Group is
seeing reasonable demand for its properties, particularly given
their good location.

Tianjin Tuanbo Lake land bank provides long
term development potential.

Looking forwards, as the Group completes the sales of its
Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang residential properties, the
Group will increasingly focus on developing its 804,000 square
meter land bank at Tianjin Tuanbo Lake. Located southwest of
the city, the site offers waterfront property with scenic lake
views. With a plot ratio of 1.04, 836,000 square meters of
low rise properties can be developed or enough land area for
5-8 years of development. The land was originally purchased
for RMB900 per square meter. However, given the increasing
integration of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area, and lack of land
supply, prices for nearby plots have recently surged to at least
RMB4,000 per square meter. The Group looks forward to the
promulgation of the master plan with planning parameters for
Tuanbo Lake in 2017, at which point, HKC can start initial design
planning for a world class residential community.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRES

The Group has not recently purchased additional land bank given
the recent high prices for land. The Group is positioned to make
acquisitions if an opportunity arises in China or other countries.
The Group is also looking for investment opportunities and
projects (including equity and direct investments and/or treasury
operations) with development potential in order to create
effective risk-weighted returns and capital value to the Group.

Group’s wind subsidiary performs well.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), the
Group’s listed wind power subsidiary has also performed better
than expected. CRE has been much more selective than State-
Owned-Enterprises (“SOEs”) in selecting wind power projects,
and therefore has much higher quality wind farms. Also, CRE
has actively responded to market changes through innovations
in all aspects of its business. In particular, CRE continues to
focus on developing high quality projects and on improving
operational effectiveness. Losses from power curtailment have
been reduced by optimizing its energy production strategy. As
a result, in 2016, CRE net profit increased 48% and continues
to outperform the industry with an average of 2,038 utilisation
hours, 296 hours above the national average utilisation.
CRE generated HKS307.7 million of EBITDA in 2016, or
HKS$903,000/per Mega-Watt (“MW”), a level which management
believes is among the highest in the industry. Danjinghe and
Changma performed particularly well as these two projects
were obtained through national tender, and are given favorable
treatment. Therefore, these two wind farms experience little or
no curtailment. Furthermore, CRE’s Lunaobao wind farm profits
were higher than expected as curtailment was reduced from
28% to 15% due to the recent upgrade of the transmission
network and completion of three 500 Kilo-Volt substations in the
Zhangbei region.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBES

The government continues to support the wind power sector
in order to reduce pollution. In early 2016, the government
announced a policy stipulating that in order to achieve 15% non-
fossil fuel energy generation by 2020 and 30% by 2030, each
province must achieve a minimum renewable energy quota by
those years. This was followed by a May 31 National Energy
Administrative Bureau announcement that the Grid Company.
is required to ensure wind farms in curtailed provinces be
guaranteed a minimum amount of utilisation hours. In addition,
progress continues on the construction of new Ultra-High-
Voltage transmission lines, which are expected to be completed
by 2017. These lines may help reduce curtailment.

Jiangmen Eka Gardién
JIFZEEEfEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEWR DT

Financial review

During the year ended 31 December 2016, turnover amounted
to HKS1,605.2 million, an increase of 34% over turnover of
HKS1,195.5 million for the same period in 2015. Gross profit
for the period of HK$542.7 million increased 47%. Gross
margins on property sales increased from 19% in 2015 to
25% in 2016 as the Group was able to increase sales price for
properties in Tianjin and Jiangmen. The Group recorded a net
profit attributable to the equity holders of HK$386.3 million for
the period under review, reversing a net loss attributable to the
equity holders in the same period in 2015 of HK$S497.7 million.
For 2016, the Group recorded a HK$S592.4 million gain from
valuation gains on Shanghai Landmark Center and a HK$86.5
million gain on Sinar Mas Plaza, as both projects at the end of
2016 were closer to completion. The Group also recorded a
HKS119.2 million gain on the sale of its Guilin toll-road. The toll-
road is not a core part of the Group’s property business; and the
sale was part of our previously disclosed plan to sell non-core
assets. Basic net profit per share for the period amounted to
HK73.0 cents per share, while basic net loss per share for the
same period in 2015 was HK100.2 cents per share. Book value
per share was HKS21.7.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to HKS$2,944.4 million, representing a drop of 29%
when compared with the equivalent figure of HK$4,130.8 million
as at 31 December 2015. Total borrowings as at 31 December
2016 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of HKS104.4
million (31 December 2015: HKS315.6 million) and Renminbi
borrowings equivalent to HKS2,840.0 million (31 December
2015: HKS3,815.2 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings are spread over the next five years, with HK$705.6
million repayable within one year or on demand, HKS1,405.3
million repayable within two to five years, and HK$833.5 million
repayable after five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

Tianjin Eka Garden
REZIEEE

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had restricted cash of
HKS614.7 million (31 December 2015: HKS614.5 million),
mainly related to the increase of pre-sales deposit received
from the contracted sales; and the drawdown of bank loans for
designated purposes. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
(includes short-term bank deposits) amounted to HK$1,309.8
million (31 December 2015: HKS978.5 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the period under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum financial
structure that best reflects the long-term interests of its
shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of alternative
sources of funding to finance its future investments.
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EHEZEEESEEE

]

AEBABND W ARERBFTIBTEER
BEEBMEE -

RZB-—RE+ZA=+—H XxEEZX
PR %R & &614,700,000 T (—ZF —HF
+ZHA=+—H :614,500,000&7T)  *
ZEHORFHEAWAKI 2 FEEZ ST
- RIRBERERGZRITEREH - 8
RHERELRSEZEY(BEEARTER)
& #£1,309,800,000/8 T (—F—A%+_HA
=+—H : 978,500,000/ ) °

ClEMA - AEEYENAS 8T AENRH
BRI o

AEBEREERNBEYIRENBTEE  UE
MR Rz RENE - WEHREES AR
BENERAKRKRERBEERES -

BRER(EBRERLDA —B—REEH

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEWR DT

Details of charges in group assets

During the period under review, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain assets worth HKS$9,321.6
million (31 December 2015: HKS11,179.2 million) as security
for bank and other loans.

Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings divided
by total equity, as at 31 December 2016 was 22%, compared
with 30% as at 31 December 2015. The Group’s net debt ratio
for the same period was 7%, compared with 18% as at 31
December 2015. This ratio represents total borrowings minus
cash and divided by total equity.

Contingent liabilities
The details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statement.

Business model

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing
on investing and developing property projects in Mainland China,
and aims to develop high quality products to create sustainable
value for its shareholders.

The Group has a diversified property portfolio model with
investments in both residential projects for sale; and
commercial projects mainly for rental income. The residential
projects are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen and Shenyang. The
Group’s commercial projects, which are primarily involved in
office buildings and retail malls, are located in prime business
areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance
between residential development for sale and commercial
investment properties for lease in order to create a sustainable
model with growth potential. Residential properties for sale
generate fast turnover, which should enhance return on equity.
Investment properties for lease, on the other hand, create
steady recurring income and cash flow as well as long term
capital appreciation.
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The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given the
volatility of the property industry, the Group aims to maintain a
conservative net debt/equity ratio. While most of the Group's
projects are in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the Group
may consider diversifying by investing in other countries.

The Group has also made an investment in the renewable energy
sector, and believes shareholders may benefit from China’s
need to develop non-polluting sources of energy.

Business risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing, and
other execution risks.

Currency risk

Most of the Group's assets are in RMB. The Group conducts a
majority of its business operations in the PRC. The major portion
of revenue, expenses and debts are denominated in Renminbi.
Fluctuation in the exchange rates of Renminbi would have limited
impact on the Group’s operations. However, depreciation of the
RMB may have an adverse impact on the Group’s book value.

Environmental policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable Group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels and heat pump technology where feasible.

Business review

Investment properties

The Group’s existing property investment portfolio, consisting
largely of premium commercial and retail developments in
Shenzhen, Beijing and Guangzhou, continued to generate a
steady stream of rental revenue for the Group during the period
under review, with leasing revenues rising 9% year on year to
HKS166.2 million.

Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai District
of Tianjin. The project consists of townhouses and high rise
apartments totaling gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately
150,000 square meters. Construction for all three phases has
now been completed.
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The market environment for Tianjin improved considerably
in 2016 as the city is becoming increasingly more linked to
Beijing. Since 2014, the government has made it a strategy to
synergize the development of the area, seeking to make the
region a megalopolis capable of competing with the Yangtze
River Delta and the Pearl River Delta. In 2016, Beijing’s
investment into Tianjin and Hebei increased rapidly, with
RMB114 billion invested in Hebei and almost RMB90 billion in
Tianjin.

As a result, when Beijing property sales and prices increased in
2016, so did Tianjin’s. In 2016, the Group increased the sales
price for apartments by 6% to RMB19,697 per square meter.
During the period, the Group sold 22,686 square meters of GFA,
resulting in contracted sales of RMB432.9 million, an increase
of 18% compared to RMB368.3 million during the same period
in 2015.

The Group’s land bank at Tuanbo Lake in Tianjin has similarly
benefitted as land prices in the area have recently increased
sharply. The Group looks forward to the promulgation of the
master plan with planning parameters for Tuanbo Lake in 2017,
at which point HKC can start initial design planning for a world
class residential community. The land area can support the
development of 836,000 square meters of property, and will
provide the Group a substantial development pipeline.

Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project consisting of
GFA of approximately 189,000 square meters of low rise
townhouses and high rise apartments. The project is located
on an excellent site along a river bank, within walking distance
to the Jiangmen/Hong Kong ferry terminal and an international
school. A marina club was completed in 2016. The site is
also close to the Guangzhu Intercity Railway’'s Waihai Station
connecting Jiangmen to Guangzhou and Zhuhai.

Construction of all three phases has been completed, with
the last phase completed in the second half of 2016. Most
of the units in phase 1 and 2 have been sold. Handover of
Phase 3 units began in the fourth quarter of 2016. The market
environment for the Pearl River Delta has improved, particularly
given high demand for property in Shenzhen and Guangzhou.
During 2016, the Group sold 50,612 square meters of
townhouse and apartment units, recording contracted sales
of RMB319.2 million, a 312% increase compared to RMB77.4
million during the same period in 2015.
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Shenyang

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang's prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’s Nanhu Park in
the center of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and
C, consists of GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters
of townhouses, high rise apartments, and a few commercial
shops. For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
construction of all four high rise towers have been completed.
Site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters) is divided
into two portions. One portion consists of two high rise blocks
(mainly for housing resettled residents) with ground floor
shops and a small communal block. Another portion will be
developed into townhouses. Construction of the resettlement
flats were completed in the second half of 2016 and handover
has begun. Preparation for development of site A, with GFA of
approximately 75,000 square meters, is underway. The Group
continues to work with the local government to complete the
relocation of the residents on site A.

The market environment for Shenyang was subdued in 2016
given oversupply. However, there are signs of improvement in
2017. For 2016, the Group sold 25,281 square meters of GFA,
resulting in contracted sales of RMB285.2 million, an increase
of 35% compared to RMB212.0 million in the same period in
2015.
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Shanghai

Demand remains strong for office space in Shanghai. The
city’s service sector has grown particularly rapidly, resulting
in increased demand for offices. Lease rates remained stable
during the period. Grade A lease rates in the central business
district (“CBD") rose a moderate 0.5% in the fourth quarter of
2016 compared to the same period in 2015. However, while
optimistic over the long term, the Group remains cautious over
the short term. Vacancy rates increased to 10.2% by the end of
2016, up 5.3 percentage points year on year; and are expected
to continue rising in 2017 as 1.1 million square meters of office
space is expected to enter the market.

The Group has two commercial projects in the Hongkou District
of Shanghai, an area that is benefitting from the improvement
in infrastructure, including the completion of the International
Cruise Terminal, an underground road connecting to the Bund
and a new tunnel linking Hongkou and Pudong. While the
Hongkou District is not strictly within the traditional CBD, given
its proximity, it is expected to gradually merge with the CBD as
it develops.

The Landmark Center, in which the Group has a 60% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 161,000 square meters (a GFA
of approximately 248,000 square meters including basement)
office and retail complex. The building is located just a few
minutes from the historical Bund, and offers panoramic views
of the Huangpu River, the Bund, and Lujiazui. The project was
close to completion at the end of 2016, and the Group is now
focused on leasing out the property. Given the project is closer
to completion, the value of the property has increased, and the
Group recorded a HK$592.4 million valuation gain.

Sinar Mas Plaza, which the Group has a 25% interest in, has
a GFA of approximately 259,000 square meters (GFA of
approximately 427,000 square meters including basement) of
office, hotel, and retail space. With construction now closer to
completion, the focus is now on leasing out the building. The
office tower offers highly panoramic views of the Shanghai
skyline. The hotel is expected to open in July 2017, and will be
run by the Starwood Group under the W brand. Given the project
is closer to completion, the value of the North Bund property
has also increased, and the Group recorded a HK$86.5 million
valuation gain.
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Nanxun

The project is a complex of three-storey buildings fully
completed as a trading center for wooden floor, furniture
and other building materials. The GFA of Nanxun International
Building Materials City is approximately 180,000 square
meters, in which approximately 83,000 square meters are
offered for sales and the remaining GFA of approximately
97,000 square meters are for lease. The market opened for
business on July 2013. Over 88% of the GFA has been sold or
leased out. Rental yields have been relatively strong at around
5%.

Beijing

The Group operates a 17,100 square meters retail complex
at Legation Quarters, the former site of the United States
diplomatic compound in Beijing, which is situated along
the southeast corner of Tiananmen Square. The Group has
converted the compound into a high end retail shop and
restaurant complex. Legation Quarter’s operating results were
stable during the period, with occupancy at 96%.

Renewable energy

All of the Group’s renewable energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
(“CRE"). The government continues to support the sector in
order to reduce pollution. In 2016, management updated the
business strategy of CRE based on an in-depth analysis of the
current market situation. The new strategy, “Grow ¢ Advance
e Sustain” recognizes the challenges and opportunities
CRE faces, while allowing it to improve and evolve in this
continuously changing environment. Grow means CRE intends
to continue developing renewable energy projects. Advance
means every KWh of energy output counts at CRE. Therefore,
CRE strives to innovate and advance in all aspects of its
business and operations in order to continuously enhance
profitability. Sustain means CRE'’s ultimate goal is to create
sustainable value and to increase returns for shareholders.
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In the first year implementation of its new strategy, CRE’s
business performance and profitability achieved a record
high. In 2016, the wind farms dispatched a total of 1,345.5
Giga-Watt-hours (“GWh”), an increase of 3% over 2015. The
average utilisation hours was 2,038 hours, 55 hours higher than
the previous year, and 296 hours higher than China’s national
average. Revenues decreased 1% to HK$131.0 million while
net income increased 51% to HKS61.1 million in 2016. Profits
were particularly strong for the Danjinghe and Changma wind
farms as they were obtained through national tender, and hence,
are protected from curtailment. Lunaobao also benefitted from
reduced curtailment. Three 500 Kilo-Volt substations were
recently completed in Zhangbei, and helped reduce curtailment
at Lunaobao from 28% to 15% year on year. CRE also benefitted
from reduced interest costs given the People’s Bank of China
lowered borrowing rates in 2016.

Please refer to CRE's annual report for more details.

Prospects

The Group believes that the market environment for the property
market in 2017 will be relatively stable. While the government is
implementing policies to restrict price rises in tier 1 and some
overheated tier 2 cities, it also does not want any excessive
price declines that will endanger stability. Of the Group’s
projects, only Tianjin is affected by purchase restrictions, and
there is no evidence yet that the Group's sales there have been
adversely affected.

For 2017, the Group will continue focusing on sales of its
residential properties in Tianjin, Jiangmen, and Shenyang.
Tianjin and Jiangmen sales remain promising, and the Group
expects to continue raising prices, especially in Tianjin. The
Shenyang market remains oversupplied; however the Group is
seeing indications of improvement in 2017.
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As the Group’s Shanghai commercial buildings move closer to
completion, the Group’s key focus in Shanghai will now be on
leasing out Landmark Center and Sinar Mas Plaza. The Group
has appointed Savills and Jones Lang LaSalle to handle office
leasing and CBRE to handle retail leasing. More than 1.1 million
square meters of new office supply is expected to enter the
CBD market in 2017, so vacancy rates are expected to continue
rising into 2017. However, demand for offices in Shanghai
remains strong. Initial feedback from potential leasing tenants
is positive, so the Group is moderately optimistic that it will be
able to lease out a significant portion of its properties in 2017.
These properties should contribute to profit in 2018.

The Group is currently renovating its Shun Hing Square retail
property in Shenzhen, and anticipates completion of the
renovation by the second quarter of 2017. The renovation is
expected to enable the Group to attract higher quality tenants,
and the Group anticipates that it will significantly increase
revenues upon completion.

In Shenyang, the Group is exploring the development of six
storey high quality apartments totalling about 6,000 square
meters at its site C location. And in Nanxun, HKC is also looking
into developing a 13,384 square meters site adjacent to its
existing wholesale market for the trading of building materials
and furniture. The site is able to accommodate 35,000 square
meters of retail space. Both potential developments will
require various government approvals which have not yet been
obtained.

Renewable energy

The government’s recent policy announcements to promote
renewable energy and the completion of ultra-high transmission
lines should reduce curtailment in 2017. The Group has
received final approval for its 74 Mega-Watt (“MW”) wind farm
in Songxian, near Luoyang in Henan Province and began pre-
construction preparatory work in the fourth quarter 2016.
Completion of this project will increase CRE’s wind capacity
by 22% in 2018. CRE is optimistic over this project given the
curtailment rate in this region is relatively low and wind tariff
rates are relatively high. In addition to wind, there are also a
number of potential utility-scale and distributed solar projects
that the Group is considering investing in.

Please refer to CRE's annual report for more information.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately
467 employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. All employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s
overall performance and prevailing market conditions.

Environmental, social and governance issues
Environmental

Through CRE, the Group has been one of the earliest investors
in China’'s renewable energy sector. As such, the Group
has been heavily involved in environmental protection and
support for the low carbon development of China. CRE has
over 660 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei, Heilongjiang,
Gansu and Inner Mongolia provinces. With a total electricity
generation of 1,345.5 GWh, CRE has reduced coal assumption
by approximately 1,040,747 tons and carbon emission by
437,288 tons.

As a responsible property developer, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and has adopted effective environmental technologies to
ensure its projects meet the construction standards and ethics
in respect of environmental protection. Measures have been
put in place to control solid waste, waste water and waste
gas emissions; and also to control noise pollution. Currently,
the Group is considering installing solar panels in some of its
existing buildings.

The Group has been infusing this corporate concept into its
construction projects, imposing strict controls to ensure
adherence to the relevant construction regulations. The overall
project designs focus on fitting in with the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilizing local natural resources. The
construction should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated
into nature, with high energy efficiency and should not harm the
local eco-system. The interior design of its buildings is designed
to create a healthy living environment and to make full use of
daylight in order to conserve energy.
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Social and governance

The Group regards people as its most important asset. Over
the years, the Group has put considerable effort to provide a
safe and healthy staff environment for its employees. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive package of benefits
to attract and retain talent. The Group is committed to provide
a safe, effective and congenial work environment. Adequate
arrangements, training and guidelines are implemented to
ensure the working environment is healthy and safe. Different
safety-related initiatives and measures have been rolled out
in the Company’s operations. Risk assessments are also
conducted to identify risks in special working environments,
while detailed safety instructions have been formulated and
communicated to workers as part of their safety training
sessions. Safety officers are appointed to coordinate and
communicate safety-related matters to workers on site.

The Group had issued a “Code of Conduct & Business Ethics”
(the “Code”) to all the directors and employees of the Group
and the same had been uploaded to the Company’s website.
The Code sets out the principles to guide the directors and
employees of the Group to conduct all the business affairs
in accordance with the highest business ethical standards. A
“Whistle-blowing Guideline” has been created for the reporting of
any illegal activities.

The Group is committed to participate in the community where
we operate with an aim to the improvement of community well-
being and social services. Through the hiring of locals using
market compatible remuneration packages, the Group is able
to share its operational returns with the local community and
contribute back to the society.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERESHREERE

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, aged 72, is the Chairman and an Non-
executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl was a
graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing
University where he majored in Computational Mathematics.
Involved in Asia’s pulp and paper, finance, banking, property and
agricultural industries since 1974, Mr. OEl sits on the board of
two listed companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper
Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. OEl is the father
of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 46, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. OEl is
the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. OEIl also holds several
directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. OEl was
educated in the USA, and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics (with a minor in Electrical Engineering) and a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration. Earlier in his
career, Mr. OEl worked with Peregrine Securities Ltd. and
PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey &
Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan,
the Chairman of the Group. Mr. OEl is also the sole director
and the sole shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. OEl is currently
an Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREHREERE

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 53, is an Executive
Director of the Company since September 2015. Mr. LEUNG
also serves as a director of certain members of the Group
and Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG has been appointed
as an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited ("CRE"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which are
also listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
1 December 2008. He joined the CRE Group in April 2008
as Qualified Accountant. He also holds several directorships
in other members of CRE Group and is a member of the
Executive Committee of CRE. Mr. LEUNG is a certified practising
accountant of CPA Australia. He obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business from RMIT University of Australia. He has over 20
years’ experience in auditing and finance management with an
international audit firm and other major conglomerates in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the CRE Group, Mr. LEUNG was a director
of internal control and risk management of the Company.

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 51, is an Executive Director of
the Company since January 2014. Mr. LEE also serves as a
director of certain members of the Group and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEE is the Project
Director of Property Department of the Group since December
2010. Mr. LEE holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity
Surveying (Hong Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
degree with honours (City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc
degree in Construction Management (Reading University, UK).
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor, a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years
of project management experience in property developments
in Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE
was the General Manager (Property Projects) of the Property
Department of CITIC Pacific Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERESHREERE

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 56, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and is
currently serving as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor Relations Director of the Group
and has been with the Group since 2007. He has also served
as a former Chief Financial Officer. Mr. WONG is an Executive
Director of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, a listed
subsidiary of the Company, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’'s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. He started his career as an
investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where
he was involved in project finance. He moved to Hong Kong
with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of corporate
finance activities, and was involved in some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research
efforts in Shanghai; and later as Vice President and head of
China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining
the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for
DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services Group
Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and introducing
strategic investors to the company.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREHREERE

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. CHUNG
graduated from the University College, University of London,
England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. CHUNG spent 2 years
working with the commercial department of a local law firm.
He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of
Standard Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm of
Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988.

In 1990, Mr. CHUNG became a director and General Manager
of Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China
Strategic Holdings Ltd in 1992. In March 1999, he joined the
Pacific Century Group as executive director with responsibility
for the group’s merger and acquisition activities. Mr. CHUNG
is currently the executive chairman of CSI Properties Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, and a non-executive director of HKT Limited and HKT
Management Limited (in its capacity as the trustee — manager of
the HKT Trust).
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Directors and Senior Management
EERESHREERE

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. CHENG holds a
Master of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and
Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting.
He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario. His career includes more than 20 years’
accounting and corporate advisory services expertise in several
listed companies in Hong Kong. The co-founder of a Hong
Kong merchant banking firm, Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a
certified public accountancy practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director of
CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, C.P.
Lotus Corporation, Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited,
Chong Hing Bank Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited,
Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited and Somerley Capital
Holdings Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies. Mr.
CHENG was an independent non-executive director of Imagi
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREHREERE

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, aged 63, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group since September 2004. Mr.
DA ROSA holds both Bachelor's and Master’s Law Degrees from
The University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1980. He is currently a practicing solicitor and a partner
of Messrs. Cheung Tong & Rosa Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and the Hong
Kong Society of Registered Financial Planners and an accredited
mediator with certain institutions in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia
Technology Holdings Limited and the company secretary of
Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all
of which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings) Panel and the Chairman of the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance) Panel. He served the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from 1998 to 2014 as member,
Deputy Tribunal Convenor and ultimately the Tribunal Convenor.
He also served as member of the Academic and Accreditation
Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong from 2003 to 2009.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Corporate governance practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board of
directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is
essential to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year
ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviations with
considered reasons as explained stated in the following relevant
paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2016 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises eight
Directors with four Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
Director possesses expertise and experience and provides
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group
and the shareholders as a whole. In addition, the Company had
maintained three Independent Non-executive Directors which
formed at least one-third of the full Board. Biographical details
of the Directors and their relationships, where applicable, are
set out in pages 22 to 27 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has provided to the Company an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company were exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan is the Chairman and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. Their responsibilities
had been clearly set out and approved by the Board. The Board
considers that this arrangement facilitates the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of
its operation. The Board shall nevertheless review its structure
from time to time and will consider appropriate move to take
should circumstances so required. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, the
Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
CEO.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs and
formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing its
financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference
or the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company
as defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved
for the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the
terms of reference of the Executive Committee and those
not specifically reserved for the Board are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.
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TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the
time of his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments. Such changes
will be updated and published in the annual and interim reports
as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then put recommendations to the
Board for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
are set out under the heading of “Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

EExgwm

EEEF@®@)
EEREESEABARARTHER
EAR AR SABEBEIOBRLA - &
ENMEEREMBERAEGE  HEEEAMET
MEEHREEFERARAEE - ZFE
BRBERBEFREPEHFREP BT
NI, -

ARFBEHEERERR - LAER
EHEERCEEHEL LR - AR
ASFERHRREE -

RE ZERERES

PIEFZREZCESTRRNBRRAFKRE K
TEEZEERBYELHERZES
MEER - REZEEHRAE &
B RENEBITRENH ZERR
ZHEREFHEEREBAREEA - BB
EEEEFENEZLIENTE @ =B
RESZERHNERRERESTGUE
RE - IRBRZEEZACRBIEFBEMN
KFFEITIEZMBEN TX [1REREE

=l -

REARB ZARERAI(TARER
AMAND) - ABEEBEOBETNIR=02—
ZEFABAERTE  HERFTEERA
RBERBFASERREEET 55
FEFRELEBE=FHERE—"R-&
EEIHEBREESENANT —ERRE
FRAEHBREBEET -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Board of Directors (continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continued)

All Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who are
subject to retirement and re-election at the 2017 annual general
meeting are set out on page 65 of this Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition,
the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all
aspects and does not discriminate on the grounds, including
but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious
background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the
year, the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the
Board and received and accepted the progress report from
the management in relation to identified business skills and
experience required and their ranking and the action plan for
recruiting new Board member. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Executive Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

BEEEm)
EESNESEZEES R
EETHERTEE

VAT & AN 2 B] F 55
AXBMER -EFGERUZEESFZ
g HTEHEEXRZEE RERZEEB
T FHEREELATZES  UEER
AEEERSEHHEHE - E%EE
g REZESELRFHNZESNEESR
P BN R B MBS P s o

FA -EFE 8
ehFMZESEREITIIEGRE  &8&
ENZEFEHRLFEBRIAN TR

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

LEEEYE AERLESHEEA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors i E3-4 BERZEE ¥Mzeg REZEE
Executive Directors HoESE
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric x4 44 2/2 (Notelizt)  1/1 (NoteBfzt)  1/1 (Notefifz)
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TEREE 3/4 172 (NotelfizE) N/ATE A N/ATE A
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BERAE 44 2/2 (Notelfizt) NATER N/ATER
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PRBRE 44 2/2 (Notelfizt) N/ATER N/ATER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan BEEREE 0/4 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATNE A
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EREEAL 3/4 2/2 11 1/1
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BEAEL 4/4 2/2 /1 1/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior BImLE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as
invitees.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman and/or the CEO prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date of the
meeting. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors). In the
absence of the Chairman, the CEO is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, and
ensure their views are communicated and heard by the Board.
During the year, the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting
with Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director without the Executive Directors present (as provided
for in code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code) due to the tight
schedule of the Chairman and Non-executive Directors.

BEEEm)
EEEREESZEEEEW)

ARRIFAEEHMBRTCESE TR
HADRTORBH - AREREFR
et F ez MEEESEEAA
mE - -REMEFSRZEEEEM
5 REeELAEBN NETE
FARLZRAABEFHAREEMNEEAR
ZEMENEEERZESTAXM
HER IR Z R 7t B i Bz 5 XX i
THERIERDEE -HEEFHEZEE
RERELHFEER  KESRNSHRET
ABER T w2 ERAERFESH
EMERR/RITRBHEREEZE
B

EXENZEBECRIERCEIRD
FIEEENZEEMEREH B
RFTERZRE  BREEFZMEMRE
Al - REZGNEBEER LR
ERARGZFTERR —REERMH
NEARESF > WERER - 2RESFY
AEARWERS  ARNEARER
REETEFRIERF URAHREEM
EEeRHER -

EZgREBRFABCUCAL ERITR
FHRTER(BREBUIFATER) G
BERENER HEXERFENBRT
THRAESKARREFRNTESHELE
MEROBEE  YHRRESSRRLE
ERENER - FAR - BRER MIEH
TESHRRZ  ERILBENATES
BENBRAT  BEIIFRTEENE
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and
take into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy
and structure of Directors including those retired and re-
elected at the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his
term of office are set out on page 32 of this Annual Report.
Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three
members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG
Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior, all of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee held one meeting during the year, and the
attendance details of each member are set out on page 32 of
this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o reviewing the structure of board committees;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors and sufficient number of independent
directors to maintain a balanced board;

J making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o reviewing the progress report from the management in
relation to the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time
to align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive
Director, comprised three members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho
Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors at
all time during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external
auditor. The attendance details of each member are set out on
page 32 of this Annual Report. The major work performed by the
Audit Committee during the year included reviewing interim and
annual financial statements, continuing connected transactions,
internal audit reports on the internal controls and risk
management matters, the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance as well as reviewing and recommending
re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing guideline for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated
executive who is accountable to the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, unlawful activities,
or activities violating the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics or otherwise amounting to serious improper conduct and
to ensure protection from possible retaliation against any of our
employees who has reported concerns in good faith.
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Executive committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with
the key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities,
and oversee the operating performance and financial position
of the Group and all strategic business units. The Committee
comprises all Executive Directors and executives of the Group.
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric is the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial and
operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and develop
investment strategy and policies of the Company and make
relevant recommendations to the Board.

Delegation by the board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors
of the Company and other executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 87 to 96 of
this Annual Report.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the
auditor amounted to approximately HKS4.7 million and HKS1.2
million respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of
interim results review services and tax advisory services.
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Directors’ Training

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The training programmes included
seminars and courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and
regulations and materials on topics relevant to the director’s
duties and responsibilities. A summary of training received by
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 according
to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

B

FA 2REFHCL2EZRNMEHK
FHMBENKELFBEEXER - HIIR
BERBEENMRE BESKHAR X
BEBO - UREVMREEREREN
M MERERMHZEE  EFEREE
“E-RFTZA=ZT-RLEFEER
ZIiEgatan T

Training on corporate
governance,regulatory
development and
other relevant topics
TEER  BEERER

Name of Directors EENR H b ABRE /A 2 1Z 3
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric =ML A v
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TEG A v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EHERTE v/
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PRI E v/
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan BEEIREE v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEHTESE

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERELE v
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BRI A v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ZEIELE v
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Directors’ training (continued)

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness,
while management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems to manage risks and compliance.

Risk management model

As the first line of defense, operational management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
for executing risk and control procedures on day-to-day
operation. Management of Head Office establishes various risk
management and compliance functions to provide direction on
the importance of risk management and monitor the first line
of defense controls. The Internal Control and Risk Management
(“ICRM”) Department reviews and provides independent
assurance on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

EEE I
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The Board/Audit Committee £ € H/ixZ%E

Senior Management /= 4% & 12 [E
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EESR R )

(Own and Manage Risks)
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A& EZ

Internal Financial Control B 752542
Management Control
Controls Measures Risk Management &% & 12
=gl M EBE ST
Hepg Compliance & REE
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Risk management and internal control (continued) J&| f3 & 3 [ A 20 BEE 58 (@)

Internal control framework A EBEC = HE SR

The Group has in place an integrated internal control framework — 7Zx £ & 2 % 37 81 COSO (Committee of
that is consistent with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring  Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework as  Commission) 1E28 — & 7 434 A ZpES 2
illustrated below: BRI

Control Environment
BB

Set the right tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.

EUASEIEENEAER @ RICEBNEEEHLERRA -

Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, delegation of authority and responsibility.

MERBARST  BREE BEE)H BRKETHEZFEE -

Foundation for all other components of internal control.

1ERFTA M A RREIE AR BB D AR -

Risk Assessment

BT

Identification, evaluation and analysis of the key risks underlying the achievement of the Group’s

objectives, including the risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment; conducted

regularly, forming the basis for determining control activities.

EHEA - FHERAMEERASE S SHEEN T ZRR(BEEHESE RELRFLHE
) 3 DAL VR Il TE BE P E B Y AL o

Control Activities

EEEEE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions are
taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group'’s objectives.

FIEHRERIEF  BREEECETEUAATURERVS ZTHREN G ERAREERE
TTZH'K“ °©

Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.

EREHEERE B B BRURS - BEED  EERE - FEES  XHFEER
R .
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Risk management and internal control (continued) & B2 ‘S IE % A ZF BE 328 ()

e

Internal control framework (continued) AEBEE R 2048 (&)

Information and Communication
B RBEH

Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.

ER R - RN EEE A TREAEER -

Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.

B AEBERFFIZEARBEINRA L ZBBRE -

Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating to
the Group.
RBRPRERNEEESHERANEREHXTIETRRLBEBRE -

Monitoring

BE 2%

oo AJS

Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.

FrE R B RIFT (4 B PR R AR

Management and supervisory activities.
ERRERTE-

Internal audit activities.

AEBEZ T -
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Control environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good business
ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal Code
of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated to all
staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and control
responsibility into our culture and regard them as the foundation
of our risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to monitor the Group’s ability to achieve its business objectives;
and can provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

We maintain an effective internal audit function, the ICRM
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(ii) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Risk management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and to prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Control processes

The Board maintains sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems through the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules
and the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the
Audit Committee. Key audit findings and implementation
progress of internal control recommendations are
regularly reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. Head of the ICRM Department also serves as
the contact person under the Whistleblowing Guideline of
the Company.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Review of internal control effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this
review covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the performance of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified in
the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once each year and reports to
the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate for the year ended 31
December 2016. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the operational, financial, and compliance controls and
risk management function of the Group were identified.
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Risk management and internal control (continued)
Inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
required.

(ii) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(i) hasin place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

Company secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the CEO on Board or
committee matters. All Directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary for the ongoing
discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2016, the Company Secretary took
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training organized
by the Stock Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional documents of the company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the
Company at the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, there was no alteration on the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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General meetings

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 26
May 2016 (the “2016 AGM"). The CEO chaired the 2016 AGM in
the absence of the Chairman of the Board due to the Chairman’s
prior business engagement. The external auditor attended
the 2016 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. For the special
general meeting held on 6 October 2016 (the "2016 SGM"), at
which the share consolidation were considered, the CEO chaired
the 2016 SGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board
due to the Chairman’s prior business engagement and answer
questions from the shareholders of the Company.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2016
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AGM and the 2016 SGM is set out in the table below: Reh —_E—RERFEEIAEeZ2HE
FOEE
2016 AGM 2016 SGM
—E-RE —E-RXEF
Name of Directors BEESS BERAFEARE BRERESHAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric =Ml 1/1 1/1
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TERSE 1/1 1/1
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy =HERLE 1/1 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RUEIRIE 1/1 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan FEERLAE 0/1 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERELE 1/1 0/1
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BRE AN o A 1/1 0/1
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior #IELEE 1/1 0/1

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are required to attend general meetings pursuant
to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors were
encouraged to attend the general meetings to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but certain of them were not
in a position to attend the 2016 AGM and the 2016 SGM
due to overseas commitment and pre-arranged business
engagements.

BAE : RIBEEEIATRIZ T RIRICEAG.7
- BUFATEZTRIFNTEEA
HEBRRAE - ARAZEERET
FRTEFEMIFRTEFTHERRAK
g UERAQERRREE - RS
MOEZEBINABEIC RIALIEL
CEBRFERRZBFE T —RNFBRR
BERGR-_ZF-—RERRFHIAE -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

47



48

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the shareholders of the
company to convene a special general
meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
(“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution for the Company’s reference
and consideration, signed by the all Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company will convene a special general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.
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Shareholders rights (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move
a resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate
a statement of not more than one thousand words in
relation to business to be dealt with in any general
meeting to members of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the
written request must state the resolution (preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution), signed by all the Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company and preferably with a copy of such
request sent to the head office of the Company at 9/F.,
Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, and not less than one week in the case of any
other requisition.

The request will be verified by the Branch Share
Registrars. Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, and the
Requisitionists have deposited a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
effect thereto, the Company will send the notice of
resolution or the statement to its members.
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Shareholders’ rights (continued)

iii. Procedures for election of directors of the
Company
The procedures for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.hkcholdings.com.

Communication with shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to its shareholders in accordance with statutory
and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties
recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available on the Company’s website at
www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO attended
the 2016 AGM in the absence of the Chairman of the Board due
to the Chairman’s prior business engagement. Other members
of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees
and the external auditor of the Company also attended the
annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions
from the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,

Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiE - dERERRE

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present
its first annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “ESG Report”) with disclosure reference made to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The ESG Report covers the financial year
ended 31 December 2016.

This ESG Report describes the Group’s environmental, social
and governance management approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives. It explains how the Group complies with the “comply
or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide. This ESG
Report covers the Group’s governance on the Environmental and
Social aspect. The corporate governance aspect is addressed
in more detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Environmental

Through China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"),
the listed subsidiary of the Company, the Group has been one
of the earliest investors in China's renewable energy sector.
As such, the Group has been heavily involved in environmental
protection and support for the low carbon development of
China. CRE has over 660 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei,
Heilongjiang, Gansu and Inner Mongolia provinces. With a total
electricity generation of 1,346.2GWh, CRE has reduced coal
assumption by approximately 1,040,747 tons and carbon
emission by 437,288 tons.

As a responsible property developer, the Group strictly
complies with laws, regulations and good practices regarding
environmental protection. During the construction stage, the
Group has ensured that its contractors have complied with the
laws and contractual requirements in respect to environmental
protection and construction safety standards (3XEAET). The
Group also endeavours to minimize environmental impact as
early as the design stage by adopting eco-friendly and energy
efficient designs.
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BRI HERERRE

Environmental (continued)

Emissions

Pollutants are generated in the process construction of all
property development projects. These mainly include: (i)
various kinds of machinery noise; (ii) dust and exhaust, and
also gas emitted from organic waste left during renovation; (iii)
wastewater generated from construction sites and domestic
sewage generated by construction workers; and (iv) remaining
waste material left in the construction site and garbage
disposed of by construction workers. All these will adversely
affect the surrounding environment. Corresponding pollution
prevention and environmental management measures have been
taken to reduce such impact.

Noise Emissions

Construction noise come from various kinds of machinery such
as foundation piling machines, excavators, and bulldozers. In
order to reduce the impact to neighbours, the construction
teams are required to take the following measures:

o Operation of machinery with high noise levels are
prohibited during breaks, noon time and night time;
and any extension of operations due to special
circumstances must be reported and approved by the
relevant department.

o Use mechanical equipment with low noise levels or those
equipped with attenuators as much as possible.

° The entrances and exits for the construction trucks at
the construction sites should be arranged at places away
from the sensitive area.
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Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Gas Emissions

Waste gas emission during operation includes mainly the dust
resulting from construction, the exhaust gas emitted from
various construction machinery and transportation vehicles, and
organic waste gas generated during renovation. To minimize the
impact of the dust to the surrounding atmosphere, the Group
has adopted the following measures:

o Construction sites should be 100% enclosed, and road
surfaces within the construction sites should be 100%
hardened.

o Certain wetness should be maintained during the

excavation and drilling process by watering the operation
surface; watering should be carried out regularly on
loose and dry soil in the construction site; and proper
watering should be carried out on the dry surface of soil
when backfilling the soil.

o Dedicated locations should be set up with enclosures
for the stacking and storing of building materials and
misplacements are not allowed. Unwanted and spoiled
materials should be transported away as soon as
possible and accumulation of such waste is not allowed.
When not used, sand and soil in the construction site
should be 100% covered.

o When not in use, machinery should be turned off to
reduce the generation of exhaust gas from combustion.
During the construction process, using disposed building
materials as fuel is strictly prohibited. Accommodation
and canteen facilities should not be set up on
construction sites.
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BRI HERERRE

Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Wastewater Emissions

Wastewater discharged during operation mainly comes
from surface runoff of heavy rain, domestic sewage from
construction workers, and waste water from rinsing of the
ground surface. In order to minimize the impact of wastewater
discharged during operation, the Group has adopted the
following measures:

o Wastewater generated during foundation piling work
must be treated immediately by paying attention to
dredging and discharge management. Pollutants in
wastewater generated from the washing and rinsing
of machinery and construction vehicles are mainly
suspended solids. The rinsing and washing facilities
should be set up at designated locations. The ground
surface water ditches should be directed to temporary
sedimentation tanks.

o Muddy water generated during operation and sludge
produced by punching pile drivers and bored piles must
not be discharged without treatment. Temporary settling
basins should be provided at backfill dumps and at
locations where sludge is produced. Discharge of rain
water containing sediments and muddy water must be
organized and planned. They should only be discharged
after all solid particles have settled in the settling basins
so as to prevent any sewer blockage.
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Environmental (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Solid wastes emissions

Solid waste generated during construction consists of large
quantities of silt, muck, and sludge resulting from surface
excavation. There is residual waste construction materials and
domestic garbage from workers. Resided waste such as mortar
surface cement, interior and exterior wall coating, plastic,
flexible packaging, scrap metal wire, sawdust, etc, is also
generated from renovation. In order to reduce the accumulation
of solid waste during the construction period as well as the
impact to the environment during transportation, the following
measures should be taken:

o Different types of solid waste generated from
construction should be placed separated.

o Domestic garbage should be regularly cleaned and
delivered to the environmental health department.

o Construction waste that may cause airborne dust should
be covered with an enclosure.

o Waste should be only dumped in landfill sites designated
by the relevant authorities.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources

The Group has incorporated energy saving and eco-friendly
designs in its residential and commercial developments so as
to protect the environment and improve air quality within the
community. Such designs include:

o Occupancy sensors to turn off lighting in common areas.

o LED and energy saving lighting.

o Water cooled chillers (in lieu of air cooled chillers).

o Air purification system that filters PM2.5 particles to
provide superior indoor air quality.

o Smart temperature control and fresh air system that
cleans and renews air while realizing energy saving.

o Ground Source Heat Pumps.

o Lifts and escalators with variable voltage variable
frequency drives to save energy.

o Variable speed drive in electrical system to allow supply
on demand for motor driven systems to save energy
in water supply systems, chilled water pumps and
condensed water pumps.

o Low-E insulated glass to reduce reliance on air-
conditioning.

o Provision of roller blinds for office tenants.

. South-North natural ventilation concept (FEit3@%E)

included in living room design.

o Provision of balconies and sky gardens in residential
units to improve air ventilation and capture of daylight.

The Group is also planning to install electric vehicles chargers to
carparks and solar panels in some of its properties.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources (continued)

The Group is also committed to implementing energy
conservation and environmental protection measures in its
offices:

Water resources control

The Group educates each employee to save water, and
to encourage the reuse of water in order to reduce water
consumption, so as to reduce sewage from the source.

The Group is committed to the guarantee of water supply
installation and maintenance, and to ensure that water
supply is always available. When leakage is discovered, it
will be quickly repaired.

Electricity control

The use of electricity in production must strictly
comply with the Electricity Power Law of the PRC,
encouraging power saving, safety, high efficiency and
low consumption.

Lights and electrical appliances in workplace must be
turned off when not in use.

Every member of the staff and management must turn off
the power for each department’s computers, photocopy
machines and printers machines when they are off duty
or on leave.

Staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning
in meeting rooms and to turn off the computer at the
workstation when it is not in use. The room temperature
is maintained at 25°C to save energy.

To ensure no unnecessary use of resources at
production lines.
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Environmental (continued)

Use of resources (continued)

Office consumables consumption management

o The Group encourages employees to reduce the use
of paper by assessing the necessity of printing, by
encouraging duplex printing where appropriate, and by
reusing the blank side of single-side printed paper.

o No printing and photocopying of materials unrelated to
work.

o Based on these energy use efficiency initiatives, use of
resources can be effectively controlled and efficiently
reduced.

The environment and natural resources

The Group is committed to minimizing environmental impact
from its property developments. Building layouts and heights
are optimized and subject to rigorous sunlight analysis to
avoid reduction in sunlight hours to neighbours. Extensive soft
landscaping have been provided to create a green environment
for building users and neighbours. The concept of vehicles and
pedestrian separation (AE%7) are included in the design of
all open areas. The overall project designs focus on minimizing
environmental impact and fitting in with the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilizing natural resources. The properties
should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated into nature,
with high energy efficiency and should not harm the local eco-
system.

Social

The Group regards people as its most important asset. Over
the years, the Group has put considerable effort to provide a
safe and healthy staff environment for its employees. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive package of benefits to
attract and retain talent.
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Social (continued)

Employment

The Group has adopted an “Employee Handbook” which
sets out the practices and policies of human resources. The
Employee Handbook is in compliance with PRC Labour law, PRC
Labour Contract Law, Hong Kong employment laws, and other
relevant laws and regulations. The Employee Handbook covers
areas such as compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity, and other
benefits and welfare for the benefit of the employees.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics.
Regardless of race, color, descent, ethnic background,
ethnic origin, gender, age, nationality, disability, veteran
status, citizenship and religion, all job applicants and current
employees enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment. The
Group values the input and contributions made by employees of
all backgrounds.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, effective and
congenial work environment. Adequate arrangements, training
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. Different safety-related
initiatives and measures have been rolled out in the Group's
operations. Risk assessments are also conducted to identify
risks in special working environments, while detailed safety
instructions have been formulated and communicated to
workers as part of their safety training sessions. For employees
working on construction sites, safety equipment such as safety
helmets, safety shoes, ear plugs and dusk masks are provided.
Safety officers are appointed by the main contractors to
coordinate and communicate safety-related matters to workers
on site.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Social (continued)

Development and training

The Group encourages employees to attend training and
development programs to strengthen their job skills, to update
their professionalism, to improve their operational efficiency and
productivity, and to develop their potential and other talents.
In addition, the Group encourages and assists employees
to further develop their technical or professional standards
knowledge by sponsoring them for professional membership.
All applications for membership fee reimbursement will be
considered depending on their degree of importance to
the employee’s job and their relevance to the operational
requirements of the employee’s department. Continuous
professional development training for directors and senior
management are required and the Group encourages them to
attend training programs organised by various professional
bodies.

Labour standards

The Group’s employment practices has strictly complied with
the Labor Contract law of PRC, the Hong Kong employment laws
and other relevant laws and regulations to avoid child or forced
labour and other potential irregularities. During recruitment,
all job applicants are required to complete a job application
form and declare that all personal data provided (including
age and personal particulars) are true and correct. The Group
undertakes a detailed job reference check, if needed.

Supply chain management

The Group is committed to ensuring that its supply chain
management is socially responsible. The Group has adopted
procurement procedures to identify eligible bidders. Factors
considered include: company size, financial strength, statutory
qualifications, reputation, previous track record and ongoing
projects. Satisfaction of past co-operation is also an important
determining factor.

Suppliers are chosen based on the supplier’s continuous ability
to guarantee satisfactory product quantity and quality, price,
and ability to deliver services on time. The Group closely
monitors supplier’s performance and provides feedback where
necessary.
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Social (continued)

Product responsibility

The Group’s construction of office and residential properties
have been closely supervised by internal and external
professionals. The Group and its consultants and contractors
strictly adhered to the national and local standards and the
respective codes for construction inspection and acceptance.
During the construction process, the Group and its consultants
conducted systematic inspection and acceptance on each part
of the construction.

Strict procedures in respect to examination and rectification
have been carried out in the handover of properties to
purchasers. Customer service teams have also been set up to
resolve queries from customers.

Maintaining high quality and standards are crucial to the
Group’s sustainable development. Reliability, safety and quality
of our energy generation are crucial to the Group’s success.
Therefore, maintaining consistency in quality and precision of
our energy generation are the Group’s major priorities.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.

Anti-corruption

The Group has issued the “Code of Conduct & Business
Ethics” (the “Code”) to all the directors and employees of the
Group and the Code has been uploaded on to the Company’s
website. The Code sets out the principles to guide the directors
and employees of the Group to conduct business affairs in
accordance with the highest business ethical standards. The
Group strives to preserve honesty, fairness and impartiality. In
accordance with the “Whistle-blowing Guideline”, all employees
can report for investigation any suspected bribery, extortion,
fraudulent and money laundering cases. Once confirmed, it
will be reported to the police or other regulatory bodies for
prosecution. The Group has also issued a “Policy on Advantages
Handling” with regard to guidelines for soliciting, accepting or
offering advantages and gifts by the directors and employees.
The Policy also provides guidelines for the avoidance of any
potential conflicts of interest or breaches of any local laws,
rules or regulations.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle, relevant
laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Social (continued)

Community investment

The Group is committed to participating in the community
where we operate with an aim to improve the community’s well-
being. Through the hiring of locals using market compatible
remuneration packages, the Group is able to share its
operational returns with the local community and to contribute
back to the society. The Company donated personal computers
and notebooks to Caritas Computer Workshop for recycling and
environmental caring purpose so that refurbished computers
will be provided to NGOs and the needy people at an affordable
price.

The Group will explore other means to contribute more to the
environment and to society once the Group achieves higher
profitability. To create shared values with the community and
stakeholders, the Group will continue to consider ESG factors in
selecting future investment projects.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Principal activities and geographical analysis
of operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment and renewable energy investment and operation.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint
ventures are set out in pages 247 to 255 of the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2016 by geographical and business segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 97
and 98.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK8 cents (2015: Nil) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2016 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 2 June
2017. Subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting which will be held
on Tuesday, 23 May 2017, the final dividend will be paid on
Tuesday, 20 June 2017.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the section headed "Management
Discussion and Analysis" on pages 10 to 21 of this annual
report.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
The Group have complied the relevant laws and regulations
during the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal properties
Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 257 to 260.
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EEEHREE

Share issued in the year

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction against
such rights under the law of Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40 and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2016, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution was HK$730.7 million
(2015: HKS730.7 million), calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 256.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donation (2015: Nil).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director
OEl Tjie Goan (Chairman)

Executive Directors

OEl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

CHENG Yuk Wo

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
OEl Tjie Goan, Mr. LEE Shiu Lee, Daniel and Mr. WONG Jake
Leong, Sammy will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers that all
of them to be independent.

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s
fees with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the
Company, and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to HK$100,000.

Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Share option schemes

Share options of the company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

EEwm)

BERNAAIMEIESSE  EERLE -
TEREEREERTEBR ARG FE
ERRERAFAS([RRAFRNE |)HRE
f;‘;i& T EERUBEEEEETE

ARAERBEEEHERZMER QA
([BE AT ) )R85 Em AR RISE 3. 13 R%E %
EBIUFATESTZ2FREBILENER
B ARRRSERBIUIFNTESY
RBIAL o

RAAREHRITESEREIETEREER
BERENERE-_ZE—TF—H A
LEEESZHE  HEERTRAMA AT
Bl e RBE_T—RFT+A=1—
i¢¢§ BRMEZEEHE /100,000
7BJC °

EERBEH
BEREERRAFAGEEEE &
SRR R o H AT P A A RT S A
ERTR—FRATARIEMBARE
RIS &K CRERKERIL) -

BB AERT &

RREZBRAE
RARARRZZEZERFANATNBHER
BEBKRETE ([ EEERBEBRES
2l]) -  BEERBREASIFBEIIWN
™

(a) H®
FEENREZELRBEESFSZEE
BAT(EERTX) RRSIEHAE
B E TR B AR A R
mZEMER(KREER])EEE
ZANER ERREHEESESE
BATERSARB 2 A E#EZ -
BREEFHAEESIRETER 2L
RFIEHZERER - WE—FHK
BIRREZEEERATEERNK
SEIREEBREKNELR
B o

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

65



66

Report of the Directors

EEEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)
Share options of the company (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue
The HKC Option Scheme was expired on 16 June 2016.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not
exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue and not exceed HKS5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.
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ESEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)
Share options of the company (continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HKS1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Remaining life
The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and has
been expired on 16 June 2016.

All the outstanding share options under the HKC Option Scheme
were lapsed on 7 May 2015, the closing date of the mandatory
unconditional cash offers (the "Offers"). Details of the Offers
were set out in the composite offer and response document
dated 16 April 2015 jointly issued by the Company and Creator
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2016 under the HKC Option Scheme.
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EEEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)

Share options of subsidiary of the company

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE"), a
subsidiary of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the
“CRE Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the CRE Group
or any entity in which any member of the CRE Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested
Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions of
the Eligible Persons to the growth of the CRE Group or
Invested Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to
obtain ownership interest in CRE and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue
to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of
the CRE Group or Invested Entities.

(b)  Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors of CRE,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the CRE Group or any Invested Entity.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of CRE available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent approximately 3.24% of the issued
share capital of CRE as at the date of this Annual Report.
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ESEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)
Share options of subsidiary of the company
(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The total number of shares of CRE issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of CRE in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of CRE must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of CRE in issue and not exceed
HKS5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as
the board of directors of CRE may specify at the time of
grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of
directors of CRE must specify the minimum period(s), if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.00 must be
paid upon acceptance.
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EEEHREE

Share option schemes (continued)

Share options of subsidiary of the company

(continued)

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(i) Remaining life
The CRE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.

No share option is outstanding under the CRE Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2016.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2016 under the CRE Option
Scheme.
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ESEHREE

Directors’ interests in securities EERNESFZ2ES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the WR—-—ZT—XE+-_A=+—H K&=
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, RARXAFTEFTH A SR AN TS ET
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its  {AJ#REHEAE (T &E BB A5 L HE GG ([ F
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the % R ERE &/ |) ) EXVIL 2 %5 - HHEAR%
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded inthe M NREHFTEE B REA5 LB EEM
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or 352N EF B K B B 2 #E 25 &K
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange & : skiRIE AR AN B EL4 ~ |- 70 5 Bl Bt &%
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by -+ F(& T EITAESETBETHE
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in {ZEXEFR|([ZXEFE| ) B EBAAE AN

z

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were & KBS 7 i MR BT ¢
as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying (i) MEQ2TRGREBERD
shares of the company: =

Approximate
Number of shares percentage of the

and underlying existing issued

shares of share capital of

Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company

HERARRE

FARRHG K SRITRA

Exspns BEME HEROHA BMABFDE

OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 335,979,938t 63.532%
=] NS

Joint 8,042,9872 1.521%
X

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 7,2003 0.001%
¥k fEA

WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 3,348,0004 0.633%
BER fEA

EERRER)ARAR ZB—REFFH 71
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EEaREE
Directors’ interests in securities (continued) BEENEF2ERS®
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying (ii) MARQTFEEZERSKRER
shares of associated corporation of the B ZFRE :
Company:
Approximate
Number of shares percentage of the
and underlying existing issued
Name of shares of the share capital of
associated associated the associated
corporation Name of Directors Nature of interest corporation corporation
B EERE
M ZE 2RO K ERITRE
BB EE SR EEpns EEME HEROHA BHABESE
China Renewable OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 1,702,525,811° 72.252%
Energy [l NS
Investment
Limited (“CRE")
HE BRI E Joint 26,899,439¢ 1.142%
ERRA] $[H)
(THEBEERER])
Notes: MisE :
1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents 1. EM L EZ A REEIEREE

an interest in 192,767,407 shares of the Company held
by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and an interest
in 143,212,531shares of the Company held by Genesis
Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”). Both Creator and
Genesis are wholly-owned by Claudio Holdings Limited
(“Claudio”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric.

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an

interest in 8,042,987 shares of the Company jointly
held with his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.
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ESEHREE

Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the
Company: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. The personal interest of Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
represents an interest in 7,200 shares of the Company.

4, The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy
represents an interest in 3,348,000 shares of the
Company.

o8 Since as at 31 December 2016, the Company was held
as to approximately 63.53% by Claudio (via its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares of CRE in which the Company is interested. The
corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents (i)
an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares of CRE held by the
Company; (i) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of CRE
held by Genesis; and (iii) an interest in 150,918,990
shares of CRE held by Creator.

6. The joint interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 26,899,439 shares of CRE jointly held with
his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.
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BHH6353%(FBEREEEWES
~aelEKEZ|) - mClaudio
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Ml EWRABRE —#HARQ
REEEERZTRHBEER
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EEEHREE

Directors’ right to acquire shares or
debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in competing businesses
Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar
Mas, a company together with its subsidiaries, associates,
including Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd., and its holding
companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are engaged in,
among other things, general trading and property development
and investment. Save as disclosed above, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is
not interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a member of the Oei Family and the
son of Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the
Sinar Mas Group. Having considered that the Company itself has
its own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate its
business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel and Mr.
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are executive directors of CRE
whose principal business activities are renewable energy
business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.
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ESEHREE

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interests in contracts of significance

Save as disclosed under the sections “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Report of Directors and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in
securities

At 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest

EERERRRREASHZE
ini

H$E$A* EZ I HERERS |-
KR e M HmRMEI8 2 [RIHETT 2
%Jﬁ)ﬂ&s&%@l\ C RERKFREAE
C RRBSREAL MM B AR ERT L
T?cﬂé%ﬁ&%?ﬁ&%ﬁiﬁ%\ ZE
REHK)

FERRRES Z2ER
RZE—R"F+A=+—8B ' UTA

T(RRAEFHEEZTRABRINK
RRBZ B ARG A EE L
R H KB RPIFEI6EREFENE
ﬂEﬁZ*& RIORE

REQXTARGREERG 2HFE

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital of
the Company

Number of shares
and underlying
shares of

the Company

ERDREE
biNNET &7 9 BRITRAE
RRES 218 ERftE HERGEE BABFDL
OEl Valonia Lau Family 335,979,938! 63.532%
2z ENI
Joint 8,042,9872 1.521%
Gl
Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 335,979,938 63.532%
EnlEAA
Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 192,767,407¢ 36.451%
BlEREBRAA EnBEA
Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner 143,212,531° 27.081%

FEEBARRAT

EnEAA
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EEEHREE

Substantial shareholders’ interests in
securities (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

Notes:

Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
is taken to be interested (as detailed in "Directors' Interests in
Securities" section above).

The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 8,042,987 shares of the Company jointly held with her
husband, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in
192,767,407 shares of the Company held by Creator and
an interest in 143,212,531 shares of the Company held by
Genesis. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the sole director of Claudio.

The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
192,767,407 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau are directors of Creator.

The beneficial interest of Genesis includes an interest in
143,212,531 shares of the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are directors of Genesis.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
Directors and chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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ESEHREE

Related party transactions

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain
transactions in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which were “Related Parties Transactions”,
the details of which are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Some of these transactions also constitute
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under the Listing Rules as
summarized below.

Continuing connected transactions
Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year are set out below:

(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its
wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in
respect of project loan facilities granted by banks to
the relevant project companies, which are subsidiaries
of CRE (the “Guarantees”). CRE is a subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and his
associates held approximately 19.26% direct interest
in CRE as at 31 December 2016. The provision of the
Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirement under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September
2011.
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EEEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EHERER S @)
(i) Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (i) O P B BEERERZHE A TR
(continued) HIER @)
The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out BERZEZEFEHINOT :
below:
(1)  Date . 28 August 2006
=R —EERFENAZFTNAB

Project company
(borrower)
HERARI(ET)

Amount secured
EReEE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

ENmE 2 ERK
ESJEE S

s ME N E (T ) AR AR (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company

Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
DMNRNEEMTI)ERAR - BRIATEBLERERZIEZEWBA
E—J o

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the lending bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests
accrued and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan
facility.

MULEE ARIFTEL 2 ERIABITAREA BREEEFHBEE TE
FRITEWLERRCABNE  PREFBMEBETIAS « EFAERE
fth 518 « BIR R ETFREE ©

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$222 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the related advancement (and, in relation to an extended term agreed by
lending bank, on each anniversary of the date falling immediately after the
original maturity date) based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect
as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RAERERERZEFREE A ARK200,000,0007T (4£9222,000,000%
L) c BEFATHER  REEBFRBRIIHECEBEFENEGTE - £2E4
BARBRITHERSERFHCER I EEFRETF - IHBEWZEM]
B FMEBFREPEARBITEFERIEENE  REBERRZET—
BAEEH (UREXRBRTHECERPHE  BERINBRARCES—HFE
H) REFHE -

As at 31 December 2016, the total outstanding principal was RMB74

million (approximately HKS82 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was

for the same amount.

RZBE-—RF+ZA=1+—H REEXE2ETELRARK74,000,0007T
(#82,000,0007%7T) - FEREEIREER -

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement, with the final maturity date falling on
30 August 2021.

EREWZERTE  EFREFRHAASEESE  EINHAR-ZT=_—FN
A=+H-
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ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EHERER S @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

(continued)

(2)

Date
A &

Project company
(borrower)
HE A (EFH)

Amount secured
BEREEE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

ENRRE 2 ERR
ZHA B

(i) MFEBEEFEZHEARR
HER @

: 3 March 2006

—FEAE=A=A

D BAERNEE(BE)AR A A (Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company

Limited), which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
EERNEBEE(BR)BRAT BAATRBEERZIEZEMBAR -

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and losses, damages and other monies payable under the loan facility.
MULEE ARIFER 2 BRIVABRITAZEA BREEEFRMEE TR
TEKEEARIZENE  BEEXREETAS « BT F B XESE -
B R H AR R -

The loan in the sum of RMB200 million (approximately HK$222 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest, settled quarterly, at such annual rate as agreed with lending
bank, determined by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the
same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on
each anniversary of the date of related advancement (and, in relation to
an extended term agreed by lending bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original maturity date) based on the PBOC
Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
RAERLRERZER4ERE A AR 200,000,000t (4222,000,000%
L) c ERATHER  REGREBRTHELBE@AFTANETEWIEEE
B K2EPBARBOHRARSEARFH BER 2 AEREETF - L6
BWFEAMAIR - FIREREPRARBITERERCEEFE  REHER
ReB—HAFEH (UREXBRTHECEREHE  BERRIBAKZE
—RFER) BFRAE -

As at 31 December 2016, the total outstanding principal was RMB74

million (approximately HKS82 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was

for the same amount.

RZE—ARF+ZA=1+—H0 KREELSBTEAEARKET74,000,0007T
(#82,000,0007%7) -~ EREEIREER -

. The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
final maturity date falling on 27 February 2021.
REFBNIZBERZAT  ERRERARNSHERE REIBEE A=
B_—f-_A-++tBH-

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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EEEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EHERER S @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

(continued)

(3)

Date
A &3

Project company
(borrower)
HBERAF (BAH)

Amount secured
EREEE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

BERRE 2 ER K
ZHA B

(i) MTEBEEREZHEARR
HER

: 22 December 2008

—EENF+ZA=+=H

» BREITEEIRIUF EiEREE AR A A (Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi

Wind Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE.
B RN FEEREEGRAR - BAIRTHBLERC 2EMBER
7 o

. The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the

bank to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to
the bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued
and other losses, damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
MULEE ARIFTER ZERIVABRITAZEA  BREEEFHBMEE TR
TEKEEARZMENE  BEERBMEBETIAS « B A B REME
B BRREMNRE -

The loan in the sum of RMB300 million (approximately HK$333 million)
was originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried
interest at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined
by reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and
tenure. The interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of
the date of related advancement based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then
in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.

BB RER B 42% A AR300,000,0007T (47333,000,0007%
7)) c ERATHEN  REEZRRITHEZLBBFENERTE  £2EH
BARBRITHERSERRFHERZEEFRET - LR EHHTE
B FIRERBEFEARBRITERERZEENE  REERR2E—R
FEREFHE -

As at 31 December 2016, the total outstanding principal was RMB146

million (approximately HK$162 million); and the extent of the Guarantee

was for the same amount.

RZE—RNF+ZA=+—0 ' KEELSLTAARK146,000,0007T
(#7162,000,000%7T)  ERSEISHER -

: The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan

as provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the
final maturity date falling on 22 December 2021.
REFBNZBERZAT  ERRERBARNHERE  EIBEE AT
T-_—F+=ZA=+=H-
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected transactions
The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company were given sufficient information to discharge
their duties in monitoring the continuing connected
transactions described above (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”). The Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company had assessed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
the Continuing Connected Transactions and on normal
commercial terms. The internal audit had reviewed the
Continuing Connected Transactions and the internal
control procedures and provide the finds to the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
to assist them in performing their annual review, The
internal control systems and procedures of the Company
had provided an internal audit function to ensure that the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
had sufficient information to properly review the
Continuing Connected Transactions. The Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company had ensured
that the methods and procedures established by the
Group are sufficient to ensure that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests of
the Group and its minority shareholders and appropriate
internal control procedures are in place and the Group's
internal audit would review the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

8
(i)

BRERS @)
LA EBERERZHE QTR

IR E)
BIUFHTEESHFEBRBERZZ
ARNBBIYIENTEETERERD
BE - UBTREEER FiliE
AEXZ(HEEERS ) FHEZ
BE  -ARABYIERTEEDFT
T OBEBEBERSNREERER
BRX S ZABREERE—REE
IEFETT - REEFH BRI T
BRAER I MAETRRF - WME
ANABVBIYIFFRTEEERER
BN EEITFEEER - ADRAZ
EERAGELAEFEBEANBETR
Bt AIRER A A RIBIMIEMITES
EREZT S ERUNLZESBFER
BRH o RARIBUFERITEESE
R ANEEFHENGERERF
RARBRFEBEER Z L —MKE
¥EFETATEREAEERE
DEIRE N - WEFBEE X
BRI N 0 B ANEBAEEE I
Pl el iHERERTS
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Report of the Directors

EEEHREE

Continuing connected transactions (continued) EHERER S @)

(i)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE
(continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive
Directors on the continuing connected transactions
(continued)

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and approved the Continuing Connected
Transactions and confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were carried out in accordance
with the following principles:

(i)

6] A B BB A gE R 2 [ B A Bl 1R
HiER @)
BIUHTESHRFERERZZ
BERE)

RIE LM ARRIEL14A550% » AR
BB FMITERC B R ER
Toi A TR BIHETT

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the (a) RAREE—ABEBLF
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable (b) THAM(KE)BIE=T
than terms available to (or from) independent third B —MREEER
parties;

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing the Continuing Connected
Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Report from the auditor on the continuing
connected transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with the Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Management contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

Major customers and suppliers

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the
year attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 47%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 66%
Sales

The largest customer 6%
Five largest customers in aggregate 10%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of
their associates, or shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the company’s
listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

BEEN

Brir e MR I8 BERE T X 5 | AT
ﬁﬁﬁ%?l\ F ARBRFEAIL EET L
BEEAABARBZBREAENEED
X ERRITHAHR

FEEFRHKES
AEETEHERLEPRFARMBELRE
BEERELHER  ANLAT

BEHE
RARER 47%
TAREEAE 66%
HER
RREP 6%
AREFAF 10%

REXEEEN  EF  REEABE
ATHARBBR(BEZAAEB AR
AR EITRAEBES%E ) BN Ll AE
BARHEHH T PP HEA TR -

BE  HEIEEAQF LTRSS
BE-_ZF-A"Ft+-A=+—HBLL#F

B AR AN E R P& EAEWE%
B HEIBEARREM EHES

BEER(ER)AERA

F- EFR
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EEEHREE

Share consolidation

On 22 August 2016, the Board proposed that every 25 issued
and unissued existing ordinary shares of par value of HKS0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated into
1 consolidated share of par value of HK$0.25 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”). Other than
the relevant expenses, including but not limited to professional
fees and printing charges incurred, the implementation of the
Share Consolidation would not alter the underlying assets,
business, operations, management or financial position
of the Company. The Share Consolidation was conditional
upon: (1) the passing of the necessary ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company to approve the Share
Consolidation at a special general meeting of the Company; (2)
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and the permission
to deal in, the consolidated shares in issue upon the Share
Consolidation becoming effective; and (3) the compliance with
the relevant procedures and requirements under the laws of
Bermuda and the Listing Rules to effect the Share Consolidation.
The Share Consolidation was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
on 6 October 2016. As all the conditions precedent to the
Share Consolidation have been fulfilled, the Share Consolidation
became effective on 7 October 2016.

Corporate governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 50.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.

Retirement benefits schemes
Information on the Group's retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

Review of the audited financial statements by
audit committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for
the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to
any of said persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

RUDNREFERE

BERARAMEAHEHEREEHR
M-RABRSHY  ARBRBFEHD
MERE - BIRE EMRBAAREAR
AR EITRM25%IA ERARALRA -
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Update on directors’ information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2016 Interim
Report are set out below:

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited with effect
from 19 December 2016 which had been officially listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange with effect
from 10 January 2017.

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Somerley Capital Holdings Limited with effect from
9 March 2017 which will be officially listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange with effect from 28
March 2017.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEIl Kang, Eric

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

B
pwec

Independent auditor’s report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 97 to 255, which comprise:

- the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2016;

- the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

- the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

- the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

- the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

- the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

B A BE RS
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2280 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwehk.com

LKA B R B ST > 7R PR A S 228

i +852 2280 8888 + L : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwehk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

- Valuation of investment properties held by the Group and
its joint venture

- Recoverability of prepaid land lease payments,
properties under development and properties held for
sale

- Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease
payments related to certain power plants in the Mainland
China, which have impairment indicators.

FARETER

AR E FHERERMHF R HIE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR

Key Audit Matter
BT EIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNMEERRESNSE

Valuation of investment properties held by the
Group and its joint venture
EEERESEATFMBENREMENEE

Refer to note 2.6, 4(a) and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements
BRME AP B RERNE2.6 - 4(a)F16

Management estimated the fair value of the
investment properties held by its subsidiaries and a
joint venture to be HKS9,142 million and HKS3,124
million respectively at 31 December 2016, with a
revaluation gain for the year ended 31 December
2016 recorded in fair value adjustments on
investment properties of HKS607 million and share of
profits less losses of joint ventures of HKS86 million
respectively.

EREMTENBARR —FIEERARFAENKE
VENANFERZZE—R"FTZA=T—B255
9,142,000,000/%7c413,124,000,000/8 T * &=
TE—RF+ZA=+—HILFE  HNREEYER
B E M K A607,000,0005 T - KREE
&€ 5 & &2 Eha 486,000,000 7T °

Independent external valuations are obtained to
support management’s estimates, with income
capitalisation method and residual method being
applied for the valuation of completed investment
properties and investment properties under
development respectively. These valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgements, among other
things, capitalisation rates, fair market rental, market
unit rate, estimated costs to completion, estimated
developer’s profit margins and interest rate.
BREBYIIBHETEERENGEET - 2 RIFEARA
ERENKEZH T I RERPREYELEITHE -
BELHEDRRAREZEEEIELEANHETR LR
BRe& - ERBFEREEE  AFmERS - m5E
EE BRI RA  FEirAZENFERFE -

Due to the significant judgement and estimates
involved, specific audit focus was placed on this area.
R R ERAB AT - BB PRI EZE
g o
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Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation
of investment properties included:
BMREEEHIEEMENEEATHREX2E

Evaluation of the independent external
valuer’'s qualifications, expertise, competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

BB INBEEMAER - EHEEN
RESME

c = p

Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the property industry and
using our valuation specialists; and

REKR MBI ETENBRRE - ERARMNAZH
HESER @ HERANMGERERERRF
MEEMY ARk

Checked, on a sample basis, the published
external market data for the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by the
independent external valuer.

IR FT A RSN EB T 35 & A B ZE T 1 DA %
BN E R AT A R0 sa A B RO ABRE I -

We found that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supported by the available evidence.
BMERMERERANBRREAEXF -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Key Audit Matter
B ET IR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNMEERRESNSHE

Recoverability of prepaid land lease payments, properties
under development and properties held for sale
EALEER  BEDYEREHEEREZWEN
] U 5] 14

Refer to note 2.7, 2.8, 2.9, 4(a), 4(b), 17, 20 and 26
to the consolidated financial statements
B2EGAPETRRNE2.7 - 2.8 2.9 » 4(a)

4(b) - 17 ~ 20%26

Included in the Group’s balance sheet were prepaid
land lease payments, property under development and
properties held for sale which amounted to HKS1,462
million, HKS471 million and HKS2,490 million
respectively as at 31 December 2016 which were
related to property projects in the Mainland China.
BE-_Z—RF+-_A=+—B8 BFEE =%
BEEABERTMAMNLHBEER BEPYE
MIESHE R 2 W= n Rl &1,462,000,0007 7T -
471,000,000/ 7£#12,490,000,000/8 7T + LR B A
HEMEIEEB G -

Given their financial significance, management
assessed the recoverability of prepaid land lease
payments and net realisable value assessment in
respect of the properties under development and held
for sale, taking into account the estimated costs to
completion and estimated net sales value at prevailing
market conditions.

ENEMKESR BEETE T RN LAERAA
W Bl DA R 35 R R ANV SHE i 2 WD 36 WY A B35 )5

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on recoverability of the prepaid land lease,
properties under development and properties held for
sale included:

ARNEREHENIHEER BERMEMEES
A&z MENTRE M E - RAIBTHEXE
AR

o Evaluation of management’s assessment
which was prepared based on the estimated
selling price and cost to completion. We had
benchmarked the estimated selling price, on a
sample basis, to recent transactions or available
market information. While on the construction
cost to completion, we had vouched significant
items to the relevant supporting documents; and
A EEERB AT A HEE EBRMN T TRAE
HHEEE o M AT S BRI R 5
A TS EETT T MALLE - MAETIK
REE  HBAOZE THESAXHFNEES
8 UK

Discussed with management on the latest
status and development plans of the underlying
property projects, such as expected dates

in obtaining the completion certificates and
expected completion dates of the projects.
EEIE [ 51 SR AR Y 3£ 18 B AR AR B Rt

g ERTLIEEMNTETHEMIER EIM
TEETE A -

B WEETRITMSEMH THTEFE TRAF T We found the carrying amounts were supported by the

HERE -

In respect of properties held for sale, management
assessed the recoverability based on the estimated
net sales value at prevailing market conditions.
EHERZR2YHEITH - BEEERBRITMEEGT
EETEE FENG T UKE S5 -

Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The assessment requires
management judgement and estimates.
EAEHHRIB R E R REER s A
B - SHEREER - SR - B EE R E e
fhEt ©

available evidence.
HMBEREMEMNTKREOEEEERH -
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B B AR

Key Audit Matter
BT EIR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNMEERRESNSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepaid land lease
payments related to certain power plants in the
Mainland China, which have impairment indicators
FEAthEEREREENEERETROYE - #
BEkEE EFXEENAS I HEERNRENLY

Refer to note 2.5, 2.7, 2.11(c), 4(c), 17, 18 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements

BRMEEP B RERWNE2.5 + 2.7 ~ 2.11(c) * 4(c)
17 - 18X%19

The Group has certain power plants in the Mainland
China which have incurred operating losses in

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.
Management consider this is an impairment indicator
and performed an impairment assessment on these
power plants accordingly.
HE_Z—RAFR-_ZFT—A"F+A=+—HLF
B BESEETBAMREH—LEER - HET
KEEE EEERRESRENR @ WHELES
RAEST TR ERE o

Under the impairment assessment, management
calculated the recoverable amount under value-in-
use method. The impairment assessment requires
the use of significant management judgement and
estimates, among other things, average annual tariff
increment, future electricity dispatched, contribution
from Certified Emission Reduction and discount rate.
ERREF G BERERBFEREER ATE LTI
O % o BENEAFREEEENNERHE XE
i HABIEFHEBILR - KRHEE - ZERGE
SRAEE -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid land lease payments
related to relevant power plants in the Mainland China
included:

MEEEHREAMEBEEERAE - R RE

B EREENEMN LA ERBETE - B89
THREXEIE

Assessed the impairment assessment
methodology used by the management to
estimate value in use;

AL E IR E AR A R EERB AR ER G
7%
o Assessed the reasonableness of the key

assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant business and industry and with the
involvement of our valuations specialists;

IRAR T AP E A B SR TS F01T 3 AO B AR LA S B P E90

ARBHEERMBE - I HERBRENEGE
IHE :
o Reconciled input data to supporting evidence,

such as approved budgets and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets;

L ABIBMZ FIEER - R TEE 6
AREEELEBEENG N

o Evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis
to assess the potential impact of reasonable
possible downside changes in the key
assumptions.

M EEENSRMES N - AT H R R
EEATRENTINE B ETE -

We found the assumptions made by management

in relation to the value in use assessment to be
supportable based on available evidence.
BIEBEFE - HMER - BEEHFEAEBENFMG
FifEREEEEIH -

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 4c.
ZEEMNEZHASIREEMFAchEIERE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

HifER
BERAREFAHEMEEAR - HitfE
EERFRANMAEERE ETEEK
BEMBRR LR PINZEE RS

BHHSREMBEREANERL TRER
fiER AN THZSFEMERERX
ERAEANEFER

BERPBEEVHERROETT - R
METRMEEMES  FEIEEF -
ZEEMEERTRGAMBHRRANL
PIEESBETATHENBERFEERKR
ERESEUTFFEERBRRANIER -

ERBEMERTHIE - MRBEMAR
HiERFEBEARERRM - HMFE
BEZFEE - -AEEHTHE  BRFPREEM

wE e

EERAEERGSYBHBRREA
EENEE

BERREZERAERBEREGMAE
B EBM B RELER) REFE(RAT]
GO BBERERBEEMPENEGS
s mE - UWHERRRELRE MR
ROBE N FEHRKIFRERME RN
B RHERRAFFFENATEHEE -

ERBEEMBRRE  EFR B
BERERELENED  YHEERBR
THREERBECEAMNEE - URE
AHERLERETEN KFIEZEE
# EEEFRIF LS HpEH
ERNERTSR -

REEAREEE BESENMBHME
BIE -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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PR BV ERTE - BB BEAY#8 SR IR
A AR EE K o

R BB BT ERD TR 001B72
o RPER T BEAY - KRBT FE
BELATE © RN

B EHE RN IREF R AR T B2
RAEMBRRFEEAERRALN
R - REFRAITESA IR T ARY
B - A NERFERAEE D
BB ERBFIERAER -
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BER - ERERL - EERAE
2 £ FE R EEEIREIKEF M
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

s HEERAFELLEIHERHN
SIEEL S o IRIBFTERRERT
B BEESFEESHENER
BRANEATHEEN - KEmAEE
B EEENRELLERENEL
BEXRFEE - MREMA/FEEKX
THEEMN - B BEEZBE®RE
PIRBERAEIEREMHHRET
MEARE REFENKEDS
BCABMEEERRFFERER
R BN Em RN AR E
BHIEFTEREHNEETERE - AW - K
KEREFBAATEESR SEET
RERTERE -

e HESAVBBRRNEBRIERS
A EBNAR  BREEE UK
HAMBBRRESTERBRRIZM
=R

e It EEERNERBIERETHNGY
BEEEDRTRE BHEMNEFTR
BUNFEHGEAUBERRERE
R-HMEE E£EETNA
[ - EEN#T - BPIRBTER
EERIEE -

FREMERES - RPEREERR T
S ETHE  FETH  EXFSE
BE > SREMAERT &5 AT
il R B AR -

BHPEMRBEERREH - HARME
NEBMBYLMENHEBEERERESR
WM FIBRAAIREAEMKARER
ERMBIENFABEBEEMEMEIR
AREERIERT - 18RRI o
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pong Fei Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement

meBmk

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—X"FE+-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—RF —FE—0F
Note HKS Million HKS Million
ihg=2 BEABT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(E31)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue W 3= 5 1,605.2 1,195.5
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,062.5) (825.6)
Gross profit EF 542.7 369.9
Other income Hag A 6 57.4 176.3
Fair value adjustments on KEYE
investment properties N EFHE 16 607.2 (469.8)
Provision for impairment losses on & & {E
assets EER A 7 - (135.6)
Selling and distribution costs $HE & HK AR (49.6) (47.2)
Administrative expenses THEA (174.2) (190.1)
Other and general expenses Hk—%EH (70.1) (57.7)
Operating profit/(loss) gERF(EBE) 9 913.4 (354.2)
Finance income BRI A 10 33.0 32.3
Finance costs A& B 10 (48.5) (85.8)
Finance costs — net BB KA FRE 10 (15.5) (53.5)
Share of profits less losses of FEAG & N A
associates = AR E R 22 98.2 96.4
Share of profit less loss of a joint  FE{E—fE& & QA
venture i AR B 1B 23 82.0 (228.3)
Profit/(loss) before income tax Fﬁ SBADEF,(EB) 1,078.1 (539.6)
Income tax expense CLgaw 13 (599.6) (8.8)
Profit/(loss) for the year from 5}5 BREEKSEEK 2R
continuing operations FEERF(EE) 478.5 (548.4)
Discontinued operations RIS EK
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBRIEEEEK 2
discontinued operations REHM,(EE) 8 111.0 (31.7)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF,(F5E) 589.5 (580.1)

BB

ER(ER)BRAR =8

—NEFFR
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T—~F+-A=t+—BILFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
Note HKS Million HKS Million
M= BEABT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT R,
(EB8) :
Equity holders of the Company RARERFFBA 386.3 (497.7)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR e = 203.2 (82.4)
589.5 (580.1)
Earnings/(loss) per share from ZAEERQATELEFZE
continuing and discontinued AELRBFERE
operations attributable to EBERORIEREHE
equity holders of the Company BZERER
for the year (E58)
(expressed in HK cents per share)  (BILAEILZIR) 14
Basic K
— From continuing operations —REFEREET 52.0 (93.8)
— From discontinued operations —REBERIEEEER 21.0 (6.4)
From profit/(loss) for the year RERFERF,(EE) 73.0 (100.2)
Diluted e
- From continuing operations — REAB B L ETS 51.8 (96.8)
— From discontinued operations —REBRIEREHER 21.0 (6.4)
From profit/(loss) for the year REAFERZHF, (E8) 72.8 (103.2)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEHESER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—X"FE+-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATL
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) for the year  AFE&N (BH/) 5895 (580.1)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  HttZ2E (&E) WA
Items that may be reclassified ARHEBREHIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss B&=WIER
Translation of financial statements of MEGINEB I TR E
foreign operations
— Currency translation differences —ERBmEER (789.4) (857.0)
Reclassification adjustments BN BEAE
— Release of exchange differences upon  — H &1 E A 714 fR R
disposal of subsidiaries N ER (9.7) —
Investments available for sale AHEERE
— Gain in fair value — R FEKE - 0.6
Other comprehensive loss for the year, N FEEH M2 HEEE -
_metoftax mess | (799.1) (856.4)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE 2 HEIEAEE (209.6) (1,436.5)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTEEZmE(ER),
attributable to: WALEEE -
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEA (278.1) (1,229.2)
Non-controlling interests S 68.5 (207.3)
(209.6) (1,436.5)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income REUTEBZERATE
attributable to equity holders of the #HEHEAEGEE
Company arising from: (F#|) WAEE
Continuing operations R B EHETS (389.1) (1,197.5)
Discontinued operations BRI RS 111.0 (31.7)
(278.1) (1,229.2)

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH



Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31 December 2016
RZZE—ARF+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RF —FT—RF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
Note HKS Million HKS Million
Mo EE BEET BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties "EYE 16 9,141.5 8,229.7
Prepaid land lease payments B A E R 17 1,461.5 1,563.2
Property, plant and equipment Y - RN
— Other property, plant and —HME - SR
equipment B 18 1,008.7 1,138.1
— Construction in progress —EETRE 18 7.3 1.1
Intangible assets BEEE 19 0.2 1,098.3
Properties under development BRPYE 20 471.0 489.1
Interests in associates RNl 22 1,180.5 1,189.9
Interest in a joint venture R—E&ERAZ#ER 23 1,925.8 1,892.1
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIftHESREE 24 24.0 24.9
Prepayments and other receivables T8 15t Zx & H b & X 28 84.1 97.1
Total non-current assets kREEEHAEE 15,304.6 15,723.5
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BERPYE 20 - 950.7
Inventories 58 5.9 5.9
Properties held for sale ESHEREZMZE 26 2,490.0 2,809.9
Financial assets at fair value through &~ F{EEE KR
profit or loss ZEMEE 27 12.7 13.4
Trade and other receivables JFEE ST IR R % LA JE R 28 199.9 176.2
Restricted cash ZRHIIRE 29 614.7 614.5
Short-term bank deposits 52 ERSRTT IR K 13.5 4.3
Cash and cash equivalents RERFAEEZEY 30 1,296.3 974.2
Total current assets RBEEARE 4,633.0 5,549.1
Total assets BEEMAK 19,937.6 21,272.6
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2016
RZZE—A"F+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
+=—A=+—-8 +=-—A=+—H
Note HKS Million HKS Million
M aE BHEAR BEBT
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to A2 B iFH AL
equity holders of the Company EXR#E
Share capital N 31 132.2 132.2
Reserves ] 32 11,345.0 11,628.1
Equity attributable to equity ANTESHEEA
holders of the Company Bl 11,477.2 11,760.3
Non-controlling interests IR 2,149.9 2,081.4
Total equity wme®m 13,627.1 138417
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings EE 33 2,238.8 3,011.4
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHARE 35 1,384.5 1,037.9
Total non-current liabilities FrBEfmAE®R 0000 36233 4,049.3
Current liabilities i E=R
Trade and other payables JFE {1 BR SR N HL A B 5 3R 34 1,758.8 2,072.6
Borrowings RN 33 705.6 1,119.4
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRIS R aE 222.8 189.6
Total current liabilities nBeEesE 0000000000 26872 3,381.6
Total liabilites AfFe® 63105 7,430.9
Total equity and liabilities EEhEaEREE 19,937.6 21,272.6
OEl Kang, Eric =M
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER
Directors EBE

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEDSER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T-AE+-A=t-BILEE

Attributable to Non-
equity holders of controlling Total
the Company interests equity
KAFER FER
5B A B BRAE
Note HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
HizE BEATL BEATL BERAL
ovceatlLimay 2015 RSR-RE-A-BEH iR 28 10862
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year AEEHE (497.7) (82.4) (580.1)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Rt 2E(BR) /WA
Translation of financial statements of foreign A& BN EHH K HRK
operations
- Currency translation differences —EHBREEE kY) (732.1) (124.9) (857.0)
Investments available for sale AL ERE
- Gain in fair value - D FEYE 3 0.6 - 0.6
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFE2EEAAE 1292 2073 (14365
Transactions with owners BRANZRS
Exercise of bonus warrants {TBRAT NI 31,32 2735 - 2735
Exercise of share options TERRE RY) 43 - 43
Employee share option benefits ERERIERR RY) 1.0 s 1.0
Release of reserve upon cancelled/lapse of  BRRVER$E /K AES
share options BHRE i 32 0.5 0.5) -
Buy-back of convertible preference shares Bl — B A FETH)
issued by a subsidiary HRRE LK 32 6.8 (103.6) (96.8)
Total transactions with owners ~~ RfmARA4® 000000 861 o4 1820
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-R&E+ZA=+-H
] 11,760.3 2,081.4 13,841.7
BalanceatlJanuary2016 ~ R=F-~E-A-R&HK 117603 20814 138417
Comprehensive income 2HEEA
Profit for the year REE T 386.3 203.2 589.5
Other comprehensive loss Rt EER
Translation of financial statements of BMEENERIBRE
foreign operations
- Currency translation differences -ERREER kY) (654.7) (134.7) (789.4)
Reclassification adjustments BN BHE
- Releases of exchange differences upon —HENBARBER
disposal of subsidiaries EHZR kY) 19.7) - 9.7)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for ~ AEE2E (FB) / WARE
e ey s wg
Total transactions with owners HEBAZR AR - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling ONEERRE
shareholders Ba 9 (5.0) _ (5.0
Balance at 31 December 2006  R—%-A%t-f=t-8
& 11,477.2 2,149.9 13,627.1
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—X"FE+-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HhF
Note HKS$ Million HKS Million
B o BE&AT BEATL
Cash flows from operating REXBMBZRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations REXBERE 39 1,008.9 582.5
Income tax paid, net ENPETEEE (130.7) (83.6)
Net cash generated from operating KEXBFERE F5
activities 878.2 498.9
Cash flows from investing activities Eﬁfi@b ZEERE
Interest received B YA 22.9 22.0
Dividend received B ,%\ 66.6 49.3
Development costs paid for ENERPREME L
investment properties under & R XK
development ‘ \ (463.1) (753.4)
Additions to prepayment for property, 13 - #23 Mk fE - AR
plant and equipment and investment ~ ZEEPIKEWEK
properties under development RBHMATER K (0.1) (123.3)
Purchase of property, plant and ﬁ%/\i’%% s K
equipment (12.1) (41.2)
Proceeds from the disposal of ﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁ%’(
- Prepaid land lease payments and a0 A S ZUA
property, plant and equipment &W% Hes &
AR 1.1 95.8
— Available for sale financial assets aJ T HESHEE - 1.5
- A subsidiary F' (5= PNE 293.7 —
Increase in advances to a joint venture J?Eﬁb R NGIE=E 5.6)
\ (55. -
Increase in short term bank deposits %2 HASR 1717 7% N (9.2) (4.3)
Net cash used in investing activities & /ABIFTHIR &) F 5 (155.8) (753.6)
Cash flows from financing RMETHZRERE
activities N N
Proceeds from exercise of share TR RE 2 TS 5RIA
options - 4.3
Proceeds from exercise of bonus TR AT ) SR AR HE R
warrants Fﬁfﬁm}ﬁ - 273.5
Repayment of bank borrowings and EBERTERRAMER
other loans - - (1,032.2) (1,185.4)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SR &I & (32 10) /&> (35.9) 107.4
Increase in bank borrowings and other  $R71TE R N E b & K& N
loans 5 919.5 1,354.8
Repurchase of convertible preference & [B1— R I B A R 24 1T HY
shares issued by a subsidiary A RARE L IR - (96.8)
Dividends paid to non-controlling EANE 22 S A
shareholders (5.0) -
Interest paid ERFE (185.4) (253.5)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEE(FTA)
financing activities i8R eIRE (339.0) 204.3
Net increase/(decrease) incash BRERBEEZEEY
and cash equivalents OB ) R 383.4 (50.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at A—A—HBHZz2BE N
1 January BeZEEY 974.2 1,102.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXE®) & (61.3) (78.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+—A=+—H2
31 December RekBHaFEY 1,296.3 974.2
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General information

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC") is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment and renewable
energy investment and operation after the completion of
the disposal of infrastructure business (Note 8) in May
2016. The investments of the Group are mainly located in
the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Claudio
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands since 29 January 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of Hong Kong dollars (HKS Million), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 14 March 2017.
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e ISR AR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS").
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instrument) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

On 26 May 2016, the Company as the Vendor's
guarantor and Faithful Investments Limited (the
“Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with an independent third party, Cornerstone
Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to
which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase
(i) the entire issued share capital of HKC Guilin
Expressway Limited (the “Target Company”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor and
(i) the shareholder’s loan owed by the Target
Company to the Vendor (the “Disposal”) at a total
consideration of RMB332,110,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$395,211,000). The Disposal
was completed simultaneously with the signing
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement on 26 May
2016. The operation of the Target Company and
its subsidiary represented the entire business
segment of infrastructure of the Group and its
results are presented in these consolidated
financial statements as discontinued operation.
Certain comparative figures have been re-
presented accordingly.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures
(a) Amended standards adopted by the Group

Annual Annual improvements to
improvements  HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
project cycle

HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 Equity method in
(Amendment) separate financial

statements

HKAS 16 and Clarification of
HKAS 38 acceptable methods
(Amendments)  of depreciation and

amortisation

HKFRS 10, Investment entities:
HKFRS 12 Applying the
and HKAS 28 consolidation
(Amendments)  exception

The adoption of these amendments to
standards and interpretation have no
significant effects on the Group’s financial
information.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)
(b)  Amended standards mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2016 but not currently relevant
to the Group (although they may affect
the accounting for future transactions and
events)

HKAS 16 and Agriculture:

HKAS 41 Bearer plants
(Amendments)
HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions
(Amendment) of interests in joint
operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral
accounts

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)
(c) New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2016 and have not
been early adopted
The following standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation have been
published and are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2017 or later periods,
but the Group has not early adopted them:
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

(c) New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2016 and have not
been early adopted (continued)
The Group has not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation, which have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2016. The Group
has commenced an assessment of the
related impact, but is not yet in a position
to state whether any substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial information
will be resulted.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)
Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method of accounting, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost
of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to share of profits
less losses of associates in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (continued)

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.

Joint ventures

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all
joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor.
The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group's investments in joint
ventures include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any
difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interests in the joint ventures, including
any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

2

FESHTHREME@m)

2.2 HmEEEY
(d »

&
T
ggal
b % i
S
il
o

N
S
o

piii

%
s
K e 5 S i

S
H

TEHF
S
it

w3
w

| F®W]
SRt i i
= Al
Hs=x - )

et S i S

ﬁ%m@m
SN i S ok R
CEBE

(e)

5 [ o>
WE
e

i 535 1> i 5 S 9% 38 (0 2l
H

il

S 0 3 S s T

DHOF Y SHIp B> KCREE

i S W
g
il

._.

=
-
My St

(U2 58 &

LET
Sl

i X5
\r
i

I
S 0D % T DK o T

RN
/|

P
Al

3

-

SN 0 D I
2%

>+
gt

g3
K5y

3
I}H_
S
5

NID
s

\
/

o B tnt = i D 3 e DfF S o R
O i} O Ak 3 20 2 ) i o it

ME S o Op
RIS e

D f

ey
T
- wEBk
i ANTgNee

.

k.
DB B Dl B R B IR 0> 8 T T B -

Ry 2l

N
2
iy
—

O3S A s S5k A ot Bk 18

Stih ot

i

0
D SO > F e e 2

i T

) D 0 Y S D S5 M i S D IR b

IS eSS T DU R A O B
B4 -

a0
\
/

T

g
/

i

(38 1ok Bk 5 20 0D N B 0D B 55 Bt B

Tk D Bt it my 0k 5
2 R IR R 3 DI s D0 T8 o RN

(or PR 20 oA

e
T
BX
Y4
Y

- DM Oy F H B ID R o ST R A s g o)

BE 0y o WD RERDE o W

kDS A | T3
. R

U T o Bt = U3 o g 3
TH_\\H

_W
5
o

=
Lot
i
~—

|

U
oA
> |

mo
U

(U Bt

HY i
S
TR S

B (11
et

el
=T
S

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(e)  Joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management that
makes strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group's
presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars to facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment
Properties are interests in land and buildings
other than investment properties. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease, buildings, electric
utility plant and equipment, other plant and
equipment, comprising plant and machineries,
motor vehicles and furniture and fixtures are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

shorter of remaining
lease term or useful

life
Buildings 50 years
Electric utility plant and 20 years
equipment

Other plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
All direct and indirect costs relating to the
construction of property, plant and equipment,
including borrowing costs during the construction
period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress until such times as the relevant assets
are completed and available for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed
as investment property is carried at fair
value. Where fair value is not determinable,
such investment property under construction
is measured at cost until either its fair value
becomes reliably determinable or construction is
completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition at cost, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by
Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation. The
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments is the fair value
of the property at the date of change in use.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The Group transfers a property from property,
plant and equipment to investment property when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by end of owner-occupation. Any difference
resulting between carrying amount and the fair
value of the property at the date of transfer is
treated as the same way as a revaluation under
HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in income
statement to the extent that it reverses a previous
impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognised in other comprehensive income
and increase directly to equity in revaluation
surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is initially
charged in other comprehensive income against
any previously recognised revaluation surplus,
with any remaining decrease charged to income
statement.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent
prepayments for leasehold land held under
operating leases, which are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in profit or loss. During the course of
the properties development, the amortisation is
included as part of the costs of the properties
under development.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.8

Completed properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are initially measured
at the carrying amount of the property at the
date of reclassification from properties under
development. Properties remaining unsold at the
end of the year are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost comprises land and development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing
market conditions less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the
fair value of the property at the date of change in
use.

2

FESHTHREME@m)
2.8 FHEREZERYE

EHERE 2 MENTRY
ERBERTOEEN DA
BHIZREENE - REHE
BiR AR E 2 EE R AR
AIERFEME < BIEET
BE o

RARBRERDENEN L
REBER o

AR FEEEEERERE
BHR e EEBHREEY
EFREERAR ZBUE

AEBEERRZNEBARE
BRTNHABERAELE
B BEBIREYEE R
EHERZZYE - AR
BEMEBAREREHER
BZMRZRARZMER
R EE R 2 AFE -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.9

2.10

Properties under development
Properties under development including the
properties developed for resale comprises
development cost of properties which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified
under current assets when they are expected to
be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle
and comprise development costs of properties
and the costs paid to acquire land use rights
which are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and professional
fees incurred during the development period.

Construction in progress

Costs directly attributable to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including
borrowing costs during the construction period
are capitalised as the costs of the assets, which
are classified as construction in progress. On
completion, the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction
or upgrade work or the acquisition of the
toll road under the service concession
arrangements of the Group with relevant
local governments are accounted for an
intangible asset if the Group receives a
right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an
units-of-usage basis, making reference
to the proportion of actual traffic volume
achieved for a particular period over the
total projected traffic volume throughout
the periods within which the Group is
granted the rights to operate the toll
road. The total projected volume of the
respective concession right is reviewed
regularly with reference to both internal
and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should
there be a material change.

Land use rights acquired in conjunction
with the service concession arrangement
which the Group has no discretion or
latitude to deploy for other services other
than the use in the service concession are
treated as intangible assets.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Other
intangible assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment and amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of five
years.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.13 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than twelve months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents”
and “restricted cash” in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of the investment within twelve
months of the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date - the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in profit or
loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’'s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in profit or loss as other income or other and
general expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as part of other
income which the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.13

2.14

Financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing the fair value
of unlisted securities, the Group established
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little
as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that
the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against other
expenses in profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
other income in profit or loss.
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e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Borrowing costs (continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.22

2.23

Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is financial liability held for trading. A financial
liability is classified in this category as designated
by the Group upon initial recognition.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.23 Current and deferred income tax

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.24 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Defined contribution plans
The Group uses a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

2

FESHTHREME @)
2.23 ENHA R IR AE FT 1584 (&)

i B SR TE AT 52 Il #0177 4 I
EHTREERENHIAR
B BRERGHEE
MEBBERR-REEEL—
fE=k % ERRRE EREZ
e mMARER
BRFREEHANIER
EXFBHREERARBST
5 R -

2.24 EEEA

(a) EEBRHMEZER
BREEZFZERER
HRBARRINEE
ERZARER - 5
REEHE=#EERZ
RBEEMELEZF
BEERMRBKEZ
A BEEEtIRE
w-BEEREREBLK
ERNEERRET

BHER ©

(b) FEEEHE

7 4 (B 32 45 3% 1 A
BoHE([RES])
RiFzEARLRNE
(TR B ]) 7 Bk AR ST
CEBRKSHE
SRRBEBRTEY
AERERSE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s and the employees’
contributions to the MPF comply with
the related statutory requirements. The
Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior
to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The assets of MPF are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a
percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal
governments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan in
which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price), excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period) and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees
to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to
become exercisable based on the non-
marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business tax and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Revenues from infrastructure and
renewable energy are generated from
electricity supply and the toll road. They
are recognised based on the following:

(a) Revenue from renewable energy
is recognised based on power
dispatched during commercial
operation. Commercial operation
starts when obtaining a Power
Purchase Agreement, safety
certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC”)
or Provincial Grid Authority,
and 240 hours commissioning.
Revenue attributable to the sales
of electricity generated during
construction and testing period
is not included in the electricity
sales revenue, but is offset against
the cost of property, plant and
equipment.

(b) Revenue arising from toll road
is recognised when services are
rendered.

(ii) Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when the risks and rewards
of the properties are passed to the
purchasers. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included
under current liabilities.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

(v) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

(vi) Property management fee income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.

2.27 Leases

(a)

Finance leases (leasee)

Leases that substantially transfer to
the Group all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in liabilities. The finance charges
are charged to the income statement
over the lease periods so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Leases (continued)

(b)  Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from an associate
and a joint venture, restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, derivative financial instrument,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and
other payables, bank loans and loans from non-
controlling shareholders. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
The derivatives held are not for speculative
purpose and cannot be traded in the market.

The Company’s Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

3.1

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the
Mainland China. Entities within
the Group are exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency
that is not the entities’ functional
currency.

The Group currently does not
have any foreign currency
hedging activities. However, the
management of the Group monitors
the foreign exchange exposure
closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars as at
31 December 2016 with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before income tax would have
been HKS$5.8 million higher/lower
(2015: the Group's loss before
income tax have been HK$14.7
million lower/higher).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
due to fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group’s
results and operating cash flows
are substantially dependent of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will
consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the
need arise.

As at 31 December 2016, if
the interest rate had increased/
decreased 100 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax
would have decreased/increased
by HKS$5.3 million (2015: the
Group’s loss before income tax
would have increased/decreased
by HKS$16.3 million).
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk
The Group has minimal exposure to
price risk during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2016.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables, represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated
with restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high credit
quality financial institutions and banks with
high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated
with trade and other receivables, the
Group adopts risk control to assess
the credit quality of the customers and
debtors, taking into account their financial
positions and past experience. The Group
has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

For renewable energy business, the Group
is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales
as the Group’s sales of electricity were
made to state-owned provincial power
grid companies. The Group normally
does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of
30 days to these power grid companies.
However, part of the trade receivables
due from the power grid companies relate
to government subsidy which are subject
to government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based
on past experience and industry practice,
these tariff premiums are generally paid
in 6 to 12 months from the date of the
sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 28. Management makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the
relevant debtors.

Other than renewable energy business,
there is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables from third
party customers as the customer bases
are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group monitors the
exposure to credit risk in respect of
the financial assistance provided to
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
through exercising control significant
influence or joint control (where applicable)
over their financial and operating policy
decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
is unable to meet its current obligations
when they fall due. The Group measures
and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall
assets, liabilities, loans and commitments
of the Group. The Group also maintains
a conservative level of liquid assets to
ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

During the year, the Group complied
with all externally imposed loan covenant
requirements to which it is subject to.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 B 75 [ B B B ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BI¥EEEZE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REBESLEMRGE)
The table below analyses the Group’s TROWMAEE S G
contractual maturity for its financial BEZEHREE -
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the THRBEEZHBTIR
table have been drawn up with reference EREBABANT Z&
to the undiscounted cash flows of the EHHesEBEZXR
financial liabilities based on the earliest BRI S RERR -
date on which the Group can be required to
pay.

Between  Between
Lessthan  land2  2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
-ER -E@E CEEE  RENE b
HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million
BE%AT EE®n EEMT  BEBn  EEER
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+-A=1-A
Borrowings [ 837.0 3909 13697  1,097.8  3,695.4
Trade and other payables TR R E R 1,574.6 - - - 15746
Financial guarantee for credit HEREERERMIBER
facilities granted (Note 38(b) (Fir2E38(b) 106.7 - - - 106.7
Financial guarantee for mortgage  BRETNEERR LA
faciltties granted to certain IR A R AT
property buyers (Note 37(b)) BR(HEE370) 335.5 - - - 3355
At 31 December 2015 RZE-EF+-A=1-A
Borrowings f&3 1,320.6 8773 18653 8035  4:866.7
Trade and other payables ERZRE MR 1811.0 - - - 18110
Financial guarantee for credit SHEREERARBHBER
facilties granted (Note 38(b)) (BitE£38(0)) 1215 - - - 1275
Financial guarantee for mortgage ~ StRBTHEERR LA
facilities granted to certain HERRE R AR
property buyers (Note 37(b)) ER(ME3T(0)) 202.2 - - - 222.2
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, raise new debt
financing, issue new shares, share options and
warrants or conduct share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flows
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments for this
purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is the
aggregate of current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet and
total equity is also as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HXEEREEEE
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EXFAMEEHE)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2016 and RZE—RERZE—AF
2015 were as follows: +-A=1+—HZABEEN
b=
2016 2015
—E—-REF —ZT—h%EF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEATT
Current borrowings mENfE R 705.6 1,119.4
Non-current borrowings FEMEN AN 2,238.8 3,011.4
Total borrowings & R4 %R 2,944.4 4.130.8
Total equity EmER 13,627.1 13,841.7
Gearing ratio BEERL X
(total debt/equity ratio) ([Efs4a%s, HERBE) 21.6% 29.8%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments TRERBBEESEAFE
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The IRz R T HETOMN -
different levels have been defined as follows: TRLZRNFREWT ¢
= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - RAUEHNEEXSE
markets for identical assets or liabilities BRERMIG Z|RE
(level 1). (REFARE)(FBLH) ©
- Inputs other than quoted prices included - RFEIFFTFTAZHRE
within level 1 that are observable for the SN B2 (BB BB
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as ) kEE (BNERE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from REAEE)BREEN
prices) (level 2). BEMBIRAER (5
24%) o
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not —  WIHFERATBERMGH
based on observable market data (that is, B (A IEB RTS8
unobservable inputs) (level 3). ANBEB)ZEESEE

BRAIRRB (F34) -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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e M RRMEE
3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMERBREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMEF @
The following table presents the Group's financial TREINARERARA_-_ZE—X
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair FE+-_A=+—BEAFE
value at 31 December 2016. SAEZERMEENAEG -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR EVE 23R g
HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BERT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HELBEE - 7.2 16.8 24.0
Financial assets at fair value BATFEERRR
through profit or loss Sz S RAE 0.2 - 12,5 12.7
Total assets BEAE 0.2 7.2 29.3 36.7
Liability 8
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RAFEHEBHER
through profit or loss JESREE - - (290.5) (290.5)
Total liability BEAE - - (290.5) (290.5)
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3

Financial risk management (continued) 3 HUXEEEREm
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMEF @
The following table presents the Group’s financial TR AEBAR -_ZET—F
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair FE+-_A=+—BEAFE
value at 31 December 2015. HAEZEMEENEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF FR F3m k]
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Assets BE
Availablefor-sale financial assets A HESREE - 7.2 17.7 24.9
Financial assets at fair value BAHERRRR
through profit or loss Sz S RAE 0.2 - 13.2 13.4
Total assets BENE 0.2 7.2 30.9 383
Liability af
Financial liabilities at fair value ~ RAFEHEBHER
through profit or loss Iz eREE - - 280.7 280.7
Total liability AEAE - - 280.7 280.7

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise primarily equity investments classified
as trading securities under financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

RNEBMEMEESRMTA
ZRFETDREBENGEE B PT
HHISEBRTE o WBR &
ERBBRZH - R5E
R4~ ZHRAER - ME RS
HEERBESRE  BX
FERRBREREEERR
FEEETZHERS 0 A
MG AR RER - NEB
REMEEMAMESRER
ARIZEAE - LETEARD
AL TBEBESE
REAFEERRERIIEKZ
TREERTRHEFZK
KA ©

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair
value measurements within Level 2 and Level 3
are as follows:

3 HEEREREREEm

3.3

Valuation technique

fEE R

AT EME @)

RKEEERMBEESMT
B RV EDNRABHBEEE
o BRESABEMEBEH
B LEHEHFEEEE
AR B R MG EIEI A 5L
WA KRB E B EET o 4
E—EITAZAFERS
B E KN A BUE 2 508 7] &
R OHBETESHTASE2R -

fidd — 1B 2 % B 2 N 8 A BUE
I FEAR A5 A] BR 2R T 35 BUR AT
B AEIASHAREIL -

SRR E IR A TFE B
5 7R 2 £ AT 8 A B
mF

Significant inputs
ER@ABE

Available-for-sale financial
assets (Level 2)
AHEEemEE(F2R)
Available-for-sale financial
assets (Level 3)
AHEEemEE(FEIR)
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Level 3)
BEAFEEEERIEZ
RIEE(F3R)
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (Level 3)

BAVEERRRIIEKZ
TRABEEIR)

Note:

Quoted market prices for
similar instruments

RETANTSRE

Net asset valueMote)

& EFE

Net asset valugtote
EEFEWE

Discounted cash flow

FIRBEME

The Group has determined that the reported

net asset value represents fair value at 31

December 2016 and 2015.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016

Observable quoted market
price

AR5 wE

Not applicable

TEA
Not applicable

NER

Discount rate and expected
recoverable amount of
underlying project

BhIR R R TEHAMAREIE B A
A U Bl FR R

Misk : "EBMEBEMERIZE
EFENRER=-F
—RNERZZE—HEF
+ZA=Z+—HZA¥
=
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HUXEEEREm
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMEF @

Additional information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3):

FEREREIBRENE AR
B (E3%) REFEQFEN
RINER)

Significant
unobservable inputs Range
BEAELABENT AHE &iE
Financial liabilities at fair value Discount rate 10%
through profit or loss®ete AR37 &
BATEEEBRRIEZ Expected recoverable amount Not applicable
ca =Ll of underlying project

TEHAEREIA B &Y A] K m R

NE R

Note: The valuations are performed and reported at
each of the Group’s reporting dates to Group
management. The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value. The higher the expected
recoverable amount of underlying project, the
higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there were no significant transfers of
financial assets between level 1, 2 and 3 fair value
hierarchy classifications.

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

MiaE: RAKRES RS AHNE
THELRAEEEE
EBlER BT
N ERE - RHEH
HEMAMERER

= AFERS

I

0

FA - BEXMELEELS -

AREBE R BRENEHE M
FEHERNBERE LR
ZH BREARBHRF
BER -

BE_T—REk-F—1
FHA=T—ALLEE
AFENBERAS] 2K
MM EBEEZ ML RE
KHE -
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 B 75 [ B B B ()
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEEMLF @)
The fair value of the following financial assets and NTemEERBEZATF
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts: BEHEHEEmMEMRS :
. Trade and other receivables o JEUER SR % H At B WK
. Amount due from an associate, net o EUN—MEEEE R RIFIAEF
|
° Amount due from a joint venture s B —REERRFIEA
° Cash and cash equivalents ° %i\&fﬁi\%{g%
e Restricted cash © XRBIES .
. Trade and other payables * Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ&ﬁmﬁgﬁﬁk
. Borrowings * B
The following table presents the changes in level TRIINBEZFT - FR
3 instruments for the years ended 31 December —F-AF+tZA=1+—H
2016 and 2015. IHFEZEIRTAES) -
Financial Financial
Available- assets at liabilities
for-sale fair value  at fair value
financial through profit through
assets or loss  profit or loss Total
BRAVEE  RAVEE
nHE BRRikrz BERIRZ
SREE SHEE SRERE 8E
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BBAT
At 1 January 2015 W=Z-h%&—f—H 19.6 14.0 (297.8) (264.2)
Disposal LE (1.5) - - (1.5)
Net unrealised gain recognised REZFERZALE
in profit and loss a3 - - 0.4 0.4
Net (loss)/gain recognised in ~~ IAREET R (B1]) /s
reserves ek (0.4) (0.8) 16.7 15.5
At 31 December 2015 R-E-ha%+-A=t-H 17.7 1322 (280.7) (249.8)
At 1 January 2016 RZZE-~¥-A—-H 17.7 13.2 (280.7) (249.8)
Net unrealised loss recognised  INEZFRARZ A HE
in profit and loss BRIS - - (24.9) (24.9)
Net (loss)/gain recognised in AR ET R (851]) /s
reserves HE (0.9) (0.7) 15.1 135
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—r"E+ZA=1-H 16.8 12.5 (290.5) (261.2)
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Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments

The fair value of each investment property,
and the recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments portfolio excluding the property
development projects achieved pre-sales
stage as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, are
individually determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent valuer based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged
to carry out the independent valuation of the
Group’s investment property and prepaid land
lease payments portfolio as at 31 December
2016 and 2015. This valuation was carried
out in accordance with the Valuation Standards
on Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors which defines market value as “the
estimated amount for which a property should
exchange on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”.

ERGEHEET R A E

AEBRBEATERLEMER
(BRHREEHAMELETRITB
ATHEBABZEE) - TS
flat B B 1B R AA

AEBEARREL G RKRR - B
2R /L ZEtEER LA
BERENERGERER - BB —1E
MBREEEEIBEREELRE
KRR 2 A5 LR RE T X

[

it o

(a) BREYHE FASLHHEE
MA W E &5z hE

EREWERAEMN LB
EFXHEA(TBER -
—RNER-ZZT—RF+=A
=+ HDEEEREDN
MERREERB)ATKE SR
ZAFE RELEEBHRB
MG ERMIE T ER G E R &
T RPEHAEBR _-Z
—NEERZZE-—RAFE+=H
=t+—HZEREMERER
T ERE A ETB LG
B ZEENREEFSIE
MeermEGBEELE
17 ZEBEMEZEE A
[ZHERGEEBEEE™
LML AEBEA LA
EEHENE TFERTE
MM ZIBERT  BAFRE
BETRGMARBZHitE
%] o
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s property portfolio by capitalising the
rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market
comparable transactions. The assumptions
are based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date.

For the prepaid land lease payments excluding
the property development projects achieved
pre-sales stage, management determined the
recoverable amount based on the valuation report
prepared by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has valued
the investment properties under development/
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease
payments on the basis that the properties will
be developed in accordance with the information
provided from management. It is assumed that
approvals for the development scheme will be
obtained without any onerous condition which
would affect the value of investment properties
under development/recoverable amount of
prepaid land lease payments. In arriving the
opinion of value, Knight Frank has made reference
to comparable transactions in the locality and
has also taken into account the construction
costs that will be expended to complete the
development and the quality of the completed
development in the development scheme.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

(b)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of prepaid land
lease payments (continued)

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with its own
assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information is
available, and has concluded that the Knight Frank
valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio and prepaid land lease payments is
reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties had
been 10% higher or lower than the value stated
on the valuation report, the fair value adjustment
for the year arising from the Group's investment
properties would have been increased or
decreased by HK$962.1 million (2015: HK$823.0
million).

Provision for properties held for sale,
properties under development and
prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses the carrying amounts
of properties held for sale, properties under
development and prepaid land lease payments
according to their estimated net recoverable
amount based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account of costs to
completion based on past experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be realised. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

4

BAREHEET R HE @)

(a) BREWX FANIHEESE
AT e & 8 il 1 ()

EEECDEMRY 2EE
W E2ERRF2RBAHE
RHBE - BEEEAGH
RRFLE - BRABRRY
HAKBEREMFEHES KIE
Nt HERNEEBS

i o

HWREMEZHERMEE
wEMINEESHHER
10%  AERBAREKRE
MEELEZ AV ERABEE
AnstoR 4> 962,100,000 7T
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BT °

(b) RFHEERB Y= - &
BRRYERAEMNLIHBEAS
M

REBERIZEY R A ] 23R e
HfhFFE AR EFERE - B
AERERBEZROT TR
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associates
Plant and equipment are reviewed by
management for impairment losses whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use of
the plant and equipment. Management makes
judgements on whether such events or changes
in circumstances have occurred, and makes
estimates in determining the recoverable amount.
In the situation where the value in use of plant
and equipment cannot be assessed due to the
uncertainties of the operation model in the
future, management has assessed the respective
recoverable amount solely based on the fair value
less costs to sell. Provision is made when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recovered.

The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associates engaged in the renewable
energy businesses (“Renewable Energy Projects”)
have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy in Note
2.12. The Group reviews certain indicators
of potential impairment such as operating
performance, actual electricity dispatched,
tariff of electricity, market unit price of Certified
Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other general
market conditions.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associates
(continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the
need for recognising an impairment loss is
assessed by comparing the carrying amount of
the assets, to the higher of (i) the fair value less
cost to sell, and (ii) the value-in-use of the cash-
generating units. The value-in-use of the cash-
generating units represents estimated future cash
flows from the continuous use of the assets, and
requires complex assumptions and estimates
such as future electricity dispatched, tariff of
electricity and CER and discount rates. The
discount rates used to discount the estimated
future cash flows are based on the relevant
industry sector risk premium and the gearing
ratio.

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Renewable Energy
Projects which have impairment indicators. The
value-in-use calculation was based on the key
assumptions, including (i) average annual tariff
increment at approximately 2.0% (2015: 2.0%)
based on management’s expectation on market
development and general inflation, (ii) projection
of volume of electricity dispatched based on
the operational feasibility reports and historical
performances, and (iii) assuming the contributions
from CER is of negligible amount. The pre-
tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are 11.38% — 11.50% per annum.
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4

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associates
(continued)

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are higher than their respective carrying amounts.

Judgement is required in the area of impairment.
If there is a significant adverse change in the key
assumptions, it may be necessary to have an
impairment charge to the income statement.

With all other variables held constant, if there
is an average annual tariff increment at 1.0%
(2015: 1.0%) throughout the operating period,
the recoverable amount would be less than the
carrying amount by HKS14.0 million (2015:
HKS$16.8 million). Similarly, with all other variables
held constant, if the volume of electricity
dispatched is 10.0% (2015: 10.0%) less than
management expectation, the recoverable
amount would be less than the carrying amount by
HKS31.7 million (2015: HKS57.6 million).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determined is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
(including but not limited to discounted cash flow
analysis) and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

Determination of fair value of share-
based compensation

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine
the fair value of share options issued during the
year. Under this model, the value of the share
options is subject to a number of assumptions
such as the risk-free interest rate, the expected
life of the options and historical volatility based
on annualised volatility of the closing price of
the share. Therefore the value may be subjective
and would change should any of the assumptions
change.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.
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Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual results
announcement has been prepared in @ manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between
segments. In this regard, the Group is organised into the
following segments: Properties development (for sale or
lease upon completion of construction work), Property
investment and leasing, Renewable energy, Other
operations and Discontinued operations (Infrastructure).

The Group’'s most senior executive management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit/(loss) after interest income
and expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses)
of associates and a joint venture. Corporate expenses
mainly include the employee expenses of the head office,
interest income and expenses arising from the holding
companies and other administrative expenses of the
head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance
sheet assets. Corporate assets mainly include the
cash at bank, property, plant and equipment and other
receivables held by the head office. The assets of
each reportable segment comprise the inter-segment
receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated income statement. Total
segment revenue also represents the Group’s turnover.
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ&(aﬁ)

The segment information for the reportable segments HEZ—RE;A_ZE—HF+—
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as A= —i— HIFEEEZ®HD I 2

follows: DEERT

Continuing operations
b R E
Properties development
EEE
Shanghai Property Total  Discontinued Total
and investment  Renewable Other ~ continuing  operations  reportable
Thejiang ~ Shenyang ~ Tianjin  Jiangmen and leasing  energy  operations  operations (nfrastructure]®  segments
BAL

LER HESY BEle  feEg 724

g
il i b3S IR REE  BERE  RMER EEEE  (BR)  AUHEE
HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS ilion ~ HKS Miion ~ HS Millon ~ HKS Millon  HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million
BEET  FEsn  FERT  EEfT  EEMT  BEET  REEm BEEm TEET EERR

Year ended BECE-AETZR

31 December 2016 Zt-ALEE
Revente from extemd customers— RENNAREZ4E 6.2 4013 5816 3189 166.2 1310 - 16052 U8 16400
Infersegment revenue e - - - - 03 - 42 45 - 45
Total revenue it 6. 4013 581.6 3189 1665 1310 42 16097 Wy 16445
Operating profit EE 5784 9.2 1242 6.5 167.8 5.9 125 10115 13 1,028
Finance income HAA 21 17 14 06 23 36 04 121 0.1 122
Finance costs BEHE - (5.0) 0.6) (10) 6.2) (3L9) - (447) 19.6) 64.3)
Share ofprofits less EhBELd

losses of associaes il - - - - 121 86.1 - 9.2 - 9.2
Share of proftess oss of ~~ Bf-HARAR

ajoit venture e 820 - - - - - - 820 - 820
Netgamondisposalof ~ HEBRIEEREZ

dscontinued operations 34 - - - - - - - - 1192 1192
Profitbefore income tax ~ FERANAR 6625 929 1250 6.1 1760 8.7 129 1151 o 1201
[ncome tax expense iz (145.7) (38.4) 78.3) 81 (3069 (8.6) 33 (5893 - (589.3)
Proft/[loss for the year ~ AEERA/ (B 516.8 h4.5 46.7 20 (1309 5.1 9.6 569.8 1110 680.8
Depreceon & 02) -0 <08 By Y (s - (g
Aot B - - ) -0y ) -y By @)
Farvalue cdstments o~ REMEATEFE

investment properties 592.4 - - - 148 - - 607.2 - 607.2

BREREBR)ERLAR —B—AFFH 173
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Segment information (continued) 5 SEHER@
Continuing operations
BEALEE
Properties development
NEER
Shanghai Property Total ~ Discontinued Tota
and investment  Renewable Ofter ~contining ~~ operafions~ reportable
Ingjang ~ Shenyeng Tiamin~— Jiangmen~ and leasing energy  operations  operations (nastuctrel”  segments
BRE
Lk VESE BElE  mEEp 72§
il 0 iz I REE  BAEE  bxk  sheE (BB S
BESMlon — HESMilon — HESMlon  HESMlion ~ HESMion  HKSMiion — HKSMllon  HKSMilion K Milion ~ HS Milion
BEfT EEEm BBt BEET  REEAT  BEEm BEET  BEET  BEET  EEAT
Year ended HECE-1E1CR
31 December 2015 St-RLEE
Revenue fromexternal -~ TASREF UG
customers 73 193 309.0 790 1520 1329 - 1195 79 1234
ntersegmentrevense  APEME - - - - 04 - 28 32 - 32
Total revenue ey 73 193 300.0 790 1524 1329 28 11987 79 12166
Operating profit/loss) ~ EE&H/(§8) (4325 (1022 135 23 918 538 1059 (295.4) 3.6 (262.8)
Finance income BN 33 1.2 Ll Ll 1.2 6.9 19 164 02 166
Finance costs HERK - (112 (142 (75) (74 (32 08 643 4D (1488
Share of profts less ElE0q
losses of assoclates BilREE - - - - 206 7.8 - %.4 9.4
Share of profitless loss~~ ElE—HALAH
of ajoint venture BHnER (228.3) - - - - - - (83 -y
Proft/[loss| before. SRR/
income tax (B8 575 (1122 04 @y 1062 65.0 000 %2 BL) (29
Income tax (expense)/credt S8 (2i2) /8 9.7 (39.) (143) (38) (36) (75) (352 (8) - (338)
Profit/{loss) for the year  AEEHA /(%) (578 (1513 (139 (129 102.6 515 18 (504.0) BL) (637)
Depreciation il 0.2 6.1) 0.2 0.) 08) (131) 08) (813 02 (6L
Amortisation B = = (208) = (1.0) (0. = (22.9) (19.6) (42.1)
Fair vlue adjustments on R EMF AT{EHE
investment properties (41L.7) = - - (58.1) = - (498) (469.8)
Provision for impairment ~ HESERE
losses - (134) - - = - - (13 (135.6]
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e B EmRME
5 Segment information (continued) 5 o EIBE R @)
Continuing operations
EREERE
Properties development
VECH
Property
Shanghai investment Total Discontinued Total
and and  Renewable Other ~continuing ~ operations  reportable
Thejiang ~ Shenyang  Tianjin  Jiangmen  Shenzhen leasing  energy  operatons operations (nfastuchwe*  segments
BAL
LER S e gexp 7

R i L
1 i R# 1A M RER  BEER  BeRE GBAE (2R ADME
HKS o HKS Milion ~ HKS Miion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion RS Miion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon  HKS Miion ~HKS Millon
FEET BERT REET BEER RREm  RREm  RREM  ERET  REER  RERR  EEAR

Bsat31 December ~ W=E-AEF2A

2016 Zt-A
Totel assefs Eptg 92068 18381 298719 6763 - 44656 19643 26 207416 - 0416
Tod assetsnclude; EEHEERE:
Merestsinassociates  ABENEZER - - - - 06 7099 - 11805 - 11805
Merestimajontventwe~ -EaShdzER 19258 - - - - - - - 1958 - 1958
Totalliabilties A 3362 132 18612 43l - 65 38 - 8410 - 8410
A at3] December  HZ-RETA
215 Sr=1
Totel assefs Epg 8368 21688 3267 6757 1926 44059 20699 64 20828 1101 221929
Toassetsinchle; ~ EEEERE:
Merestsinassociates  AEE0EZER - og4 s - 11899 - 11899
Merestinajontvente A-ERzDAzER 1801 - - - 180l - 18l
Total liabilties Al 2096 16T 24101 409 - 528 6319 BT M7 16T 100634
The Group's infrastructure business was disposed on * REBEREBR_T— A FH
26 May 2016. The result of the infrastructure business A+ "BHEE  -EEZEHBKE_ZT
from 1 January 2016 to 26 May 2016 was classified as —RNF-A—HREZZ—XFHh
discontinued operations accordingly. AZ+ X NBLEHEAZEERmMSE

RERIEEERE -

EBEERZER)BR AR ZBE—XREFEHK 175
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5 Segment information (continued) 5
A reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year of reportable
segments to profit/(loss) for the year of the Group is

DEE R (@|)

AI2/D 2 AFRE N, (EIE)
EARSEARFE N, (BIE) 4K

provided as follows: mr
2016 2015
—F-REF —FT—h%F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Profit/(loss) for the year of reportable EJ%%&%E‘B$¢F§*%TWJ/
segments (B18) 680.8 (535.7)
Unallocated amounts: RAOMEH
Corporate expenses, net R FE (91.3) (51.7)
Intra group elimination B N BF 4 8 - 7.3
Profit/(loss) for the year of the Group AEBAFEEHF], (ER) 589.5 (580.1)
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total AZ2WOEEELEEBELHERNAT ¢
assets as follows:
2016 2015
=F-REF —T—ha%F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Total segment assets DEEELETE 20,741.6 22,192.9
Head office assets =R AR 905.2 825.5
Intra group elimination SEAREPEH (1,745.9) (1,784.1)
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ECREE 24.0 24.9
Financial assets at fair value ?E’AEF\TEETE:ET&%@JEEZ
through profit or loss TREE 12.7 13.4
Total assets per consolidated meEBEBERMINEE
balance sheet e 19,937.6 21,272.6

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 D EE R @\
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total AIEMmo A EEAEAENREN
liabilities as follows: IS 8
2016 2015
—RE —ZE—AhF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Total segment liabilities DEPEELETE 8,237.0 10,063.4
Head office liabilities =R aE 568.7 775.4
Intra group elimination SE AL H (2,495.2) (3,407.9)
Total liabilities per consolidated EBEABERMINEE
balance sheet e 6,310.5 7,430.9
Non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial AHEESREEUINZ IEREE
assets are mainly located in the Mainland China. EXEN AR
Analysis of revenue by category: By RBE| D 2 WD T
2016 2015
—E-KF —T—hF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Sales proceeds from properties ﬁ’%{’ﬁfﬁ’%)ﬂ &2 TS
held for sale 2] 1,308.0 910.6
Rental income from investment ?ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@ﬂ&)\
properties 166.2 152.0
Renewable energy HARIR 131.0 132.9
1,605.2 1,195.5
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, HE—_ZE—RNEL_E—FE+—
revenue from external customers is solely attributable A=+—HLEFE  INABEFZHK
to the China market and there is no revenue derived =EREFETS KERBE—
from a single external customer exceeding 10% of total INREEZINEBRNZNETE
revenue. 10%

EBFERZER)BR AR ZBE—XREEHK 177
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Other income 6 Hulg A
2016 2015
S S
HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEET
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Property management fee income MEBIRBIA 27.8 19.0
Rental income generated from REEHEREZMHEZ
properties held for sale MAE KA 7.7 12.7
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HETER T E KA &
lease payments and property, MR BERRBZ
plant and equipment — net Wz — ¥ 8 1.0 91.5
Write back of provision of other H fth RS SRR B B
payables 115 5.6
Costs reversal on completed B TEES KK ARE
construction contracts 11.8 27.0
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BAFEEERRIE L
assets and financial liabilities at CREERSRABATE
fair value through profit or loss - net (B1R) /et — %8 (9.6) 16.8
Others HAb 7.2 3.7
57.4 176.3
Provision for impairment losses on assets 7 ¥ EREEERE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BERET BEET
Provision for impairment losses on B BB
— prepaid land lease payments —JEf L E R - (104.5)
- properties under development —BERAPYIE - (31.1)
- (135.6)

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016



Discontinued operations

On 26 May 2016, the Company as the Vendor's
guarantor and Faithful Investments Limited (the
“Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with an independent
third party, Cornerstone Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase (i) the entire issued share capital of HKC Guilin
Expressway Limited (the “Target Company”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Vendor and (i) the shareholder’s
loan owed by the Target Company to the Vendor (the
“Disposal”) at a total consideration of RMB332,110,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$395,211,000). The
Disposal was completed simultaneously with the signing
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement on 26 May 2016.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

BRI EER

RZE—RFERA-_+/"H K
RAI(EBERERA) REARQ
Az M & 2 & M B 2 a7 Faithful
Investments Limited([ & 77 ]) 8255
VEZRHERERERAG(IE
FIVEERR(EERE]) -
B BEABKGHREEERE
FEGEGHREZEBENEFZE2E
MBAREEERIEMSRAKE
RARI([BIZERAR]) 2EE HET
BRARG)BIZARFFRE R ZK
REF(HESEE]) r #REA
AR#332,110,0007T (HHE A4
395,211,000 L) - HEFIHELE
R-BE—RNFERA-+/HEIE
EHBRB TR o
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8 Discontinued operations (continued) 8 CHRIEKEEL@m)
Financial information relating to HKC Guilin Expressway EBEEEMEEABERE TR
Limited for the period to the date of disposal is set out AEEEZEHEHREBZHEER
below. The income statement and statement of cash FHHT  BREENRERERE
flow distinguish discontinued operations from continuing PRI EFRIEEREERR
operations. 2o
Income statement and cash flow information EEXEREBEEREER
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-.4E
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT ABEBT
Revenue e 34.8 77.9
Expenses X (43.0) (109.6)
Net gain on disposal of discontinued HEBRIFELELZ
operations F U 119.2 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax from B4R IE&E £ 2 BTSRRI
discontinued operations m Al (EE) 111.0 (31.7)
Income tax P15 - -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued ERIEEEER
operations wmwFL (ER) 111.0 (31.7)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued AT RE(R 2R B B &R IEAE &
operations attributable to: ¥B2uR(BA)
— Owners of the Company VNI Z=PN 111.0 (31.7)
The analysis of the cash flows BRIEREXEBRCRERE
of discontinued operations paril I
is as follows:
Net cash from operating activities R XTEENBIR & F 5 34.6 47.8
Net cash from investing activities KEEBFBIREFE - 0.2
Net cash used in financing activites BV E ¥ FTHIRE /55 (61.7) (153.8)
Net cash flows HEREFR (27.1) (105.8)
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9  Operating profit/(loss) 9 RERAN(&HE)
Operating profit/(loss) was arrived at after crediting/ st R (iR el e,/ (F1%)

(charging) the following items: T%|ER :
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) 1 E@FIF S (FizEll) (105.4) (98.6)
Employee share option benefits, EEERERA -
net (Note 11) FRE(MEELL) - (1.0)
Amortisation B8
— prepaid land lease payments —FBA AR E
(Note 17) (BI5E17) (21.4) (22.6)
Depreciation of property, L/EIN T 35 Y5
plant and equipment (Note 18) HEITE (MIFEL8) (73.5) (83.6)
Cost of inventories FERA (1.9) (2.0)
Cost of properties sold B EMERA (978.8) (740.8)
Direct operating expenses arising A EREVAE & WA
from investment properties ZIREMEESE
that generate rental income ZEEEERE (5.6) (3.6)
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN <
— Audit services — Iz B AR TS (4.7) (5.0)
- Non-audit services — RS (1.2) (1.2)
Operating lease payments KEHERIA (6.1) (8.1)
Net exchange loss b W &8 F 58 (25.4) (2.5)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial EATEEBERRIIE
assets and financial liabilities at ZeRmEERSRAR
fair value through profit or loss — net AFE(EE) UE — F5E (9.6) 16.8

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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10 Finance income and costs 10 HMEWARBERZD
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—AhF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Interest expenses: FBEMAX :
Bank loans wholly repayable HARAFANEES
within 5 years BEZIBTER (117.7) (124.9)
Bank loans not wholly repayable BERAFAZEEL
within 5 years BB ZBITER (31.9) (43.2)
Other loans wholly repayable HARAFAREEL
within 5 years EEZHMER (0.7) (0.8)
Other loans not wholly repayable BERAFAEE
within 5 years EEZEMER (15.5) (20.1)
(165.8) (189.0)
Less: amounts capitalised B BEBENMEER 117.3 103.2
Finance costs BhE A AN (48.5) (85.8)
Finance income B FEIA 33.0 32.3
Net finance costs BB R A F R (15.5) (53.5)

Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was
between 3.30% to 7.38% (2015: 3.50% to 6.90%) per
annum during the year ended 31 December 2016.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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11 Employee benefit expenses 11 EEERMEX

2016 2015

—E-XRE —ET—AhF

HKS Million HKS Million

BEAT BEET

(Re-presented)

(&%)

Wages, salaries and other benefits IE - FekHtEd (102.5) (97.0)

Employee share option benefits, net 12 EBERERF - JF5 - (1.0)
Pension costs — defined contribution ERE KA — EREE R

plan (Note) FT &) (FaE) (3.0) (1.7)

Write back of unused annual leave R A REE 0.1 0.1

Charged to income statement, net BB R BRIFE (105.4) (99.6)

Note: BfsE -

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HKS$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to 1 June 2014). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to
the employee pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

AREZBE LB ERRS B
PIZRERY —HBRELFTE - /IR
BEEEEBHRIIZEZEE MR - &
BREHERHBYERATE TR
HHERAKR DTS - RIFBESFE
BEINMHREEHAZRESEBERA
Z5%REtEMEL MR BB A ZHH
Y ALA30,00078 T (= F—MFRA—
H 2 A1/325,000/87C) & LR - 5T &I
FENEHENER - ARE AT E
BERAKSF S 2HFTIRT A A
MERAFREZ B DS o
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12 Five highest paid individuals 12 ZEMERSAT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRN - AEERA %%%ﬁ{\i@%
in the Group for the year include four (2015: four) E—E%(:Ag_\ﬂ%i P—t]j%)i;% 4
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis EZ@%%%FQ$4EE%?J§£ *_ﬁ%
presgn.ted on note 4.1. Thg e.m.oluments.payable to the & —Z)VARA+SBEmT -
remaining one (2015: one) individuals during the year are
as follows:
2016 2015
S e
HKS Million HKS Million
BESBT BEBT
Salary and other benefits e RHEAMET 2.3 2.3
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 0.8 0.4
Share-based compensation BrE - 0.1
3.1 2.8
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MeZH/mONHT -
No of individuals
A
2016 2015
—F-REF —FT—h%F
Emoluments band (in HK dollar) AR RGBT
HKS$3,000,001 — HKS$3,500,000 3,000,001/%7C—
3,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HKS$2,500,001 — HKS3,000,000 2,500,001%8 7T —
3,000,000/% 7T - 1
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ma

13

IS RARMIEE

Income tax expense 13 FEsikd
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made AR AREBRREE T —FFR =
as the Group has no assessable profit for the years E-—AF+-_A=1+—HIEFEW
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. Mainland China EERTORT - MW ERETEFE
income tax includes corporate income tax which has MIEHBE - PERHASEHR (B
been provided on the estimated assessable profits of HELEMER) LB E D ALK
subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China at 25% BB AR 2 Gt ERF RN - 3%
(2015: 25%), and which withholding tax has been 25%( —ZF—FH4F : 25%) 2 B R {E
provided at 10% (2015: 10%) on income sourced from HEE TR iR AN E B IER
the Mainland China by the Group’s non-tax resident BERALES DA TSN AL
enterprises, including profit on direct or indirect equity 10%(—ZFE—F1F : 10%) 2 ER{E
transfer transactions, interest and dividend income HEE  BEREEBERERE
received and receivable. BRZamH - B WK EWF B K
R EBWA o
Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at F B i+ 3 (B R BE TR E R
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2015: NF3I0%240% (= —FF : 30%
30% to 40%) on the appreciation of land value, being BA0%) 7 BET REBE - T
the proceeds of sale of properties less deductible B EMEMS IR E R I
expenditures (including costs of land use rights and B (BIE+ i (FE AR AR R %
property development expenditures). BEEYL) -
During the year, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary has FERN - —EE2EREHNBATIEE
revised its corporate income tax calculation basis as S s ERG R ERER
requested by the local tax authority. As a result, current STEEEEDER - Atk - 88X
income tax of HK$3.5 million and deferred tax expenses TR BIH FT 13 %4 3,500,000 7T &
of HK$266.9 million was recognised in the income EIERSTE R % 266,900,0005% 7T
statement.
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—N1F
HK$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Current income tax BPERFT1S AR
Mainland China income tax A B i PS5 (100.0) (62.1)
Mainland China land appreciation tax A9 B4 A 3b 1= b $E(E FY (75.3) (43.3)
(175.3) (105.4)
Deferred income tax (Note 35) RIEFTSE (FIEE3D)
(Charged)/credited to the income (F0BR) %
statement RE=mx (424.3) 96.6
(599.6) (8.8)

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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13 Income tax expense (continued) 13

Note: The share of income tax expense of associates
amounting to HK$25.9 million (2015: HKS$14.7 million)
and the share of income tax expenses of a joint
venture amounting to HK$28.8 million (2015: share of
income tax credit of HKS75.1 million) are included in
the Group’s share of profits less losses of associates
and share of profits less losses of a joint venture
respectively.

The tax of the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
from continuing operations differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits/(losses) of the consolidated
entities as follows:

FEH @

e ML AT FRERT Y
£25900,000F (= —*H
4 : 14,700,000 v ) M FEA(L
— WA ATZFRERTEA
28,800,000 7T (=T — L 4F :
FE {5 BT 15 B4 45 % 75 75,100,000
BIT) 0 DRI AAREE Y fEE
Bt % N T PR 18 T A — R

BERAGHBEE o

REERBFELCEEB ZMEH
AT A (B18) 21| - BiERA
MEFAREMBAR S HEER
M(EBB)2ERRE =8N
™

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET-RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) before income tax RERECEES 2B
from continuing operations and A A (E18)
share of results of associates DA K FE 4l e & A B K
and a joint venture —HEE RAEE 897.9 (407.7)
Tax (charge)/credit calculated at the ZEARBEBEZRAZ
domestic rates applicable to profits/ & H, (E518) FriE
(losses) in the respective countries ~ EihFiR:+E 2 HiA
(k%) HE (220.8) 108.8
Expenses not deductible for LIk
taxation purposes ZH (72.9) (87.9)
Income not subject to tax BERBUBA 59.5 46.1
Tax losses and temporary differences R ZFIBEE &
not recognised iy =5 (18.8) (28.7)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised f# 3 5C Al AR FER
tax losses THIAEE 5.3 4.7
Deferred tax on undistributed profits 77 B F B 2 B EFR I8 (8.6) (7.5)
Mainland China land appreciation tax A7 B At = M 12 (B 7 (75.3) (43.3)
Re-measurement of deferred BT ERLERSEH
income tax (266.9) -
Others HAfb (1.1) (1.0)
Tax expense FRIASE B (599.6) (8.8)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.6%
(2015: 26.6%).

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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14 Earnings/(loss) per share

(a)

Basic

14 SRER (FE)

(a)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the

BN
FREARRFN,(EE) 1R
BAD RIS A ARER
FABR)BFRNEETE
BIZ I EGETHE o

year.
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
(Re-presented)
(&F71))
Profit/(loss) from continuing RRBERFE AR
operations attributable to equity BB
holders of the Company FEAEEF (&)
(HKS Million) (BEET) 275.3 (466.0)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued ARAEREEARE
operations attributable to equity BRI T
holders of the Company FEAEE R, (E518)
(HKS Million) (BEBIT) 111.0 (31.7)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity A2 Az A&
holders of the Company wm A (EE)
(HKS Million) (BEBT) 386.3 (497.7)
Weighted average number of BEITE B 2 N
ordinary shares in issue (Million) HE(EE) 528.8 496.8
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERETF(BE)
(HK cents per share) (FRBL)
From continuing operations REIFELEETR 52.0 (93.8)
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER 21.0 (6.4)
73.0 (100.2)

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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14 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued)

(a)

Basic (continued)

By passing an ordinary resolution at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 6
October 2016, the Company implemented
the Share Consolidation (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 August
2016) on the basis that every twenty-five (25)
issued and unissued ordinary shares of HKS$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) ordinary share of
HKSO0.25 each effective on 7 October 2016. As
a result of the Share Consolidation, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2015 have
been adjusted retrospectively.
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RE IR
14 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued) 14 SRERN (EE) @
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated GRREERT (BIE)JE
by adjusting the weighted average number BFEBRKRITEEL @R Z N
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume g UBREMEEFE
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares LB (BEERE) G
including the share options. BHRMETE -
2016 2015
—~E —ZT—hF
(Re-presented)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) from continuing NARIERFE ARG
operations attributable to equity B TS
holders of the Company wmA, (E8)
(HKS Million) (BEET) 275.3 (466.0)
Effect of assumed conversion of (EE SR ) PNGTE S
convertible preference shares ﬁ‘H@H%Ef‘EHﬁ&
and convertible notes issued by AR ER s FE
subsidiaries (HKS Million) (BBEAT) (1.1) (14.9)
Profit/(loss) from continuing ETESR#EEEAN (&
operations used to determine BT ESE TS
diluted earnings/(loss) per share &,/ (E18)
(HKS Million) (BEHT) 274.2 (480.9)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued AAalEmEE AEN
operations attributable to equity B4R |48 S S
holders of the Company wm A, ()
(HKS Million) (BEBIT) 111.0 (31.7)
385.2 (512.6)
Weighted average number of SrEEREERAN
ordinary shares for calculation of — (E518) 2 @Ak hnsE
diluted earnings/(loss) per share THE(ESE)
(Million) 528.8 496.8
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share ~ EEEEF(Ei8)
(HK cents per share) (B RBL)
From continuing operations REFELEER 51.8 (96.8)
From discontinued operations REBRIEREER 21.0 (6.4)
72.8 (103.2)
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14 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued)
(b) Diluted (continued)

Remaining outstanding convertible preference
shares and share options of a subsidiary were
buy-back and lapsed in October 2015 and January
2015 respectively. Remaining outstanding of
share options and bonus warrants of the Company
were lapsed in May 2015 and October 2015
respectively. Therefore, these instruments have
no effect on the calculation of diluted earnings per
share in 2016.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 did not assume the exercise
of the share options and bonus warrants of the
Company, and the share options of a subsidiary
outstanding during the year since the exercise
would have an anti-dilutive effect.

14 SRER,(EHE) @)

(b) #Fm)

— B AR T HAREST
150 "2 A #2 AL A8 5 A K B A v
ENRR-_ZE—RAFt+AK
“E-RF-AEEBEX
M e NRAERT W AREITE
Z B PR N AT S RS
SRR _ZE—RFRARZ
T-—RF+AKRK - Bt
ZETHATEHFE-F
—RNFERETRNEKT
@,

Hz2_ZT—HRF+ A
=t ALFEZzBRESE
BB EBRRFER M ARITE
2 AN B R AR R I AT R R R
EHEUAR—HEHRBARZE
REETE  BEBITFEA
REBETE -

15 Dividends 15 KRE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hHF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Final dividend proposed, ¥R ARHAIE B, -

of HK8 cents (2015: nil) per A% I B8

ordinary share T —hF &) 42.3 -

On 14 March 2017, a final dividend of HK8 cents per
ordinary share payable in cash in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 is proposed by the Board
and the amounts are not accounted for until they are
approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. As the proposed final
dividend is declared after the balance sheet date, such
dividend is not recognised as liability as at 31 December
2016.

No dividend was proposed and paid for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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16 Investment properties 16 ®BEWEHE

2016 2015
—E-AF —T-RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEAET
At 1 January R—H—H 8,229.7 8,044.1
Currency translation differences PEHIRE =5E (541.8) (431.6)
Additions B 665.0 1,087.0

Transfer from properties held EREHERE W
for sale 181.4 -
Fair value adjustments, net N ERARFR 607.2 (469.8)
At 31 December R+t—A=+—H 9,141.5 8,229.7

Notes: fizE -

(a) At 31 December 2016, investment properties (a) R-FB—XE+-_HA=+—H -
in Mainland China of HK$7,966.9 million (2015: m B A+ (B 8 7,966,900,000%
HKS$7,170.9 million) were pledged as securities for the T (ZZT—HR%F :7,170,900,000
Group's borrowings (Note 33). B ZIREYE  BlEAKRE

B P fE TR SR (FIEE33) »

(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their (b) REBRIGEYE 7 HFZIRE
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as EEEEEBES T :
follows:

2016 2015
—E-XRF T —hHF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHE#ER BEET
In Mainland China, held on: R BERMEE

Leases of between 10 to 50 years NTFI0E0A Z2FHE 8,968.6 8,011.2
Leases less than 10 years DPRI0OFEZHE 172.9 218.5
9,141.5 8,229.7

(c) Fair value hierarchy (c) NFEER

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. The following table
analyses the investment properties carried at fair value
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair
value measurements.

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

AEEREMENBYHEL
EREEMEET - WETE
REMER T RNER-F
—RE+ZA=+—B2A¥F
B TRERAERELER
WA (FE3MIIEAFETE
ZHATFEIERZRENEE
TP °
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Investment properties (continued) 16 ®BEWHE (&)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (48)
(c) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (c) NEEER(E)
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
R-ZE—XRE R_ZT—RF
+=H=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBT
Investment properties: wEWE -
- Commercial properties under —REEBMERES
development in Shanghai [SEZZES 6,838.6 5,993.1
- Commercial properties in Nanxun, —RfF * b3  F I
Beijing, Shenzhen and Tianjin RRENEEYZE 2,302.9 2,236.6

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 has been determined
on the basis of valuations carried out by an independent
qualified valuer not related to the Group, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of
the investment properties valued. The Group employed
Knight Frank to value its investment properties. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group's
senior management and valuers at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. At each reporting date the Group's
senior management:

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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16

Investment properties (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)
Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.

Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair values of completed commercial properties in
Nanxun, Shenzhen and Tianjin are generally derived by
using the income capitalisation method. This valuation
method is based on the capitalisation of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived
from analysis of market transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor expectations. The
prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
been referenced to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties.

Fair value of completed commercial properties in Beijing
is generally derived by using the income capitalisation
method with reference to its profit rent originated from
the lease term interest and its rights in sub-letting and/or
transferring the lease term interest of the property.

Fair values of commercial properties under development
in Shanghai are derived by using the residual method.
This valuation method is essentially a means of valuing
the property by reference to its development potential by
deducting development costs together with developer’s
profit and risk from the estimated capital value of the
proposed development assuming completed as at the
date of valuation.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for
the valuation for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

16

BREWE@)
AEBZHERRFE)
AEFBSHEEBEENSESRE
AEDH EIRATFEZ B -

fEE R
RAERELIEENEABIBET
HNAFEFE

REB - FmINRRREZEEZXEE
MENRFEBEFRBBRABERL
BE - WEEDENERBBRA
BEZEMMEL R - BBERAE
BMEBRATNERE - MEXR
LR THEBHM ISR 5 KRG AR
IMBITREEZHMEMNFL - &
HEFFRANRITHERS HRE
%R N EL AR ALY 5 w0 AT HA AR 5

BRMEE °

RIERZBEEZRBENENRFE
BERABAEREZEE  X2E
HEHMESRNES U kDM
5/ SRRy E R

RESNERTEEVENRFE
RAREAERE - WHETEEE
RASZMENERE N ME ELHE
TREMTTE - R REREA
B (RRENEERZEX)NERE
R H0RR 2% R B A K R & B AR
KB -

BE_F—XER-F—AF+=
A=+—BILEE 2 AN ER
BT AED -
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16 Investment properties (continued)

16 REWH @)

Valuation techniques (continued) (G E M ®m)
Fair value measurements using significant RAERELEENgAZIEET
unobservable inputs (continued) HAFZESTE (&)
Range of unobservable Relationship of
Valuation inputs (probability- unobservable
Description technique(s) Unobservable inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
BEIRZRA\BEHE BLERG BB
W& B BLRZHABE (BEMETHE) NTEHER
Commercial propertiesin ~ Residual method ~ Market unit rate RMB26,200 (2015: RMB26,700) square  The higher the market unit
Shanghai meter for retail portion, rate, the higher the fair
and RMB57,000 (2015: RMB53,000)  value
square meter for office portion
and RMB250,000 (2015: RMB250,000)
per unit for carparks
REBZEZENZ HiE% iR ZEHPBTARARE26,200 miBhEERS
(ZF-%% - ARM26,7007) - AYERR
HABA BT ARAREST, 0007
(Z2-1F : AR%53,0007)
RkEEEElARE250,000
(ZZ—0% : ARE250,0007)
Interest rate 4.75% (2015: 4.75%) The higher the interest rate,
the lower the fair value
& 4.75% (Z5—1F : 4.75%) MERE  ATEBE
Estimated costs to RMBA447.2 million The higher the estimated
completion (2015: RMB929.6 million) costs, the lower the fair
value
BERINA ARE447,200,0007 BikARS - ATERE
(ZZ-0% : AR%929,600,0007)
Estimated profit margin 4% (2015 8%) The higher the profit margin,
required of the the lower the fair value
development

FRAH LB AR

Commercial propertiesin ~ Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate

Nanxun, Beijing, Shenzhen ~ method
and Tianjin
RERE LR BIRKE RWABKE vy dig:S
ZEENF
Average market rental
(square meter per day)
mshe
(BRETHK)
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4% (ZZ—1% : 8%)
4.85% - 8%
(2015: 4.85% - 6.75%)

fExas  ATERE
The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value

4.85% - 8%
(ZZ—0% : 4.85%-6.75%)
RMBO.9 - RMB8.5 The higher the daily rental
(2015: RMBO.9 - RMBS.6) value, the higher the fair
per square meter per day valug
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17 Prepaid land lease payments 17
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights
representing prepaid operating lease payments and their
net carrying values is analysed as follows:

B L BER
REBRBE LR EREZ
RREBRAEERER - AREF
EAFWT :

2016 2016 2015 2015
“E-R"E ZEBE-XE —T-1F —T-1F
HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
EX-Yiu BEBT BHEATL BEEBT
At 1 January R—A—H 1,563.2 1,720.8
Currency translation B 5 R B = A
differences (89.2) (90.4)
Additions NE 22.8 185.7
Disposal HE - (4.1)
Transfer to properties EHERRPYE
under development - (98.6)
Provision for impairment (A 1B B &
loss - (104.5)
Amortisation B3
- Capitalised in —EREERYE
properties under VN4
development (13.9) (23.1)
— Charged to income —-BEREBRRINR
statement (Note 9) (Fg3E9) (21.4) (35.3) (22.6) (45.7)
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H 1,461.5 1,563.2
In Mainland China, held on: RHERMEHE :
Leases of over 50 years ~ @B@50F 2 HE 1,108.2 1,196.5
Leases of between 10to N F10250F 2/ &
50 years 353.3 366.7
1,461.5 1,563.2

Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of
HKS13.9million (2015: HKS15.3 million) (Note 33).

ANEERRME(EL3,900,000%&T(=
T—AF 15,300,000/ 7T) 2 &
T L E R B ARG E TR
TR (KIEE33) -
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18 Property, plant and equipment

18 M=% - #BERRE

Electric
utility plant ~ Other plant
Construction and and  Land and
inprogress  equipment  equipment  buildings Total
RERR At
EEIR HE REREE DHRETF &%
HKS Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Millon  HKS Million
BBAT BEAT BEAT BEAT  BEAT

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-RET-RA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 05 11686 12.2 1020 11,2833
Currency translation differences ERBEES - (61.4) 0.8) (1.3) 63.5)
Additions RE 0.6 1.0 1.6 - 3.2
Cost adjustments RAHE - 0.2 - = 0.2
Disposals e - - 0.3) - 0.3)
Depreciation & - (72.5) (8.5) 2.7 (83.7)
Closing net book amount ERREE 1.1 1,039 42 980 11392
At 31 December 2015 R=E-EE+-R=1-H
Cost KA 1.1 15148 89.2 1189  1,724.0
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ ZEFHERAE - (4789) (85.0) (209)  (584.8)
Net book amount REFAE 1.1 1,0359 4.2 980 11392
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 18 % - M2 B 5214 (@)

Electric
utility plant Other
Construction and plantand  Land and
in progress  equipment equipment  buildings Total
BERR =0
HRIR R KBERRE LHRET &g
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million
BE#RT EERn EEBT  PE¥n  BEEER

Year ended 31 December 2016 BECE-AETZAZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 11 1,039 4.2 980  1,139.2
Currency translation differences EANEES (0.5) (56.4) (0.1) (1.2) (58.2)
Additions hE 6.7 0.3 1.9 - 8.9
Cost adjustments AR - (0.1) 0.1 - -
Disposals HE - - 0.4) - 0.4)
Depreciation e - (69.0) (1.9) (2.6) (73.5)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 13 910.7 3.8 942  1,016.0
At 31 December 2016 R=E-RETZR=1-H
Cost AL 1.3 1,421.0 75.0 1175 1,626.8
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZNERRAE - [516.3) (71.2) (23.3)  (610.8)
Net book amount REFE 13 910.7 38 942 10160
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the AEERMEL0,500,000% T(=
Group’s properties, plant and equipment with carrying ZT—FH%F:1,111,400,000/&7T) 2
values of HK$910.5 million (2015: HK$1,111.4 million) AT - #es RREE IR AR
(Note 33). FAETRITER(IEE3I) o
The Group’s interests in land and buildings at their AEERNILEmMEYE 2 i Mg
carrying values and the lease terms are analysed as FEDZARBERHITHET -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —FT—RF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years /1M F10E=50F 2 HHE 73.9 75.9
In Mainland China, held on: KRB AMES :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years N F10=50F 2 & 20.3 22.1
94.2 98.0
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RE IR
19 Intangible assets 19 BREEE
Concession Other
rights - intangible
Goodwill toll road assets Total
e -
5L KEAE HtEVEE aE
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEBT HEBTL HEBTL BERBTL
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-F5F-HA-8H
Cost A 409.5 1,733.8 0.8 2,144.1
Accumulated amortisation and 2ErH#ER
impairment A (409.5) (550.4) (0.5) (960.4)
Net book amount FEFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
Year ended BE-Z-1f
31 December 2015 TZA=+-HILEE
Opening net book amount FNEDFE - 1,183.4 0.3 1,183.7
Currency translation differences EHRAEZE - (65.7) = (65.7)
Amortisation B - (19.6) (0.1) (19.7)
Closing net book amount FREmFE - 1,098.1 0.2 1,098.3
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=A=+-H
Cost AR 409.5 1,636.3 0.8 2,046.6
Accumulated amortisation and Z5T#ER
impairment A (409.5) (538.2) (0.6) (948.3)
Net book amount EEFE - 1,098.1 0.2 1,098.3
Year ended BE-ZT-XE
31 December 2016 +-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONEDFE - 1,008.1 0.2 1,098.3
Currency translation differences EHMEZE - 15.6 - 15.6
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries  BEHEK B Al - (1,105.4) - (1,105.4)
Amortisation B - (8.3) - (8.3)
Closing net book amount FREEEFAE - - 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
+=ZA=+-H
Cost A - - 0.8 0.8
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEER
impairment B - - (0.6) (0.6)
Net book amount EmFE - - 0.2 0.2
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20 Properties under development 20 BBREDBYE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—F0F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTT
Properties under development EERAMERSE :
comprise:
Construction costs and capitalised R A K2 & AR 2
expenditure 238.0 1,162.3
Prepaid land lease payments B LR E R 233.0 277.5
471.0 1,439.8
Less: current portion B mBEL Y - (950.7)
471.0 489.1

The properties under development are all located in the
Mainland China.

No properties under development (2015: HK$950.7
million) are expected to be completed and available
for sale within next twelve months. At 31 December
2016, no bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s
properties under development (2015 carrying values:
HKS443.9 million) (Note 33).

FRPYE DI A -

VTEZFRFPR(ZFT—RHF
950,700,000 7% 7T ) & H3 10 K 2R
TEAATEK - BrI#HIHE - 1
—E-RE+TA=+—H ' &&
E (- —h5 443,900,000
B ERTYEDEMUANRGE
THRITER(MEE33) ©

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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IS ERARMIEE

Subsidiaries

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2016 is HK$2,149.9 million (2015: HKS$2,081.4
million), of which HK$665.5 million (2015: HKS677.4
million) is for China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited and HKS$1,542.7 million (2015: HKS1,465.2
million) is attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited. The profit allocated
to non-controlling interests of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited is HK$32.5 million (2015:
HKS25.4 million) and the profit allocated to non-
controlling interests of Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited is HKS171.2 million
(2015: the loss allocated is HKS116.2 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The ownership interests
held by non-controlling interests of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited and Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development Company Limited are 45.87%
and 40% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 45.87% and
40%). The non-controlling interests in respect of these
subsidiary companies are material to the Group.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

China Renewable
Energy Investment

21

B 1 2 F
ERFERER

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H23
PR RE RS 4258 45 2,149,900,000%8
T (ZZT—HR % : 2,081,400,000
%70 ) 0 H 665,500,000 7% JT
—E—H%F 677,400,000 T)
ABYBEBLERERKREER AT R
1,542,700,0008c(ZE—FHF :
1,465,200,0008 0) %k 8 £ /B E
HEMWERZARAR - HZ2_-F
—RNF+_BA=+—HIEFE &
BB BEERERISEERARZ
JE ¥ j% #E 2 M 0m A1) & 32,500,000
B (ZE—HRF : 25,400,0007%
7C) * MO BT L8 EREMER
BERRABIZFIZERER RN B
171,200,000 0 ( —E—HF :
SEE1E A116,200,000%8 ) °
NZE—RE+-_A=+—H &
HALERRIKERERARN EEE
HEEMRZE AR A B FEE R E RS
BAHZITAEEZRD R AE45.87%
MAOB( —ZZFE—RHF : 45.87% &
40%) - EEZEN B R F) 2 JEHE
BEZEHAEBMEBERK

TXHINABHUAEBMEEEX
ZIFEBER B ARSEARA
BIRSER I ERRE

BZEtT-RA=+—HLEEEZESR
RBEE

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development

Limited Company Limited
HEBLRRRERRAR LEEREHERRERAR
2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-nF ZF-AF B T 0F
HKS$ Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
BEER BEABTT BEER BEAST
Revenue e 131.0 132.9 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year REEREF/(FR) 58.2 39.4 428.1 (290.4)
Total comprehensive 2E(BR)/ WA
(loss)/income ek (33.9) (55.1) 193.9 (512.4)
Dividends to non-controlling RBE St
interests BE - - - -
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21 Subsidiaries (continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

21 KB TE @)
BEARIFZERER®E)
RT+-A=+—HZzEE&EBX

BE
China Renewable Shanghai Guangtian
Energy Investment Real Estate Development
Limited Company Limited

HEBLEERRERRAE LEEAEHERRERAR
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—FhF —E-RE —T—hfF
HKS Million HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEER BEAT BEBT BEAT
Non-current assets FREEE 1,830.6 2,005.6 6,902.7 6,061.7
Current assets MENEE 298.5 257.1 181.4 190.4
Total assets BEES 2,129.1 2,262.7 7,084.1 6,252.1
Non-current liabilities FnEaE 414.5 504.9 2,649.5 2,066.0
Current liabilities mEBE 150.9 150.8 578.5 523.9
Total liabilities BEESE 565.4 655.7 3,228.0 2,589.9

Summarised cash flows for the year ended 31
December

BE+T-A=+—BLEEZRE
RERE

China Renewable
Energy Investment

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development

Limited Company Limited
FEBEERREERA T EEEEHERRERAR
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-0fF ZE-RE —T-hE
HKS Million HKS Million  HKS Million HKS Million
LY BEAT BEAT BEABT
Net cash generated from/(used 22 %75F715,/ (FTA)
in) operating activities BeFH 80.2 130.7 (22.7) (8.7)
Net cash generated from/(used & /EEHS,/(FTF)
in) investing activities RessE 50.4 8.6 (547.9) (904.2)
Net cash (used in)/generated ~ BEEEEN(FTA),/Fi5
from financing activities BeF8 (100.2) (225.9) 566.7 855.8
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & KR E(EY)
and cash equivalents =/ Cad) 58 30.4 (86.6) (3.9) (57.1)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on

pages 247 to 253.

TEMBARIZHREHNE 247
2538 -
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22 Interests in associates 22 REEQTZ2ER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHE®BT BEBT
Group’s share of net assets AEBRGEEEFE 1,041.2 1,050.6
Amount due from an associate, net JEU—FEEEZ A A
B FE 139.3 139.3
1,180.5 1,189.9
Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest B U — Bt 2 A B B ND B -
free and not repayable within the next twelve months. RENBEARRR T+ _@ARNE
The carrying amount approximates its fair values. The B oRmEHEAEQNTERSE - 4
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. BRABTTAEE -
The following financial information, after making THHBER (BRFAEAKREEKXR
adjustments to conform to the Group's significant SR MARE) RRAEEES
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate HELBEE AR (2HABIIELTD
share of revenue and results of associates, all of which HE )z WS EEERMmT

are unlisted, and is summarised as below:

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZT—hHF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEBT BHEBT

Revenue & 266.2 273.5
Profit before income tax PS5 A& A 124.1 111.1
Income tax expense IS (25.9) (14.7)
Profit for the year RF[E 5 F 98.2 96.4
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22 Interests in associates (continued)

Material associates

Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited,
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited
and CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited are the
associates that are material to the Group.

Details of principal associates are set out on page 254.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the material associates. The information reflects
the amounts presented in the financial statements of
the associates adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the associates.

Summarised income statement for the year ended

22 REEQNT)ZER @
BEAREE QT
BEEERRETEREBELR - a0
EER(HBRNBREAERATR
B EE N BB (R BRA
AAYAEBEMEBEACHER
7o

E B E R B ZFIBHMNE 254

o

m H

\

TXHINERE SRR 2 BER
BWE - FAENRRERZ QAW
MBHRAZINOFE - LEHRA
SEEB 2 RNR ZHSFRRNE
RELFE -

BE+-A=1T—HLEEZEH

31 December RXEE
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
BRERER hERAR(HR)EN hHRARRIRE
3RERAA $EERAA (F)RRAR 5
2016 215 2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015
CE-AE ZE-FE ZE-AE ZE-1E CE-RE O E-RE CE-RE CE-IE
HKS Million ~ HKSMilion ~ HKS Millon ~— HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Millon
EE%n  AEEr  EERn  FEAT  EEAR  AEEn  EERR  BEEAT
Revenue e 88.3 1022 256.7 2813 236.0 2260 5810 6095
Profit for the year KERR 2.3 hb 1136 1197 195 60.5 204 2317
Other comprefensive loss Hi2EEE (89.9) (45.7) (17.0) 40.8) (46.8) (86.5)  (153.])
Total comprehiensive income/{loss) RN/ (BR)EE 23 (384) 67.9 1027 387 137 1339 780
Dividends from the associetes BENTREZRE - - 433 156 20 320 63.3 476

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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22 Interests in associates (continued) 22 MNEENTZ2ER @
Material associates (continued) BEARBENT (@)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December Rt-B=1+—HzEEEEXRE
=z
Hong Kong CECIC HKC CECIC HKC
Construction SMC ~ (Gansu) Wind Power Company Wind Power
Development Limited Limited Company Limited Total
ERRAAR hERAR(HRIEN THEERRRE
BRERAE EERAE (F)ERAR #8
216 15 216 005 216 15 2016 2015
3-8 E01f Z§-5F BIF CR-nF CERE CR-3F CR5F
HKS Million ~ HKSMilon  HKS Millon ~ HKSMilion  HKS Millon ~— HKS Miion ~ HKS Million  HKS Milon
AE%n  RBET  AEEn  FEAT  AEER  REEn BEER  BEAT
Norcurrent assets FrAE 1,340.9 14315 1,164.6 1,312.4 1,088.0 1217 35935 396.6
Current assefs HEE 1316 98 103.5 2. 165.5 1623 400.6 4932
Tasses R Lo25 1963 12681 185 L2935 | L0 3941 4488
Nor-current iabiltes FraaE 6694 7037 - - - - 669.4 1037
Current iabities iHAE 170 249 496.3 73.2 530.2 6584 10525 14195
Todletes L 664 T8 W63 TR2 52 R4 17L8 ol
Net assets EERE 786.1 1917 118 8123 1143 o6 22122 2336
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information MAERBNEE AL ANBEER
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s BREESHRA B 75 E B 2 S ER a0
interests in its material associates: T
Hong Kong CECIC HKC CECIC HKC
Construction SMC (Gansu) Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERAR CEER e hHREEENEE
BRERAR REERLA (BL)ERAT 8
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
CE-RE -1 CE-AF CE-RE CR-RE CE-IE CB-AE ZE-1F
HKS Million ~— HKSMiion ~ HKS Million ~— HKS Millon ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon  HKS Milion
EEEn  AEEr  EERn  FEEAn  EEAR  BEEn  EERR  AEAT
Closing net asses EREEFA 786.1 1977 78 8123 7143 76 2222 2346
Group's share of net AEBRGEE
assets (40%] L 3144 3191 308.7 3249 285.7 290.2 908.8 934.2
Amount due from an EU-BRERT
associate, net AR 1393 1393 - - - - 1303 1393
Carrying amount FEf 4537 1584 308.7 3249 285.7 22 10481 10135
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22

23

Interests in associates (continued) 22 MNEENT 2R @)
Material associates (continued) B ABE NS @)
The Group has interests in a number of individually N £ B R % & E Bl I 3E T oK 5 B
immaterial associates. The following table analyses, in LNREEREZ TRAEENZ
aggregate, the share of profit and other comprehensive ZHBMENTNEMNEHMEEIK
income/(loss) and carrying amount of these associates. A (BB RERENDHT -
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hEF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEET AEATT
Share of profit for the year FEAE AR [Z i F 8.8 3.7
Share of other comprehensive loss &L E4th 2 E &8 (6.9) (6.8)
Share of total comprehensive FEEEmEmB A (EE)
income/(loss) R 1.9 (3.1)
Carrying amount of interests in RZEBE AR Z
these associates 2 REE 115.5 116.4
Interest in a joint venture 23 R—EEeERrzER
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATT
Group’s share of net assets AEERGEEFE 1,653.5 1,672.8
Amount due from a joint venture FEW—RE& & A RIRIE 272.3 219.3
1,925.8 1,892.1

As at 31 December 2016, amount due from a joint
venture is unsecured, of which 2016: HK$237.5 million
(2015: HKS208.5 million) is interest bearing at 4.75%
(2015: 5%) per annum and the remaining balance is
interest free. The balance is denominated in Renminbi
and not repayable within the next twelve months.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’'s interest in the joint venture and no
contingent liabilities within the respective entities as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

RZB—RFE+-_A=+—08 " &
WEENRREAERBRE -
H 237,500,000 c(=ZF—*
& 1 208,500,000/& 1) i F F =
4.75%(—ZF—RHF : b5%):t B8 - &
THHREE - BRAEHRAAREST
BREHERKRRK+—EARERE -

R_FB—ARNER-_FT-AF+H
=t—B YEABAAKERNAZ
NEZ R ZERKARAE - M
BREEBSBRTEXIRARE -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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23 Interest in a joint venture (continued) 23
The following financial information represents the
Group's aggregate share of results of the joint venture
and is summarised as below:

REE DT 2R Em)
THHBEER R AEES RN
BENRZEEWRMWT ¢

2016 2015

—E-REF —ZET—RF

HKS Million HKS Million

BEAT BEBT

Profit/(loss) before income tax FrERipraF, (E18) 110.8 (303.4)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisi () % (28.8) 75.1
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF,(EE) 82.0 (228.3)

Material joint venture
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company
Limited is the joint venture that is material to the Group.

The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures. The share of results of these
joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 and the share of their carrying amounts as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are nil.

Details of the principal joint venture are set out on page
255.

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016
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AEETEBEANAEAR -

AEBRZREERLIFERNNE
NREERTZ HE_ZT—FRFk
T E-RFt+-_A=1+—HIFE
BEZEEERAEERIR T
—RNER_E—RF+-_A=1+—
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23

Interest in a joint venture (continued) 23
Material joint venture (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

for the joint venture that is material to the Group. The
information reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and

the joint venture.

Summarised income statement for the year ended
31 December

REEQRT ZRERE @)
BEXEE QAT @®)
TXEHINEAEBRMEBEANE
ERNAIMEERBE - BEERK
MAESZEQNAIBERRAZTIHR
B UK ASEEESE QA ZME
SHBRANEZEELAEE -

BEt-A=+t—HILFEZER
RERE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

tESeBIMEBEFRAT
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEETT
Revenue W zs - -
Depreciation and amortisation P18 K B 5 (10.5) (10.8)

Fair value adjustments on wEMZ

investment properties NFEEFE 461.3 (1,201.3)
Interest income AR A 1.2 1.2
Interest expense A EFX - -
Profit/(loss) before income tax RS RipnaF, (E18) 443.4 (1,213.5)
Income tax (expense)/credit IR (AX) e (115.3) 300.3
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EE) 328.1 (913.2)
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEE (202.0) (460.6)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) & F|,/ (E18) 126.1 (1,373.8)
Dividend from a joint venture —Me&ERaIRE ZKE - -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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23 Interest in a joint venture (continued) 23 NEERAZER @
Material joint venture (continued) BEREE QAT @)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December R+T-—A=+—HZEEEEBX
BE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
EESBILMEBERRAR

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Noncurrentassets drBEE 14,826.7  13,001.7
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents Be KR EEY 12.0 323.5
_ Others A 278 34
Total current assets n@EEes 398 326.9
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Financial liabilities (excluding AR EEEN
trade and other payables and R SR L Ath FE T 5K
provisions) LA K #8485 ) 6,444.7 2,915.3
_ Others A€ L0164 962.8
Total non-current liabilities FRBSfFe®s 74611 3,878.1
Current liabilities mEaE
Others At 791.3 2,759.2
Total current liabilites nBamEes 791.3 . 2,799.2
Net assets BEFE 6,614.1 6,691.3
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23

Interest in a joint venture (continued)
Material joint venture (continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in its material joint venture:

23

REEQRT ZRERE @)
EAXA¥ DT @)
BAEERAESEAEENAERD
BREEY ROV E R E SR
T :

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

B MEBEFRAT
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEAT BEAT
Net assets BESFE 6,614.1 6,691.3
Group’s share of net assets (25%) A5 B fE (5 & EFE(25%) 1,653.5 1,672.8
Amount due from a joint venture FE—FA& & A RIFIE 272.3 219.3
Carrying amount BREE 1,925.8 1,892.1

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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24 Available-for-sale financial assets

24 THAHESHMEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
At 1 January R—H—H 24.9 26.8
Currency translation differences PEHIRE =5E (0.9) (1.0)
Disposal k= - (1.5)
Net gains recognised iR 2 Wz
in equity (Note 32) FEE (FRE32) - 0.6
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 24.0 24.9
Available-for-sale financial assets  AIEHESREE R
include the following: T5%18 :
Unlisted securities IELEmFES
Equity securities — PRC R AR FE S — 16.8 17.7
Club debentures SAES 7.2 7.2
24.0 24.9

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

TR ESREENTHESH

following currencies: 17 :
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RE
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEER BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 6.7 6.7
Renminbi AR 17.3 18.2
24.0 24.9
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25 Financial instruments by category 25 ZEESsz2EMIA
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables profit or loss for-sale Total
RATLEE
-£7954 BRRIE
e ZEE AfHE B

HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS$ Million
BEBTL BEABTL BEET BEBT

Assets as per consolidated #HAEEAFEXR
balance sheet ZEE

At 31 December 2016 RZT—R"F
+-A=+-H

Available-for-sale financial AL ESRHEE

assets (Note 24) (Fft=£24) - - 24.0 24.0
Financial assets at fair value ~ RAFEERESER

through profit or loss SR EREE

(Note 27) (Bf=E27) - 12.7 - 12.7
Amount due from an associate, JEdr—[EHEZ AR Z0E

net (Note 22) SR (HEE22) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint Bl —HEE AT

venture (Note 23) A (HF23) 272.3 - - 272.3
Trade and other receivables B0 & E R FE MR

under current assets K E A UK

(Note 28) (BizE28) 199.9 - - 199.9
Other receivables under non-  3ERENBEFEEM

current assets (Note 28(h)) FE UK (B £28(h)) 23.0 - - 23.0
Restricted cash (Note 29) R HI13E € (P FE29) 614.7 - - 614.7
Shortterm bank deposits RHERITER 13.5 - - 13,5
Cash and cash equivalents ReELRAEEEY

(Note 30) (PBE30) 1,296.3 - - 1,296.3
Total | 2,559.0 12.7 24.0 2,595.7
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—A1F

+=-A=+—H

Available-for-sale financial L ESHEE

assets (Note 24) (BzE24) = = 24.9 24.9
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEERHR

through profit or loss FIR 7 S REE

(Note 27) (Mﬁjﬂ) - 134 - 13.4
Amount due from an associate, JEdr—[EHE < AR

net (Note 22) F38 (fsE22) 139.3 - - 139.3
Amount due from a joint Eh—FEEaE AT

venture (Note 23) FBE(M7E23) 219.3 - - 219.3
Trade and other receivables  REVBETMEKER

under current assets R E b REUR

(Note 28) (Pf=E28) 176.2 - - 176.2
Other receivables under non-  JERBEERAEA

current assets (Note 28 (h)  FEUEK(F7£28(h)) 20.2 = = 20.2
Restricted cash (Note 29) X HI3E & (P FE29) 614.5 - - 614.5
Shortterm bank deposits RERITER 4.3 - - 4.3
Cash and cash equivalents REeELAEEEY

(Note 30) (PB£30) 974.2 - - 974.2
Total T 2,148.0 134 249 2,186.3
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25 Financial instruments by category

(continued)

25 REREszE®TI A

Liabilities at
fair value Other financial
through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BATEE REHERAK
BR&IE FEZHM
ZE8f&E SREE kel
HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million
BE#ET BEHBT BE#ET
Liabilities as per consolidated GREEBEXR
balance sheet 28
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H
Borrowings (Note 33) (P EE33) - 2,944.4 2,944.4
Trade and other payables JET BR R M E A B 3K
(Note 34) (BizE34) 290.5 1,468.3 1,758.8
Total k] 290.5 4,412.7 4,703.2
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 33) AR (HEE33) - 4,130.8 4,130.8
Trade and other payables JET BR R e E A B 3K
(Note 34) (FizE34) 280.7 1,791.9 2,072.6
Total k] 280.7 5,922.7 6,203.4
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26 Properties held for sale 26
At 31 December 2016, no properties held for sale
(2015: HKS2,039.3 million) was pledged as securities
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 33).

27 Financial assets at fair value through 27
profit or loss

ESHERZRZWHE
RZE—ARFE+_A=+—8 "
WEEEERRZYWE(ZE—H
4 :2,039,300,000/70) A{EASE
B AT fE R 2 R (FI7E33) ©

BAVEHERSERIERZE
MEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT

Equity securities: fEANE 5
— Listed in Hong Kong at market value — —&®8 £ I&HE 0.2 0.2
— Unlisted —JEEm™ 12,5 13.2
12.7 13.4

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on
the current bid price quoted in the market at the balance
sheet date.

FHRARES 2 A FETIRERE

BEHMSAREREAETE -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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28 Prepayments, trade and other 28 TN - BWERR KR HARE
receivables W =h
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—.4E
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBT
Non-current JEFRED
Prepayments and other AT R E A
| EeekeblsBlelel R (HEh) 84.1 HEEEE 97l
Current TRE
Trade receivables FEUER X 64.9 57.8
Less: provision for impairment W EUERER
of receivables BEEE (7.3) (7.8)
Trade receivables — net FEUBRFOF R 57.6 50.0
Bills receivable U E R 8.0 3.7
Prepaid taxes SELNR N 21.9 15.4
Prepayments, other receivables AR - EMERR R
and deposits, net of provisions e (BEIBRERE) 112.4 107.1
________________________________________________________________________________ 1999 1762
284.0 273.3
Notes: Bk
(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s (a) RER @ AL ERZE BRI
revenue recognition policy at year end, net of provision K BB IR BB B 15 1% /B R
for impairment, was as follows: RZERBRDWT «
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEABTT
0 to less than 2 months TELR2MEAR 24.2 22.0
2 to less than 6 months 2Z LR6ME A - 6.7
6 to less than 12 months 6= L1218 A 3.0 14.3
12 months and more 121 A R A L 30.4 7.0
57.6 50.0
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28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables

28 FEMNR

- BURRR K E R

(continued) LEAC )
Notes: (continued) BisE - (&)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice due NEXR - IRBEZERNEHAZ S

date at year end, net of provision for impairment, was as

EHERIRE B H R ERIRR 2

follows: BREEDATANT -
2016 2015
—RE —T—ARF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BHEBTT BEBIT
0 to less than 2 months =LR2{EA 57.5 50.0
2 to less than 6 months ZEDR61E A - -
6 to less than 12 months Z=2LRI2{EA 0.1 =
12 months and more 121H KA+ - -
57.6 50.0
(i) For renewable energy business, the Group (i) MBERREEMES -
allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade AEEFMEESX J5
customers. Trade receivables that are less 2 & H 30 g ZfEE
than 30 days past due are not considered as H - mBALMN30H 2
impaired. As at 31 December 2016, trade & W BR JA’ 7r ?Ei 5 1E R/
receivables of HK$52.5 million (2015: HK$48.7 B -RZE—RE+=

million) were fully performing. Included in this
balance, HKS$41.2 million (2015: HK$44.8
million) represented the electricity tariff
receivables due from the government which
have to go through approval procedures before
issuing invoices and invoices of these related
receivables were not issued as at 31 December
2016.

(ii) Other than renewable energy business, group
companies each has its own credit policies
depending on the requirements of their markets
and the businesses which they operate. Trade
receivables that are less than 12 months past
due are not considered as impaired. As at
31 December 2016, no trade receivables on
other business (2015:nil) were past due but not
impaired.

BEER

A=+— E JE U BR 3R
52,500,000 c (= =&
— A4 : 48,700,000%
LR EHEBETT - £
Z e 0 41,200,000
B (ZE—FHF
44,800,0007% t ) & 18
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁma B
HHEKRKFEEZ - m
ZERWGRIER R
ER_ZTE—R"F+=A
=+—B¥KREL -

(i)  BRBLEEREHIN %‘%
BomeREETS

KR A% **%ﬁkﬁﬁ*ﬁx
BHEERE - R121E

R AR H 2 FE Y AR 3k
BRE R_E—REF
+=ZA=+—8 " &t
TG 2 e HAME O

BZEREER(ZF—1
FE) e
(ZER)BERAF —B—<EFR
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28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 28
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) Other than renewable energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

(c) As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HKS7.3
million (2015: HKS$7.8 million) were impaired and fully
provided for.

AN - BURR K EME

LENT D)
B ()
(b) BELEBEBEN EAEE

BEERBEATD - MEWERKIA
BEESTHZER -

RZE—RNRE+_A=+—
H - A%7,300,000& (==
—HRF : 7,800,000 C) 2 E
WEER IR RERE ZEEL
AR B o

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and (d) RNEE 7 FEIER N H b fE Uk
other receivables are denominated in the following KZEEEN T EEE
currencies:

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BT 1.4 2.4
Renminbi AR 282.6 270.9
284.0 273.3
(e) There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the (e) AEBEBEETEWRER K

Group’s trade receivables with carrying values of
HK$43.5 million (2015: HKS$44.6 million) (Note 33).

(f) Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

18 /43,500,000 T (==
— 14 : 44,600,000% )2 A
TESRITRE R Z IR (MHRE33) -

USSR BERBEZZNT

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—RF

HKS Million HKS Million

BEER BEBTT

At 1 January w—A—H 7.8 8.3

Currency translation differences [ERMEERE (0.5) (0.4)
Write back of provision for AR R EE R

impairment losses - (0.1)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7.3 7.8
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e ISR AR

28 Prepayments, trade and other receivables 28 FE{4%k - EWBRE R HibfE

(continued) LEAC )

Notes: (continued) MIsE © (88)

(g0 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting (g) KRIBEHHzEsSEERRA
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable P& EEWAR ZEEE - K
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any £ B W EE A TR IEE
collateral as security. 1R o

(h) Included in prepayments and other receivables were (h) TATEN T R EH M EIR R A
(i) deposits held for property resettlement schemes of MYERNBAZFTEZZ S
HKS$65.9 million (2015: HKS74.4 million) and (i) input 65,900,000 c(ZE— 1 %F :
value-added taxation recoverable of HK$23.0 million 74,400,000 7T ) K (i) & Ug i
(2015: HKS20.2 million) arising from purchases of T8 1% {5 #4 23,000,000 ¢ ( =
property, plant and equipment. T —R 4 : 20,200,000 7T)

TREEEYE - M REE -
29 Restricted cash 29 ZRERE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEBT AEBT
Restricted cash represents: ZREIFREE
Deposits placed with banks TN Z RIBRITER
for securing certain bank loans ETIRITERZER 311.2 332.2
Escrow accounts relating to AERFE S RZIEY
deposits held for property EL T s
development projects 303.5 282.3
614.7 614.5

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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RE IR
30 Cash and cash equivalents 30 BENHEEEEY
2016 2015
S e
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBTT
Cash and cash equivalents He MReEEY
comprises the following: BIENAT&IE :
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 1,056.8 634.6
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITIE 867.7 958.4
1,924.5 1,593.0
Less: Restricted cash and deposits & : ZRFIRE RREIHH
with original maturities of more HiB={EHz
than three months FEHRSRITIE R (628.2) (618.8)
1,296.3 974.2
2016 2015
—F-REF —FT—h%F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEBTT
Cash and cash equivalents and HeRBEEEMR
restricted cash PR 35 &
(a) Placed in banks in the PRC: (a) RARBEIZIRITEE ¢
— denominated in Renminbi —UARMGEE 1,598.8 1,242.7
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars — B TS 41.7 41.9
— denominated in US dollars —AETHEHE 6.7 8.3
(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) REABZRITFE
— denominated in Renminbi — DARBEH 137.9 144.6
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars — LABTAEE 139.3 155.2
— denominated in US dollars — UETHE 0.1 0.3
1,924.5 1,593.0
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e ISR AR

30 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

BERBREEEY @)

REFBE ZERMEMT

2016 2015
—EB-REF —E—hF
HKS RMB HKS RMB
BT ARHE Von AR
Shortterm bank 2 BJSR1T K
deposits 0.73%-1.51% 0.30%-3.60% 0.01%-0.78% 0.30%-4.50%

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances
stated above.

The short-term bank deposits of the Group have original
maturities of three months or less.

Cash and short-term deposits of HKS1,647.2 million
(2015: HKS1,292.9 million) are held in the Mainland
China and are subject to local exchange control
regulations, under which the balances could not be
exported freely out of China. The repatriation of fund out
from the Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of
dividends or other means as complied to the regulations.

RBEAHESZRSEERRE
EXprit 2 REe RIRITHABRIKRE
18 e

AEBEHRTERZRIBE R
=EAZIAT -

TR EN Y RS R EBER
1,647,200,000/8 7% (— F—Fi F :
1,292,900,000/%8 7t ) X & b I [
EHIGEPIFTARR - %48 T o & e
HLPE - P ERBLES -
TEAR RIA T A L LA B B S R 1
1T -

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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e ISR AR M

31 Share capital 31 =X
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
B EE ZiER
Note (Million) HKS$ Million
Mo BB BEBT
Authorised EE

At 1 January and RZE—RF—H—HBRK

31 December 2015 and +ZA=+—HURK

1 January 2016 —E-RF—H—H 30,000.0 300.0
Share consolidation &0 & oF (a) (28,800.0) -

At 31 December 2016 AZE—RF+A

== 1,200.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—HF—H 11,595.8 116.0
Exercise of bonus warrants TTEAL AR AR &

“1403" [1403] (b) 1,609.1 16.0
Exercise of share options 1T B (c) 16.0 0.2
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—RFE+_A

1 January 2016 =+t—Hk

—E—RF—F—H 13,220.9 132.2
Share consolidation gt & BF (a) (12,692.0) -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRF+=A
=+—H 528.9 132.2
Notes: M3
(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the (a) BEADFBRERR-ZZ—X

shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 6 October 2016, every twenty-five
(25) ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one (1) consolidated ordinary share of
HKS0.25 each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company effective on 7 October 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
1,609,089,598 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued upon the exercise of 1,609,089,598 units
of bonus warrants. Among the 1,609,089,598 newly
issued ordinary shares, 1,134,900,513 new ordinary
shares of HKS0.01 each were issued upon the exercise
of 1,134,900,513 units of bonus warrants by Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric and his associates for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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—hAFE+ZA=+—
1609089598Hx
OlBTZHE
& 1,609,089, 598
J “%ﬁ%%ﬁom
09,08 9, OSHF B ITE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31

Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c)

Share options are granted to employees, senior
executives or officers, managers, directors or
consultants of any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant. An offer of the
grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of ten business days from the date of offer and
a consideration of HKS1 must be paid upon acceptance.

31 BA&m@m)

MIEE -

(c)

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

(#8)

AR A ASEEETERKE
REAFEAREERZEER

BRTHRABHTIBAE - &

2 SEFRHERKLBRE -

THREAKLAUTEREE :

(i) B fn 3% H B HIAE B 2
Prig B ERAAFIKT

i

(i) BOHEBERREEHARE

m

HEXBEBIAEA
WEXRMAIFHES
E: R

(i)  OEE-

ERREANKRE BHETTF
SNEFG R RN IR
Z@?E,Hﬂﬁaﬁﬁqﬁ@i c REX T
ZHERETHIRE BB T
{IMﬁﬂﬁﬂFﬁW% E N
W BB AT NIETRE -

pil
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31

Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 16,000,000
new ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each were issued upon
the exercise of 16,000,000 units of share options, with
exercise proceeds of approximately HKS4.3 million. The
related weighted average price at the time of exercise
was HKS$0.342 per share. Among the 16,000,000 newly
issued ordinary shares, 6,500,000 new ordinary shares
of HKS0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of
6,500,000 units of share options by executive directors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.
All outstanding share options had been cancelled on 7
May 2015.

In 2015, movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
prices were as follows:

31 BA&wu@m)
Mz ()

(c)

(&)
HE_Z—RAF+-_A=+—
BHIt&E 16,000,000 f&
s mECOLB L 2 LB
2 7 77 £ 16,000,000 5 B A%
R EIT  TTERBRENE
4,300,000 T - 197 {5 B 40
BN ER B SR0.342
7 gt 716,000,000 B #r 3%
TEBMK A - 6,500,000 8% &
f50.018 T 2 @My B A
REMTEEREEZE-_ZT—1
F+-_A=+—BILEETE
6,500,0001 BE AR #ERF B57T © FT
BEHNATEERER _-_ZT—A
ERA+ABOE -

R-ZZ—RF WARITEZE
BB A kA BINETI9ITE
BRI

Average

exercise price
in HK dollar Number of
per share options
BITITEE FEAR SN B
At 1 January 2015 R-—E—HF—HA—H 0.966 179,558,771
Exercised BATfE 0.269 (16,000,000)
Cancelled/lapsed Bkl B 1.034 (163,558,771)

At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—AF+=-A

=+—H - -
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32 Reserves 32 #EB
Employeg Fvaleble-
Oter — Property  shareased forsdle
Copitel ~ Contrbuted ~~reserve ~ revaluation compensation ~ Exchange  investments Refained
reseve  supls  (Noteb)  resee  reseve  resenve fesene  eamigs Total
AhiE  pEEh HELH e
EffE  #ARB (W) BE EEMcRE EARE  REGE  RERT £
HKSMillon — HKS Milion ~ HKSMilon — HKS Milion ~ HKSMiion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Milon~ HKS Milion HKS Mion
BEET  EEMn  BEEn  EESn  BEEn  EEBT  BEAn  BEET  BEED
Balance ot I January 2015~ A-E-RE-F-A
8 65,9 6010 81 117 07 19092 55 LI00 125874
Translfon offrencial BERNSBE TR
statements of foreign
operations
- Curtency franslafion -ERAEEE
differences - [06) - (Bl 0.1 - Rl
Investments avalble for e~ IELHERE
- Gainin far value -DTEhE - - - - 06 - 06
Buback of comertle EEs-FlEATE
peference shares issued — TRAARERR
by a subsidary - - - - - 08 08
Evercise of bonus warrants (TR HRRER - - - - - 05
Erercise of share options. /7852 - (10 - - - 41
Employeg share option benefts [ E R - 10 - - - 10
Releaseof reseneupon ~ ERUEEE/
cancelled/apse of share. K IEELGE
aptions = = (507 - - 5.2 05
Loss for the year KEREE - - - - W )
Balance &t 31 December 2015 #=5-RE+2A
S1-R&# 65.9 601.0 81 111 - 18 6.0 6703 11,6281
Retained by: THRE
Compny and stbsidaries AR ARHEAT 65,9 6010 81 111 -l 60 B8 106939
Assaciates BELd - - - - - 1454 - 1492 94
Jointventure 2804 - - - 1843 - 193 6794
6589 601.0 81 11.1 - LI 6.0 6703 11,6281
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ARE IR R MY
32 Reserves (continued) 32 #EEwm)
Employee Rvallable-
Share Other ~ Property ~share-hased forsale

premium  Capital Contributed ~ reserve revaluation compensation  Exchange investments  Retained

(Notea) ~ reserve  surplus  (Noteb)  reserve  reseve  reseve  resene  eamings Total
kg EHEE  NEER NRHRA THEERE

(W2a) EAGE HARE  (WEb) BEEEMERE EXGE BE  REEA g
HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS Millon
FEMn  FEER  PER BEET REMT  FAEMn  EEEn mEEN REETL BEER

Babceat 1 Jamary 2016 HZF-7E

-f-Bés 84979 £95.9 601.0 8.1 111 - L8 6.0 6703 11,6281
Tranlatonoffnanciel ELIE
statements of foreign
operations
- Crrency ranslaion -EfASEE
(ifferences - - - - (0.7) - (654.0) - - (654.7)
Release of exchange dfferences - & ERERAE R
pon disposal of stbsidares  EXEE - - - - - - (9.7) - - 9.)
Dividends pad o noncontroling Ef32RRRZ
sharholders RE - - - - - - - - (5.0) (5.0)
Proft for the year FERAA - - - - - - - - 363 386.3
Belance at 31 December 2016 H=F-7E+27
“t-AER 84919 695.9 601.0 8.1 104 - 5141 60 1056 11,3450
Retaned by: TFIARE :
Company and shsidiaries ~ AAWRHER 84979 659  60L0 81 104 - 2695 60 238 102726
Rssociates NG - - - - - - 1108 - %05 313
Jit venture AE0E - - - - - - 138 - M3 Tl
B9 B9 60 81 104 - S 60 10816 11360
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32

Reserves (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

(d)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended).

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with
the Group’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary to dispose of
the renewable energy business (“Target Business”).
Based on the S&P, the purchase consideration is
settled by way of issuing and allotting 1,385,170,068
convertible preference shares by such non-wholly-owned
subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the S&P date, was
HKS$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the acquisition
was completed and the fair value of the respective
convertible preference shares changed to HK$S853.8
million. As the Target Business remains as the Group’s
subsidiary upon the disposal, such disposal transaction
is considered as a transaction with non-controlling
shareholders. As a result, the Group has recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$8.1 million
and an increase in other reserve in equity of the same
amount.

The credit to retained earnings represented difference
between the total buy-back consideration and the book
value of the convertible preference shares issued by a
subsidiary, netting off the incremental transaction costs
directly attributable to the transaction.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amounts
standing to the credit of the capital reduction reserve
and capital redemption reserve accounts of a subsidiary
has been reclassified.

32 fREEw@)

MR
(a)

BRERUEBOARD

%ﬁﬁﬁ%Z%L‘E%E

— AN\~ REPRIEET AT EEE
R-ZZE—FTFRA+=-H" K
EE2EMBRAREANEEIE
£

ﬁTE&ﬂEIEE%m
(TEZEWma&])  HEBLRE

BREB([BREEK]) - EFE
Efpa BEREHIFZEM
&~ =) B % 1,385,170,068 i
RRELE L H AL o R
EEWm=EA BEREATE
451,018,100,000% 7T - » =
TZ-ZFNA=+—8 W
TR MARRE AT AR B R i 2
A F 18 /853,800,000 % 7T °
AR BEEHBRHERDAN
%lzm% A MARLE
RBBRBEFEBRBER 2K

5 > At - AEREERERIEE
Pergasini 48,100, OOO/%E 1]
REgs P 2 B A RIE AR R
TF -

n

FREBGNEEZOBRARE
B — RN B AR BT
BERELHREEE CEE -
BRaXPEZEHED ZEE
RHLZRPRA -

BREBEBBRGHED (F622F)
R 11ZE37IEFTE 2 B8 14 15
X RZZE—NE=A=A8 -
B BB 2 &) AR AN B R R R AR AR
EBOREERENTAERSED
BHOME -

F- EFR
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33 Borrowings

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

33 fERK

2016 2015
S e
HK$ Million ~ HKS Million
BEAT BEBTT
Non-current IR ED
Bank borrowings RITIERX 1,922.6 2,667.5
Finance lease liabilities HEHEAE 68.5 90.4
Loans from non-controlling FEIER AR E K
shareholders 247.7 253.5
2,238.8 3,011.4
Current TRE
Bank borrowings HRITIE X 675.9 1,090.7
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 16.7 16.0
Loans from non-controlling IR IR E K
shareholders 13.0 12.7
705.6 1,119.4
Total borrowings AR 2,944.4 4,130.8

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings
are secured by the investment properties, prepaid land
lease payments, properties, plant and equipment, trade
receivables and restricted cash of the Group (Notes 16,
17, 18, 28 and 29), certain of which are also secured by
the corporate guarantee provided by the Company or its
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank borrowings
are secured by the investment properties, prepaid land
lease payments, properties, plant and equipment, toll
road income, properties under development, properties
held for sale, trade receivables and restricted cash of
the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 26, 28 and 29),
certain of which are also secured by the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company or its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBEHRRME
33 Borrowings (continued) 33 fEFR@)
(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group’s secured (@) REH Ei\m; KEE 2 BHEBIE
bank borrowings were repayable as follows: TEFZ BT
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$ Million HKS Million
BEERT BEBT
Within one year —F R 675.9 1,090.7
In the second year F_F 226.4 693.5
In the third to fifth year F=ZEFRHF 1,110.4 1,535.8
After the fifth year hF% 585.8 438.2
2,598.5 3,758.2
Wholly repayable within five years ZERAFRNZEHEE 916.9 1,656.6
Wholly repayable after five years ZBRAFEEIEE 1,681.6 2,101.6
2,598.5 3,758.2
(b)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to (b) ANEFEEZNELED MRS

interest rate changes and the contractual

BER MG HEFEE R W

repricing dates at the balance sheet date are as IS
follows:

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RE
HKS$ Million HKS Million
ER- T BEET
6 months or less 61& Ak AT 2,417.2 3,394.5
6 — 12 months 62121 A 221.2 283.2
2,638.4 3,677.7
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33 Borrowings (continued) 33 EXRu@)
(c)  The Group has finance lease liabilities at the (c) MREEH KAEBHRHEHRE
balance sheet date as follows: BEWT
2016 2015
—E—-RF —FT-RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATL
Gross finance lease liabilities RIEHRE B EREE—
— minimum lease payments KA EKE
Within one year —FA 21.5 22.1
In the second year 4 22.1 22.8
In the third to fifth year E=ZEFERF 54.2 72.6
After the fifth year A F1E - 8.4
97.8 125.9
Future finance charges on BEHEZ RRKMEER
finance leases (12.6) (19.5)
Present value of finance FmEHEEE2HE
lease liabilities 85.2 106.4
The present value of finance  REREBFEZIBEMT ¢
lease liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —F R 16.7 16.0
In the second year F= 18.4 17.7
In the third to fifth year F=EFRTF 50.1 64.5
After the fifth year hFE - 8.2
85.2 106.4
(d  As at 31 December 2016, loans from non- d RZ-ZZE—XE+=-A=+-—

controlling shareholders of HK$260.7 million are
unsecured, of which HKS179.6 million carries
interest at three to five years’ People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC”") lending rate per annum and
the remaining balance is interest free. As at
31 December 2015, loans from non-controlling
shareholders of HK$266.2 million are unsecured,
of which HK$190.7 million carries interest at
three to five years’ PBOC lending rate per annum
and the remaining balance is interest free.

The loans that are not expected to be repayable
within twelve months are classified as non-current
liabilities. The balance is mainly denominated in
Renminbi.
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33 Borrowings (continued)
(e) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet (e)
date were as follows:

33 ER@)

S

REEBHZBRAMEMT

2016 2015

ZE-RE “T-1%
HK$ RMB HKS RMB
BT AR# BT ARE
Bank borrowings RITIER 1.23%-3.35%  3.30%-7.38% 0.98%-3.92% 3.50%-6.90%
Finance lease liabilities REMEAR - 5.75% - 5.75%

Loans from non-controlling ~ 3FZRRAR R &%

shareholders - 4.9% - 4.90%
(f) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are (f) B2 BEEEIR N5 S sy

denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015
—F-REF —T-1F
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEAR BEAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 104.4 315.6
Renminbi AR 2,840.0 3,815.2
2,944 .4 4,130.8
(g)  The Group has the following undrawn borrowing (g) AEEATHARBAEIEE
facilities:
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT AEATT
Fixed rate expiring beyond one year 7 —F& 5| HRE T
FEET B 53.4 80.2
Floating rate expiring beyond R—F &2 H%
one year BN EET B 1,037.1 1,675.9
1,090.5 1,756.1

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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RE IR
34 Trade and other payables 34 ENERREMEN
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT AEBT
Trade payables FERTER X 60.8 61.7
Retention payables R R 162.4 230.2
Properties sale deposits received Bl HEE RS 184.5 141.4
Other payables and accruals (Note ¢c) HAbfEf L ERFTE A
(K=EC) 1,351.1 1,639.3
1,758.8 2,072.6
(a)  The ageing analysis of trade payables at year end (@) MREH#HB  ENERFZERD
was as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—-RF —FT—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT BEATT
0 to less than 2 months ZZPR2(A A 30.6 35.1
2 to less than 6 months 2ZE L RN6(E A 0.2 1.1
6 to less than 12 months 6= LR12MEA 0.6 0.5
12 months and more 1218 A & BA E 29.4 25.0
60.8 61.7
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34 Trade and other payables (continued)
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and
other payables are denominated in the following

34 ENERAREMESK@E

(b)  ANER [ PR A AR R R EL A A AR

ZIREERATERSIE

currencies:
2016 2015
= —T-1F
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBT BEBTT
Hong Kong dollars BT 57.2 52.5
Renminbi AR 1,411.1 1,739.4
US dollars e 290.5 280.7
1,758.8 2,072.6
(c)  As of 31 December 2016, the fair value of (c) Eé:g;—‘—\ :§E+
financial liabilities at fair value through profit SANE: “ FEEBRRR
or loss is HK$290.5 million (2015: HK$280.7 Bea@AEATYE
. : : : 290,500,000 (=& —
million). £ : 280,700 BIT) °

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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35 Deferred income tax liabilities 35 EEFBHERE
The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and ERRBZELEMESHAGBERAEZSH N
movements are as follows: e
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment Depreciation land lease
properties allowance Taxloss  payments Other items Total
RENEL Bt #ig
LPERE WEEE  HEER Hag  HfER ok
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEAT EE®n  EE#T  BEE®n  EEAR  BEEn
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%-A-H 800.6 26.0 (134) 3721 13.0 1,198.3
Currency translation differences ERBEER (48.8) 6.1 0.3 (20.1) (13) 63.8)
(Credited)/charged to income RERR(BE)/ M
statement (Note 13) (Fz13) (94.3) 38 10.3 (19.0 26 96.6)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-AE+-F=1-H 6575 3.9 (2.8) 3330 143 1,037.9
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 657.5 359 (2.8) 333.0 143 1,037.9
Currency translation differences EHBEER (60.6) (2.3) 0.2 (7.3) (1.7) (77.7)
Charged/[credited) to income RBEFNE/(85)
statement (Note 13) (FF&13) 435.4 41 - (23.8) 8.6 424.3
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+-B=1-A 1,032.3 37 (2.6) 3019 15.2 1,384.5
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35 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

(a)

(b)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefits through
the future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$189.5 million (2015: HK$S303.3 million)
in respect of tax losses of HKS1,040.8 million
(2015: HKS1,473.2 million) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses
have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of
HKS$210.3 million (2015: HKS$642.6 million) which
will expire at various dates up to and including
2021 (2015: 2020).

The amount represents the tax charge relating
to the gain on property revaluation in other
comprehensive income.

35 EEFEBHEB@

(a) 1473 AT AL 35 1B o 2R FE SRk
AT HENSER e
B HIEBBERELTH
BREE - AEBELERHIE
5 18 1,040,800,000 % 7T ( —
T — 7 & : 1,473,200,000
BT)BRRECHAREE
189,500,000 7 (= & — &
4 : 303,300,000 % 7T ) A 4F
GEE8 . B LUK B B 1A R R
A o %% BB 518 I B R
B - #210,300,0005% 7 (==
— 4 : 642,600,000 1) 2
HMEEREEREBEZE - —_—F
(BEZE)(—E—HE  —F
—TE) AR R

b) HZELEEHEMEARATY
XEMWEHEB I RAMX

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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36 Commitments 36 FiIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EARHEE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but NEEHIEREBEMARAELEZ
not yet incurred is as follows: BABELIT
2016 2015
—EB-AF —F-HF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEBERT BEAT
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) KEEFZEXKFAE
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) % - B RFR
Contracted but not provided for EEENEES L 25.1 5.9
(b) Property development projects (b) MEZRIEE
Contracted but not provided for EHENEES L 341.5 1,484.3
366.6 1,490.2
(ii) Capital commitments undertaken (i) & &1 el BEE#E
by the joint venture
Property development project MEERIEE
Contracted but not provided for EHENEESE
— the Group’s share —REEENG 268.3 1,072.4
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36 Commitments (continued)

(b)

(c)

36 &g

Commitments under operating leases (b) REBKEHEE ZKIE
The aggregate future minimum lease payments BIEEB T RIEF Z el HE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HEEHEZAKRZEES 2
of land and buildings are as follows: IR :
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEBT BEATT
No later than 1 year —FR 1.2 6.2
Later than 1 year and no later HRA—FRAFR
than 5 years 0.7 1.1
1.9 7.3
Future minimum rental receivable (c) RREREEKWESE

The future aggregate minimum rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases is as
follows:

REBETAHECEREZRK

RIEEBKESEBAOT

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—RF

HKS$ Million HKS Million

BEEBT BEBTT

No later than 1 year —FR 86.2 99.0
Later than 1 year and no later BB —FRAFR

than 5 years 148.5 207.8

Later than 5 years b ke - 9.7

234.7 316.5

The Group leases out investment properties
under operating leases. The lease runs for an
initial period of one to ten years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased annually
to reflect market rentals. No contingent rent was
recognised in the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

AEERBERLEHEBREY
LM - BOVE AR —ZE+
F O UHEAEEREINHAR
BH - BRI RIS R B
BE -HE—RESF LA
RemHEEE - kRAEEH
AEEBE_ZT—RFR-ZE
—EF+-_A=t—HLEE
FRER -
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37 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

The Group’s investment property located in
Shenzhen, the PRC is subject to housing facility
fund pursuant to <RZIIEEFREFEEMEEIE
155> adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent
liabilities of RMB75.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$84.3 million) (2015: RMB75.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$89.5
million)) arising in this respect have been
assessed by management with reference to the
legal opinion previously obtained. Management
have requested relief from the relevant local
government authorities on the grounds that
certain amounts of maintenance costs were
already spent for the purposes as specified under
the requirement of housing facility fund, hence
no further provision for the fund is considered
necessary.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group arranged
bank financing for certain property buyers and
provided guarantees of HK$335.5 million (2015:
HKS$222.2 million) in relation to the repayment
obligations for those buyers. The Group had not
suffered from any loss resulting from the above
guarantees in the past, which was mainly because
the guarantees concerned were only a transitional
arrangement for property buyers prior to the
completion of mortgage registration and were
pledged against property rights, in addition to the
fact that they will be released once the mortgage
registration is completed. Considering the
above factors, the Board is of the view that the
possibility of default by buyers is minimal, thus
the financial guarantees measured at fair value is
immaterial.
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38

Related party transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions during the year were:

(a)

(b)

In June 2010, the Company entered into
a supplemental agreement with Genesis
Capital Group Limited, one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company, for amending and
supplementing the revolving loan agreement
dated 8 October 2007, under which the Company
might borrow up to HK$1,000.0 million for a
period of ninety-six months from the date of the
said loan agreement. The loan is unsecured and
carried interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime
rate plus 2% per annum. The Company is required
to repay the loan and accrued interest thereon at
the expiry of the said agreement. There has been
no outstanding loan balance as at 31 December
2011 and the agreement has been expired in
2015.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

At 31 December 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantee in respect of facilities granted
to an associate of HKS106.7 million (2015:
HKS127.5 million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

38 BEMLXRZ
BUSHBBREECBIREZRS

R AEERIN -

(a)

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH

FRENEH IR ZUOT

R-F—BFAA AR
BAATEF—EEERR
ZHEEERATTLHT

ek - AMERT KM B HIA
“EELFTANBZER

EXtaE o Bt - AREA
R bt & 5% % B B R
NTAREABBABEARS
1,000,000,000& 7T © &% %
ERSEEM  RETRE
BAEMM2%FEFREFE - K
RAIZAR LAt B B A
ERERKETFE - K=
E——Ff+-A=1+—HXY
BAREBEENRGRS  BiH=H
ER_T—HFHH -

NG

BB SUTEKBRE LT
BAFIAZEFEE T2 HE
X5 e
R_E—R"E+-_A=+—
H AX&EE—HEKBARF
MR F—BEBEAFZ
EERMEREBZERA
106,700,000 (=2 —H
4 : 127,500,000 7T) °
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38 Related party transactions (continued) 38 B AXZ @)
(c) At 31 December 2016, a subsidiary of the Group (c)

recognised an interest income of HK$10.7 million
(2015: HKS11.1 million) on the outstanding
amount due from its joint venture (Note 23).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(d) Key management compensation (d)
Key management solely represents directors of
the Company. The compensation paid or payable
to key management is shown as below:

H X&

Al Bt H E I
155&1')\155%%? N 5
10,700,000/%71:(_5
% : 11,100,000 ) (KizE
23) o

n= $—T$+:HE+—
._
B &

BRI 5 T ARE E
BRSNS TR T2 HiE
%5

FTEEREKE 2HE
FTEEEENBEERARA
BELZ - ENHIERTEEE
BEKE 2@EWT :

2016 2015

—NE —Z—h8F

HK$ Million HKS Million

BEBT BEATT

Director’s fees Xk 1.3 1.3

Salary and other benefits Hie REMBEH 21.2 20.9
Employer’s contribution to BAREFEZEEHRK

pension scheme 0.1 0.1

Share option benefits B EE R - 0.5

22.6 22.8
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39 Notes to consolidated cash flow

39 ZEREREBRME

statement
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net (a) & aF e =]
cash generated from operations e B HER
2016 2015
—E-XE “ZT—AhF
HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEAR BEET
Profit/(loss) before income tax FiEFanas,/ (&i8) 1,189.1 (571.3)
Finance income 5T N (33.1) (32.5)
Depreciation and amortisation IER#H 103.2 126.0
Employee share option benefits & 8B EREF
(Note 11) (MisE11) - 1.0
Fair value adjustments on BREYMEZ AT EAE
investment properties (607.2) 469.8
Provision for impairment losses ~ ZEREEE B
on assets (Note 7) (BI=E7) - 135.6
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE—FEH B Rz Wz (118.8) =
Net exchange loss bE B 1E5 R 25.4 5.8
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE S REEL
plant and equipment — net Wt —F5 (1.0) (91.5)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial & AFEEEZSRIIEZ
assets and financial liabilities at &REERSREE
fair value through profit or AFEER ()
loss - net — 5 9.6 (16.8)
Finance costs BE A 68.1 150.3
Share of profits less losses FE(h B2 A B FR B 18
of associates (98.2) (96.4)
Share of profits less losses e —fMaERaaHR
of a joint venture B8 (82.0) 228.3
Operating profit before working — &E& & EE AL EH
capital changes 455.1 308.3
Increase in properties under RPN
development (152.4) (524.9)
Increase in prepaid land lease TBfT £ & SR A0
payments (19.1) (185.7)
Decrease in properties 1ESHE Bg 2 MR D
held for sale 978.8 740.8
Increase in inventories FEEM (0.1) (0.2)
(Increase)/decrease in other HAbIETR B U A K
non-current receivables and trade  JEUR RN K E b fE UL R
and other receivables (3gm),/ B (32.4) 40.0
(Decrease)/increase in other HAth JE R B FE 5 5/ A R FE 1
non-current payables and trade BRFR R E At FE AT 3R
and other payables CRi),/#m (221.0) 204.2
Cash generated from operations  &&EKHFHEE 1,008.9 582.5

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 40 ZAFESEARBERHEES
the Company )
Balance sheet of the Company KATEEAER
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—AF
HKS Million HKS Million
BHEBT BEBIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RWERARZEE ] 146.4 155.4
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE € 9,027.3 9,503.8
Other receivables E b pE U R 0.4 1.3
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY 17.1 1.0
Total currentassets nBRERE 000000 90448 @ 9,506.1
Total assets BEHAE 9,191.2 9,661.5
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ZA2QAFEZEE AEML
to equity holders of the EXE#E
Company
Share capital &N 132.2 132.2
Reserves (Note) fa e (B aE) 9,054.5 9,524.8
Totalequity mam®® 0 91867 9,657.0
Current liability REBEE
Other payables Hfh e 3R 4.5 4.5
Total liability AfFE®® 0 45 45
Total equity and liability Bk EEHEE 9,191.2 9,661.5
OEIl Kang, Eric =M
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel R
Directors EF
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40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

the Company (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

Reserve movement of the Company

40 %ﬁ’&ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ@
(&)
AAEEEEER®E)

GEEPUNGET L1

Employee
share-based
Share  Contributed compensation  Exchange Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

R A%
ROEE  SAR# EEMERE  EXRE  RHEE ag
HKS Milion ~— HKSMilion — HKSMilion — HKSMilion — HKSMillion — HKS Million
BEAT  BEAT  BEBT  BEET  BEAT  BEAR
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-RF-f-RER 8,235.3 730.7 50.7 979.8 (219.2) 9,771.3
Currency translation differences ERREEE - - - (582.4) - (582.4)
Exercise of bonus warrants TRAHI AR R 275 - - - - 2575
Exercise of share options iFERE 5.1 - (1.0 - - 41
Employee share option benefits ESBRERN - - 1.0 - - 10

Release of reserve upon cancelled/ BREE S/ KARELRE

[apse of share options - - (50.7) - 50.7 -
Profit for the year REFET - - - - 673 67.3
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIE-RFt-A=+-REH 8,497.9 7307 - 3974 (101.2) 9,524.8
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIZ-"E-A-RER 8,497.9 730.7 - 397.4 (1012)  9,524.8
Currency translation differences EingzE - - - (566.1) - (566.1)
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - 95.7 95.7
Balance at 31 December 2016 RIE-NE+-A=t—R&H 8,497.9 730.7 - (168.7) (5.5) 9,054.4

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and 41 BEERFTETHAEZERN

chief executives Nz
The remuneration of every director and chief executive BEZENRITHEAHZOMEST ¢

officer is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2016: HE_Z—R"F+_A=T—H1LHF
g
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary ~to pension Share-hased"®

Fees Salary* honuses* scheme? Sub-total compensation® Total
B

Name i34 ne et BERAL  ZEXHE ME RewEe 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEn TiEn TEn FEn TiEn TEn FEn

OEI Tjie Goan T - - - - - - -
OEI Kang, Eric* =l 175.0 11,994.4 1,190.1 36.0 13,395.5 - 13,395.5
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel 2 100.0 2,612.4 305.8 18.0 3,036.2 - 3,036.2
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EER 175.0 2,466.9 206.1 36.0 2,884.0 - 2,884.0
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel® REZ 175.0 2,054.8 403.6 36.0 2,669.4 - 2,669.4
CHUNG Cho Yeg, Mico &z 220.0 - - - 2200 - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo g&H 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
Albert Thomas DAROSA, Junior ~ ZE51fA 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
1,285.0 19,128.5 2,105.6 126.0 22,645.1 - 22,645.1
* chief executive officer * TR EL
# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of i E2BERRTHEEEARARQA K
services provided in connection with the management EMBRAMNERBBEERSR
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries THRERKEEE -

undertaking.
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and 41 BEERFTETHAEZEARN

chief executives (continued) KRR @
For the year ended 31 December 2015: HE-FT—AF+A=1+—HIEHF
g
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary ~ to pension Share-hased®
Fees Salary* bonuses scheme? Sub-total - compensation® Total
BIREE
Name & ik gt BEEA  EEER Pt RORES a8

HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThL T TEL ThL T ThL THL

OEI Tjie Goan BER - - - - - - -
OEl Kang, Eric* #fl* 175.0 11,683.8 1,303.0 36.0 13,197.8 2115 13,409.3
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel T 100.0 2,510.0 378.0 18.0 3,006.0 155.8 3,161.8
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BER 175.0 2,391.8 314.7 345 2,916.0 97.3 30133
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph® BREFO 66.7 1,527.8 - 12.0 1,606.5 - 1,606.5
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel® LSl 58.3 560.6 2313 10.1 866.3 - 866.3
YEN Teresa® sl 348 - - - 348 - 348
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico g% 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
CHENG Yuk Wo | 220.0 - - - 220.0 - 220.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ~ E Sl 2200 - - - 2200 - 220.0
1,269.8 18,674.0 2,233.0 110.6 22,2874 464.6 22,152.0
g chief executive officer * TR EL
# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of # ESHERRETHEEARAQA K
services provided in connection with the management ENBRAMNESABERSR
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries THEERE A FEN -

undertaking.
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and

chief executives (continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph resigned as executive
director with effect from 1 September 2015.

2. Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel was appointed as
executive director on 1 September 2015.

3. Ms. YEN Teresa resigned as non-executive director with
effect from 8 May 2015.

4. The balance represented the estimated value of share
options granted to the directors under the share option
schemes of the Company and a subsidiary. The value
of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions and, in accordance with that policy,
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. OEI
Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual director’'s fee of
HKS100,000 (2015: HKS100,000).

During the year, other benefits and remunerations in
respect of accepting office as director were paid to or
receivable by the directors in respect of their services
as directors (2015: same as 2016). During the year, no
emoluments were paid or receivable by the directors in
respect of director’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2015: Nil).
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41

Benefits and interests of directors and
chief executives (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to directors during
the year ended 31 December 2016 by a defined
contributions plan as disclosed in note 11 in
respect of their services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is HK$126,000
(2015: HKS$110,600). No other retirement
benefits were paid to or receivables by the
directors in respect of their services as directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries or other
services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled bodies corporate and connected
entities (2015: Nil).

41 EERFETHRAEZEA

R @)
(i) EEERKEFR
BE-T—AE+-A=+—

(ii)

(i)

(iv)
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41 Benefits and interests of directors and
chief executives (continued)

(v) Director’'s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2015:
Nil).
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture

TEMBAT  BEARR—MAEAT

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associates and a

1

TERHINEFR %%Tzli’ilﬁi_"

joint venture which, in the opinion of the directors, principally —/NXE+_-_FB =+ —HIFFE £ 4&
affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for the year & "B EFEEZEZFEWE A
ended 31 December 2016. A BEQARREERARFE
Principal subsidiaries 1 EWEBAFA
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity* Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ BEHER
2 EERREL. TERE BRiTRA/REHRES AEE ERRARSR
2016 215 2016 2015
Z§-7E “3-1f  ZE-nE TR
(a)  Investment holding
RELR
APC Wind Power Pte Limited-* Singapore Investment holding SGD10 SGDI0 54.13% 54.13%
il RERR 105 7 108
China Renewable Energy Ivestment — Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HK$23,563,718 H$23,563,718 54.13% 54.13%
Limited+* HeEs /b RERR 23,563,718 %7 23563, 1187 T
TEELERRARRARY
China Renewable Energy (Songxian)  Hong Kong nvestment holding HKS1 HKS1 54.13% 54.13%
Limited: 3] RERR 157 &7
hEBEHR (B8 BRAR)
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC nvestment holding HK$1,000,000 HKS1,000,000 75%** 5%
HISEARAA B /mE RERR 1,000,000%7% 1,000,000%7
HKC (China) Management Company ~ PRC Whally foreign-owned  Provision of management U5$8,000,000 558,000,000 100% 100%
Limite#? enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000% 7 8,000,000%
B (M) ERARAR TENTEALS RAEREERRE
HKC Investment Limited: Hong Kong/PRC nvestment holding HK$77,113,850 HK$77,113,850 100% 100%
BRERRARRAR: Ak /M8 RERR 77,113 85087 77,113 8507
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%
BEER(EE BIILRERAA  BB/9E RERR 2R 2ET
HKC Property Investments (China) British Virgin Islands/PRC ~ Investment holding Uss1 Uss1 100% 100%
Limited+# KERgES/FE  REMR 1%7 It
BAERMERE (RE)FRAT
BARR(ZER)BRA ZE-REER
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENBIR @
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
L/ SEHER
2 EERREL. TERR BRiRA/RURRER AEE ERRARSR
2016 215 2016 2015
Z§-7E Z5-1f ZB-»E %1
(a)  Investment holding (continued)
RELR(E)
HKC Shenyang Hunan lnvestments ~ Hong Kong/PRC Ivestment holding HKS$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limitedt Bk /mE REmR 137 1T
BAEREREERERRAT):
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HKS1 54.13% h4.13%
BANRR (RN BRERAR: Bk /mE REER 1%7 &7
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS4 HKS4 54.13% h4.13%
BEER(BATERERAT  B/9E REER 4R AT
HKE (Ganst) Wind Power Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HKS1 54.13% h4.13%
AR (HB)BaaRAR: Bk /mE REER 1%7 &7
Hong Kong Construction (Interior Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HKS10,000 100% 100%
Contracting) Limited* BL/4E REnk 10,0007 1000057
BRER(ZEIR) AR
Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Tuan PoHong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000 HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Hur Investment Limited: Bk /mE REER 462,000,000 7 462,000,000
BAERRERNNRERRAR):
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Investment holding HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited B REER 150,000,007 150,000,000%7%
BRER(BA) TEERLT
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited**  British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Uss1 Uss1 100% 100%
BARE (IR ARAT RERgES/8  RERR 1%7 It
Hong Kong New Energy (Si ZiWang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HKS2  54.13% h.13%
Wind Power Limited® Bk /mE REmR 27 25T

EER (TR AR

248 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2016



Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

1  Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FENBIR @
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 EERREL. TERR BRTRA/BURRER AEE ERRARSR
2016 215 2016 2015
Z§-7E Z3-1f ZB-»E TR
(a)  Investment holding (continued)
RELR(E)
Hong Kong New Energy (Si ZiWang Qi Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HKS1,000  54.13% h.13%
1) Wind Power Limited® BL/48 REmR 1,000%7 100057
BANRE(mT TS
BERRAF
HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) Holdings ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS1 100% 100%
Limited: Bk /mE REnR 157 1T
BAER(LBRR)BRERAR:
Karbony Investment Limited: Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Bk /mE REER 10,000,000 10,000,000%7z
Noble Quest Enterprise Limited® British Virgin Islands/ ~ Investment holding Uss1 USS1 100% 100%
Hong Kong RERR 17 IE3
XERTES/ER
Sinoriver Iternational Limited-* British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding Uss1 USS1 54.13% h4.13%
| ERERAF RERgES/E  RERR 1%7 It
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$20 HS20  54.13% h4.13%
Limitedt Bk /mE REnk %7 0T
hIEB(RE)ER AR
The Legation Quarter Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HK$82,105,263 70.9% 10.9%
RAREREERERAG Bk /mE REER 82,105,263 %7 82,105,263 0
(b} Property investment
NERE
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in shopping mall 585,500,000 U5585,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited+# enterprise of South Ocean Centre, 85,500,000% 7 85,500,000%7
BAER(TE) TRARAT hENEALS Shenzhen, the PRC
RERERIT
EPLIES

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEME AT @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
BREANE LS
2] iERREL ITRE BRIRA/EffHRER AL ERRAES
2016 2015 2016 215
55k ZT-RF ZE-xE  ZR-AE
(b)  Property investment (continued)
NERE(R)
Karbony Real Estate Development PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Investment in offices, and US$155,000,000 US$155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limited+# enterprise shopping mal of Shun 155,000,000% 7 155,000,000%
TERHERB(RIERAF  mENEBELE Hing Square, Shenzhen,
the PRC
REREMInERRS
NELZRAER
Sky Universe Limited® Britsh Virgin Islands/PRC  Property holding of 9/F., Uss1 USS1 100% 100%
ABRLHE/TE Tower 1 South Seas £ %7
Centre, Tsimshatsti,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
RERRNEANE
KIEEERL
1592 m%
RIABEEGUR)ESAERATY PR Wholly foreignowned Investment in property for S$18,200,000 U$5$18,200,000 70.9% 70.9%
enterprise restaurants and retails i 18,200,000% 18,200,000%
HENERELE Beijing, the PRC
RERRSRmNESE
2ERZE
(c)  Property development
NERR
Huzhou Nanxun International Building  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Development and operation 5$48,000,000 S$48,000,000 100% 100%
Market Center Company Limited- enterprise of a building materials 48,000,000% 7 48,000,000%7
INERERRI AR HENEBELE centre in Huzhou,
the PRC
REEENEER
SERENMHML
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 TEMMB AT @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 EERREY. TERR BRiRA/RIRRES AEE ERRARS
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z§-7E Z5-1f  ZB-»E ZE-1E
(c)  Property development (continued)
NERR(E)
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Sinoforeign equity ~ Real estate development RNB2,300,000,000 RMB2,300,000,000 60% 60%
Development Company Limited+# joint venture inHongkou Districtin~~ A&¥2,300,000,000%  AE#%2,300,000,0007
LEEREHERTERAFH mERNEELE Shanghai, the PRC
RhE HEmI0R
AEEE
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment  PRC Limited liabilty Real estate development in RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000 75%** 750
Company Limited+#* company Nankai Districtin Tiamjin, ~ AR#%500,000,000% ~ AK%500,000,0007
REMEAEERARRAT hERRAFAA the PRC
MERETERR
AEEE
Tianjin Renai Properties Development  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development HK$452,000,000 HKS452,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited+* enterprise in Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai 452,200,000 7 452,200,0007%7
REMCEELREARAAH HENERELE County in Tianjin,
the PRC
NN e b
HRERNE
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management  PRC Wholly foreign-owned  Real estate development in HK$690,000,000 HK$690,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited+* enterprise Tianjin, the PRC 690,000,000%7 £90,000,000%
REMRACEERERART mENTEALS RERETRERNE
EREE(BR) AR PRC Wiholly foreigr-oumed Real estate development at HK$928,000,000 H$928,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Ningbo Road in Heping 928,000,000%7 928,000,000
HENNERA LR District in Shenyang,
the PRC
MEEETHTER)R
RRERNE
BRER(IF)NEXEARAT®  PRC Wholy foreignowned  Real estate development in RMB260,000,000 RIB260,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Jiangmen, the PRC AR#®260,000,000%  AK%260,000,0007
hENGEALR MBIMTRERE

BRERUEBOARD
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 FTEKMB QG @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
L/ SEHER
2 LEERRD TEEE BRiRA/RURRER AEEERRAER
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z§-7E “3-RE ZE-xE 51
(d)  Infrastructure and renewable
energy
EERBAHE
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 HKS100,000000  46.55% 46.55%
Company Limited+#" joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000:&7 100,000,007
ENRIEEMAILARDA  ERMAELE RPEZET B N%E
28
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) PRC Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 HKS150,100,000 46.92% 46.92%
Company Limited+#" joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000 7 150,100,007
BRRNEE(BR)ERDT hEIAELE R d )
HEER
Songxian HKE Wind Power Limited+*  PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project i RMB9,500,000 - B4I13% 0%
SEAEASERATM joint venture Songxian, Henan, the AE#%9,500,0007 -
RE /A ERE PRC
METEEE RN
HEER
BEAEEOTIEBEERAD  PRC Sinoforeign equity  Wind Power project i RMB166,480,000 RVB166,480000  54.13% h4.13%
joint venture Siziwang i, Inner AR%166,480,0007  AKE166,480,000%
hEIAELE Mongolia, the PRC
hERFERTEE,
EVESE
BRAEENTIEBEERAD  PRC Sinoforeign equity  Wind Power project in RMB172,526,500 RVWB172526500  54.13% h4.13%
joint venture Siziwang i, Inner ARE172526500%  ARE172,526,500%
hERIAELE Mongolia, the PRC
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture

TEMBAT  BEARR—MAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued) 1 TENB AT @)
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name legal entity" Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
i/ SEHER
2 EERREL. TERR BRTRA/BURRER AEE ERRARSR
2016 215 2016 215
Z§-7E Z3-1f ZB-»E TR
(e} Trading/property services
g5/ WEnH
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Wholly foreign-owned ~ Trading on construction 585,500,000 U5585,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited+# enterprise materials 85,500,000% 7 85,500,000%7
BRER(PE) TRERD T hENTEALS LERENH
Shenzhen Kumagai Property PRC Sino-foreign equity  Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HKS60,000,000 100% 100%
Management Company Limited+* joint venture management service 60,000,007 60,000,000/

ANz ERRRAF

RERNRELE RENZERRE

BREREBROERLDA —B—AEFH
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture

TEMBAT  BEARR—MAEAT

2 Principal associates 2 FTEBE N T
Place of incorporation/ Group's effective
Name Issued share capital/registered capital operation equity interest
8 BRIRA/ERER EUANE S5 rEEERRAER
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE —E-1f ZE-RE IR
(a]  Property
Nz
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited-* HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000  Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
BRERERARERAR 10,000,000% 7t 10,000,000 &&/+E
(b)  Renewable energy
BERR
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited:#? RMB589,620,000 RMB589,620,000  PRC 21.65% 21.65%
hi AR (R RNESARAR AK#589,620000  AE®589,620000
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited+# RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000  PRC 21.65% 21.65%
hERERR NEE (R BRAR AEH545,6400000  AR®H45,640000m  HE
CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited+# RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000  PRC 16.24% 16.24%
mE A ENEE(RL)ER AR AR#323,260000%  AE%323200000m
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and a Joint Venture
TEMEAR  BEAAR-—MAEAT

3

A joint venture —EE&E AT
Form of business structure/ Place of establishment/ Group's effective
Name Kind of legal entity operation equity interest
ZR ERSRRSREERER R/ B FrREZERRAER
2016 2015

—B-RE —ZT-1fF

Property development

EX

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate ~ Wholly foreign-owned enterprise PRC 25% 25%

Company Limited+# NERELE i

LEERINEEZARAT

Notes:

0

* ok

Unofficial English transliterations or translation for
identification purposes only

Interest held by subsidiaries

Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on
the Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987.

The companies are considered as wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group from the accounting
perspective, as the 25% shareholders of such
companies are not entitled to receive any future
dividends and sharing of residual interest.

The kind of legal entity is limited liability company,
unless otherwise stated.

fax -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFMBRERBE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XFE T—HF ZETWmFE T—=F ZT—=F
HKS$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
HEBR HEBTT BEBT BEBT BEBTT
Consolidated income #HZAEZRR

statement
Revenue g 1,640 1,273 881 1,441 329
Profit/(loss) before FiEH AR F,/

income tax (&518) 1,189 (571) 218 163 154
Income tax expense PSR (600) 9) (169) (85) (42)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREE T,/

(B18) 589 (580) 49 78 112
Non-controlling interests  FEIE R iE = (203) 82 (136) (5) (9)
Profit/(loss) attributable "R El#EZHA A

to equity holders of the ~ FE{& A,/

Company (F#8) 386 (498) (87) 73 103
Dividends [85H - - - - 220
Consolidated balance #HSAEEEER

sheet
Net current assets MEBEEFE 1,946 2,167 2,666 1,929 1,375
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,304 15,724 16,610 17,656 16,570
Non-current liabilities FERFEE (3,623) (4,049) (4,180) (4,236) (3,232)
Net assets including non- & EF% (R

controlling interests FEIEfR AR ) 13,627 13,842 15,096 15,349 14,713
Share capital [N 132 132 116 112 112
Reserves & 11,345 11,628 12,587 12,925 12,351
Non-controlling interests FEfEfkHES 2,150 2,082 2,393 2,312 2,250
Total equity R EsE 13,627 13,842 15,096 15,349 14,713

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE ZT—HFE ZT-WmFE T-—=F ZIT—=F
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Earnings/(loss) per sREFN,

sharet (B!

- basic 7\ 0.730 (1.002) (0.193) 0.162 0.237

— diluted D 0.728 (1.032) (0.228) 0.151 0.233
Dividend per share* SRS

— attributable to the —FEREI

year - - - - 0.5
Return on total equity?  #EzABZAEIFREXA 4.3% (4.2%) 0.3% 0.5% 0.8%
Notes: B2
# Earnings/(loss) per share and dividend per share were restated ~ # ERAERN,/ (BE)RESEREDKESE
to reflect the share consolidation as set out in Note 31(a). 5l ARBREIEE31(a)FrE 2 IR &6 -
a Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year 2 MRS R ARNEE RN EiE

RERFEFRESEBE AN -

expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the
year concerned.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

AY AY 173 EE
FEYE-—BR
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAEHBH)

Investment properties - completed REYE - EEK

(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
Share- GFA GFA
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Term of lease
(K#) (R#)
BEAER EfGEEAER
26 il M (E5HK) (F5K) HEH

The shopping mall, all car parking spaces Offices and shops 100% 31,000 31,000 Medium
and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, BREREE i
Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre,

No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen,

the PRC

firs BT RS T 28 R R A SR B 500255

FEESHIRETLNENGS HEEERR

12 2EROBEHAE

The shopping mall and all car parking spaces, Shops 100% 6,300 6,300 Medium
South Ocean Centre, Dongmen Road Central, 1 HE
Shenzhen, the PRC

firm BRI TR P g LR 5 )

FrERER

Various shops, No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, Shops 70.9% 17,100 12,100 Short
Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC g ki
firp BIE R T R R A PR AR 235 )

SHEBRIEH

Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 97,000 97,000 Medium
Construction Materials Market, HE b
Nanxun Economic Development District,

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

i BT & TR R ER R ERER

REMHERBERCENZHEH

Three apartment units, various shops Shops and residential 40% 35,300 14,100 Medium
and 705 car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza, BEREE i
No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District,

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC

ik B ERE BM TR RX NI B335 R SR

JEFEEN - ZEEHRI05EEE

Units 1 to 7 on 28th Floor, Offices of City Centre, Offices 100% 1,487 1,487 Medium
Junctions of Xikang Road and Chengdu Road, N i
Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC
i EXETHTREREERSERD
EBERLRERAEL-THEN

161,987
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Schedule of Principal Properties

hY A 173 EE
FEYPE—BER
(as at the date of the annual report)
(MARFERBE)

Properties under development
a) For sale purpose

BRPYE
a) fFHERZR

(Approx.)
Expected (Approx.) (Approx.)  Attributable
Share- Stage of year of Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#)
(X#) (R#) EfERE
HH wEAE BELEE HEE
ik REMR R EREE ERER (A% (A% (FAK)
A parcel of land along the  Residential 100% Planning stage - 804,000 836,000 836,000
eastern shore of Tuanbo (=% REMEE
Lake, Jinhai County, Tianjin,
the PRC
I R ETEF%
BN ES R — R
Two parcels of land (Zone A, Residential and ~ 100% Construction stage 2017 -2019 26,000 81,000 81,000
(2) located at Ningpo Road, shops and Planning stage ~ —T—+ &%
Heping District, Shenyang, FZRAEE TREER —E-NE
the PRC RERER
s B EG T AT RER
J 72 R - C2E)
917,000
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYR-—BR

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RAFEHRB )
Properties under development (continued) ERERPYE@E)
b) For investment purpose b) EREREZE
(Approx.)
Expected (Approx.) (Approx.]  Attributable
Share- Stage of year of Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(K#)
(R#) (R#) EfsRE
ik wEAE BELEE HEE
2 RERZ fE JERRBE £ ERER (EHK) (EHK) (EHK)
A parcel of land located Offices, hotel 25% Construction in 2016 57,000 259,000 64,750
in the north side of the and shops progress “E-RE
International Passenger ~ HAZ - TR
Transportation Cruise BIEREE
Terminal of
Hongkou District,
Shanghai, the PRC
fir B Eg I O
BB BaREEILR 2
—fRLi
A parcel of land located Offices and 60% Construction in 2016 29,000 161,000 96,600
at Lot 108, No. 4, shops progress —ENE
Sichuan North Road, WREREE Ti2fTH
Hongkou District,
Shanghai, the PRC
firm e B E8 i O
Dl{5lgzSut el
1085t 48

161,350
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYR—BR

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RARFHAH)

Properties held for sale

fESHERE ZWE
(Approx.)
GFA remain

unsold as at

(Approx.)
Attributable
GFA remain
unsold as at

(Approx.) (Approx.) 31 December 31 December
Site area GFA 2016 2016
Location Intended use  Share-holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(RAR (K8 EER
—E-RE ZE-XF
+ZA=+-H +=A=1+-H
(X#) (X#) HkHEZ HkHEZ
HEEE BEAER EEAEE BEAER
2 RERZ e (EHX) (F75%) (£AXK) (£AK)
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 68,000 83,000 29,200 29,200
Construction Materials Market, g
Nanxun Economic Development
District, Huzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
MRRENTTIE BNTREE
TEREREEREBHHEN
BE RCEMZHEA
Various residential units in Residential 75% 54,000 150,000 63,700 47,700
Tianjin Eka Garden, South of e
Honggi South Road, Nanki District,
Tiajin, the PRC
fir B B K 2 i A R AL P B
NEREZZRTER 2 ZAEE
Various residential units and shops  Residential and 100% 95,000 189,000 70,700 70,700
in Jiangmen Eka Garden, shops
Jianghai District, Jiangmen, FERAERE
Guangdong Province, the PRC
iR EEREIMMLERE
TEERZREERES
Various residential units (Zone B, Residential 100% 41,000 183,000 103,700 103,700
B1-B4, B6-B11, Zone C1, C5-C6) in  fF=
Shenyang Eka Garden, Ningpo Road,
Heping District, Shenyang, the PRC
iz 5 B2 I T AT [ B R R
ZeRafrE (BRB1-B4 - Be-B1l  C&
Cl C5C6) 2 %ME=E
251,300
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